CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

City meetings are now being conducted in-person at City Hall. The meetings will be held in
conformance with public health orders and guidelines from the Colorado Department of Public
Health and Environment and the Tri-County Health Department. In order to maintain social
distancing requirements and ensure the safety of the public, elected officials, and City staff,
attendance at City meetings will be limited to 20 members of the public. If attendance exceeds
20 members of the public, the meeting may need to be cancelled and rescheduled to preserve
the public nature of the meeting and the health, safety and welfare of all involved.
AMENDED
City Council Agenda

Tuesday, June 16, 2020
2450 E. Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village CO 80113
City Hall
Meeting Information
To attend in person: All attendees must wear a mask in City Hall. There is no need to sign up to attend; if you
would like to speak during Audience Participation there will be a sign-up sheet at the podium.
To watch the live stream of the meeting or watch the recording later (no participation):
1) City website – City Council Videos, Agendas, Packets, Minutes
2) City YouTube channel – City of Cherry Hills Village YouTube
To participate virtually/speak during Audience Participation: Please email City Clerk Laura Gillespie by 6:00
p.m. on June 16, 2020 at lgillespie@cherryhillsvillage.com with your full name, home address, and that you
plan to speak during Audience Participation. You will receive an email with the information to join the
meeting virtually.
Agenda
6:30 p.m.
1.

Call to Order

2.

Roll Call of Members

3.

Pledge of Allegiance

4.

Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker)

***Agenda Continues on Second Page***
Notice:

Agenda is subject to change.
If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303-789-2541, 72 hours in
advance.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

5.

Reports from City Boards, Commissions and Committees

6.

Consent Agenda
a.
Approval of Minutes – June 2, 2020
b.
2019 Audited Financial Statements
c.
Resolution 18, Series 2020; Appointing New Members to the Cherry Hills Village Art
Commission
d.
Resolution 19, Series 2020; Accepting an Anonymous Donation on Behalf of the Cherry Hills
Village Parks Division

7.

Items Removed From Consent Agenda

8.

Unfinished Business
a.
City Financial Status Update
b.
Contract for the City’s Annual Concrete Project with Sunland Asphalt & Construction (tabled
from April 7, 2020 meeting)
c.
Contract for Chip Seal Services with Vance Brothers (tabled from April 7, 2020 meeting)
d.
Permanent Sculpture for New City Hall

9.

New Business
a.
Appointing a New City Manager and Approving a City Manager Employment Agreement

10.

Reports
a.
Mayor
b.
Members of City Council
c.
City Manager and Staff
(i)
Department Monthly Reports
d.
City Attorney

11.

Adjournment

Notice:

Agenda is subject to change.
If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303-789-2541, 72 hours in
advance.
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Minutes of the
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.
Virtual Meeting
The City Council held a study session at 5:30 p.m.
Mayor Russell Stewart called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL
Mayor Russell Stewart, Mayor Pro Tern Katy Brown, Councilors Randy Weil, Afshin
Safavi, Al Blum, Mike Gallagher, and Dan Sheldon were present on roll call. Also
present were City Manager Jim Thorsen, Deputy City Manager and Public Works
Director Jay Goldie, City Attorney Kathie Guckenberger, Police Chief Michelle Tovrea,
Finance Director Jessica Sager, Community Development Director Chris Cramer, Parks
and Recreation Coordinator Emily Black and City Clerk Laura Gillespie.
Absent: none
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD
None
REPORTS FROM CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES
None
CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Pro Tern Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Blum to approve the following
items on the Consent Agenda:
a.
b.

Approval of Minutes May 19, 2020
Resolution 17, Series 2020; Approving the CARES Act Local Government
Distribution Intergovernmental Agreement with Arapahoe County and
Ratifying the City Manager’s Signature Thereon
—

The following votes were recorded:
Safavi
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum
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yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
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The motion passed unanimously.
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None
NEW BUSINESS
Temporary Modification of Premises Liquor License Application from Splendido LLC
DBA Pino’s
City Clerk Gillespie presented the application for Council’s consideration. She explained
restaurants were now allowed to have on-premises dining with restrictions and outdoor
dining was encouraged, and as a result the State Liquor Enforcement Division had
issued emergency rules for temporary modification of premises for liquor licenses for
these outdoor seating areas. Pino’s was planning to make temporary modifications to
expand the sidewalk and their outdoor seating while leaving sufficient room for ADA
compliance and had applied for a temporary modification of their liquor license. Staff
had reviewed the application and recommended approval with the condition that the
modifications were approved by the Community Development Department prior to final
City approval of the temporary modification of premises liquor license. The State had
already reviewed and approved the application pending local City Council approval. She
indicated the applicant, Pino Saverino, and his manager were available for any
questions.
Councilor Blum indicated he was in favor of the application and asked when the
changes would expire.
City Clerk Gillespie replied the emergency rule had been issued for 120 days and was
currently set to expire September l2’ but it might be extended. She added the State
was in close communication with local communities to be in contact with local
businesses about the expiration of the temporary modifications.
Councilor Sheldon thanked staff and Mr. Saverino.
Councilor Gallagher thanked Mr. Saverino for the thorough application and
communication with the City and wished him success with his business.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked about the two diagrams in the application.
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City Clerk Gillespie explained the State wanted to see a diagram with a thick line around
the new premises, but she had included the diagram without the line as well since it was
easier to see the details.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown noted she was also a small business owner and wished Mr.
Saverino all the best.
Councilor Weil wished Mr. Saverino luck with his business.
Councilor Safavi thanked Mr. Saverino and indicated his support of the application. He
encouraged the City’s other businesses to contact the City about similar helpful
changes.
Mayor Stewart indicated his support and asked about parking.
Mr. Save rino replied the businesses used to be able to park in the medical center
across the street after 5pm but the new manager of the center had discontinued that
practice. He noted there was sufficient parking for the businesses in the parking lot and
along the street.
Director Cramer added the modification plan did not remove any parking spaces which
had been important to staff as the current number of spaces in the parking lot was the
minimum needed per the Municipal Code.
Councilor Sheldon moved, seconded by Councilor Blum to approve the application for a
temporary modification of premises for the Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License held by
Splendido, LLC, dba Pino’s at 1400 East Hampden Avenue Suite 140 in the City of
Cherry Hills Village based upon the findings outlined in in the staff report dated June 2,
2020 and subject to approval of the modifications by the Community Development
Department prior to final City approval.
The following votes were recorded:
Safavi
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum

yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
yes

The motion passed unanimously.
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REPORTS
Mayor’s Report
Mayor Stewart reported the State had issued draft guidelines for playgrounds and public
pools that were open for comment until tomorrow and planned to be implemented later
this week. He indicated the draft guidelines would allow 50 people or 50% capacity,
whichever was less, and would keep locker rooms closed, and would require commonly
touched areas to be cleaned every hour, and encouraged scheduling and reservations
to assist with contract tracing.
Councilor Sheldon questioned if the draft guidelines applied to private clubs.
City Attorney Guckenberger replied she believed the draft guidelines made a distinction
between outdoor and indoor pools but not between public and private pools.
Members of City Council
Councilor Blum had no report.
Councilor Sheldon had no report.
Councilor Gallagher had no report.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown had no report.
Councilor Weil reported he had received positive comments from his neighbors on the
Belleview median work.
Councilor Safavi had no report.
Councilor Sheldon asked if the next Council meeting would be in-person.
City Manager Thorsen replied that was correct.
City Manager & Staff
City Manager Thorsen reported staff had received inquiries from churches about
services and the State was working on new guidelines for Places of Worship.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie reported work on the High Line Canal underpass
was progressing and the portion under Colorado Boulevard would be done June 19th
while the portion under Hampden would be done in late July or August. He indicated the
June 2, 2020
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City was working with CDQT to get temporary striping for the Glenmoor traffic signal
due to the milling project scheduled for Belleview Avenue. He stated Alan Hutto
Memorial Commons had been seeded.
Councilor Sheldon asked about sod versus natural plants for the project.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie replied Alan Hutto Memorial Commons would be
about half sod and halt natural, with sod for the performance area, and John Meade
Park would be mostly natural and wetlands, with sod around the play area.
Director Cramer reported there had been an increase in building activity over the past
several weeks and most permits were still submitted and processed electronically.
Director Sager reported building permits were up 4% from last year, sales tax was up
12%, and she expected municipal court tines to also rebound as more court sessions
were held. She indicated she was working on submitting reimbursement requests to
Arapahoe County for the CARES Act funds and the deadline was June 1 0th
Chief Tovrea reported the Police Department was reviewing their use of force policies,
arrest control policy, and going over various scenarios with the officers. She added
officers were being vigilant and she was in contact with her peers throughout Arapahoe
County.
City Attorney
City Attorney Guckenberger reported Arapahoe County was waiting for guidance on
what would be covered as reimbursable expenses by the CARES Act from the Treasury
Department.
EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Pro Tem Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Weil to move into Executive
Session pursuant to C.R.S. Sections 24-6-402(4)(e) and 24-6-402(4)(f) for the purpose
of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations;
developing strategy for negotiations; and instructing negotiators and discussing
personnel matters concerning the City Manager position and immediately upon
conclusion adjourn.
The following votes were recorded:
Safavi
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum
June 2, 2020
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yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
5
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Vote on the Executive Session: 6 ayes. 0 nays. The motion passed.
The Executive Session began at 7:00 p.m.
The Executive Session ended at 7:19 p.m.

Russell 0. Stewart, Mayor

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 6b

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JESSICA SAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: THE 2019 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Should City Council approve the 2019 Financial Audit Statement?
DISCUSSION
Section 3.10 of the City Charter requires an independent audit of the financial affairs by a certified
public accountant that is experienced in municipal accounting. Attached as Exhibit A is the Audit
of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for year-end December 31, 2019,
including an unqualified audit letter written by the John Cutler of John Cutler & Associates. John
Cutler & Associates have audited the City’s financial statements since 2009. In the 2019 report,
Mr. Cutler stated:
“We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions. In our opinion, the financial statements.. .present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cherry Hills Village as of December 31, 2019, and the respective
changes in the financial position, and where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State
of America.”
STAFF ANALYSIS
Staff provided a Management Discussion and Analysis at the beginning of the audit report. A
portion of the financial summary for 2019 include:
• The assets of the City of Cherry Hills Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal
year 2019 by $40.3 million (net position). Of this amount, $19.7 million (unrestricted net
position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.
• At the close of fiscal year 2019, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $20.4 million, a decrease of $1.7 million in
comparison with the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to the expenditures of funds
1

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

•
•

in 2019 from the COP Fund for the construction of the new City Hall and the beginning
redevelopment of John Meade Park and Alan Hutto Memorial Commons. Approximately
57% or $11.6 million is available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned
fund balance).
Also, at the close of fiscal year 2019, the fund balance for the General Fund was $15.6
million, of which $3.6 million was committed to capital expenditures.
General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $1.1 million for the fiscal
year 2019 and actual expenditures were $793,643 less than budgeted expenditures.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54 was adopted by the City in
2011. Statement 54 clarified the definitions of governmental fund types, requiring the Capital
Fund to be combined with the General Fund in the financial statements. Staff will continue to
account for the General Fund and Capital Fund separately in all monthly financial reports.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the Audit of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for
year-end December 31, 2019.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: 2019 Audited Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT A

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Title Page
Table of Contents
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors’ Report
I\Ianagement’s Discussion and Analysis

a

-

h

Basic Financial Statements
Government Wide Financial Statements
-

Statement of Net Position

I

Statement of Activities

2

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet Governmental Funds

3

-

Statement of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in
Governmental Funds

Fund

Balances

-

4

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

5

Statement of Net Position Proprietary Fund Type

6

-

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund Type
Statement of Cash Flows

-

7

Proprietary Fund Type

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Notes to Financial Statements

-

8

Agency Fund

9
10

—

27

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(Continued)

PAGE
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)
Required Supplementary Information
General Fund

-

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

28

Parks and Recreation Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule

29

-

Combining and Individual Fund Schedules
Combining Balance Sheet

—

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

30

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances Nonmajor Governmental Funds

31

Land Donation Fund

32

—

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

—

Arapahoe County Open Space Fund
Conservation Trust Fund

—

—

Water and Sewer Fund
Agency Fund

—

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

33

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

CHV Charlou Park GID Fund
Capital Projects Fund

—

—

34

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

35

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

—

36

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

37

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

—

38

Agency Fund

39

STATE COMPLIANCE
Local Highway Finance Report

40

-

41

FINANCIAL SECTION

flA

JOHN CUTLER
& ASSOCIATES

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
Cit of Cherry Hills Village
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cherry Hills Village, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as hsted in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fan presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. \Ve conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In makmg those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparauon and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting pohcies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We bebeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opimons.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cherry Hills Village as of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where apphcable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

600 I7ni STREET SuiTE 2800 SOUTH

OExyER, COL0RAO0 $0202 TEL 303.634.2259 tax 303.496.4631

Other Matters
Required Supp/ernentap Leforrnatioiz
Accounting principles generally accepted in tbe United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison rnformation on pages 28 and 29 be presented to supplement tbe basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the requi.red supplementary informauon in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, xvhich consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knoxvledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the ted procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formtng opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund schedules and State Coinphance listed in
the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates dtrectly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconcthng such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual fund schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a xvhole.

-
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STAThNT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2019

HUSINISS

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Receivables
Property Taxes
Sales and Other
Accounts Receivable
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated
Capital Assets, Depreciated
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS

(OVERNMIZNTAI.

TYPk

ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES

S 19,337,281

S

‘lOTALS

1,164,313

1,803,974

2019
S 20,501,594

-

5,443,855
329,896

4,474,848

5,443,855
330,943
16,797,367

19,707,318

1,047
-

19,690,354

1,803,974

134,527

-

16,797,367

S

4,712,324
220,782
197,791

-

134,527

2018

13,683,250

106,589

13,789,839

8,643,869

57,530,150

1,271,949

58,802,099

57,647,286

559,514
65,144
20,346
40,000
487,240
36,282

559,514
65,144
20,346
40,000
487,240
36,282

978,744
179,160
26,974
40,000
193,564
55,530

315,000
11,486,156

315,000
11,486,156

1,052,156
11,432,189

13,009,682

13,009,682

13,958,317

5,442,727

5,442,727

4,712,324

16,203,134
1,671,305
328,000

1,165,360

19,122,342
1,142,903
330,000
42,966
19,711,479

1,271,949

$ 40,349,690

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabihties
Due within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Parks and Recreation
Restricted for Emergencies
Restricted for Pubhc Art
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

19,015,753
1,142,903

106,589
-

330,000

-.

42,966
18,546,119
S 39,077,741

-

S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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32,254

20,741,952
S

38,976,645

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2019

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities
General Government
Judicial

Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public \Vorks
Parks and Recreation
Interest on Long Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

EXPENSES

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING
CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR
GRANTS AND
GRANTS AND
SERVICES
CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

S

S

1,574,084

S

98,823

283,938

609,712

1,006,186

33,783
3,475,419
1,299,917
2,408,421

14,502
92,528

-

S

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

388,030

-

-

-

435,127

-

472,368
9,972,527

1,397,154

32,335

92,875

32,335

92,875

388,050

435,127

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Total Busmess-Tvpe Activities
Total Primary Government

$ 10,004,862

S

1,490,029

36,350

-

36,350

-

$

388,050

S

471,477

GENERAL REVENUES
Proper Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Interest
\liscellaneous
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION Ending

The accompanvmg notes are an integral part of the
2

financial statements.

________

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

S

(1,574,084)

BUSINESSTYPE
ACTIVITIES

S

185,115
396,474
(19,281)
(3,382,891)
(911,867)
(1,973,294)

-

TOTALS
2019

S

-

-

-

-

-

-

(472,368)
(7,752,196)

-

(7,752,196)

4,704,584
369,436
2,661,521
588,801
498,535
181,966

$

$

(1,816,313)
188,035
793,109
(16,892)
(3,149,350)
(755,020)
(2,155,168)
(509,235)

(7,752,196)

-

-

(1,574,084)
185,115
396,474
(19,281)
(3,382,891)
(911,867)
(1,973,294)
(472,368)

2018

(7,420,834)

96,890

96,890

58,214

96,890

96,890

58,214

96,890

(7,655,306)

(7,362,620)

4,704,584
369,436
2,661,521
588,801
522,043
181,966

4,607,972
335,343
2,504,618
541,160
536,555
111,623

-

-

-

-

23,508

9,004,843

23,508

9,028,351

8,637,271

1,252,647

120,398

1,373,045

1,274,651

37,825,094

1,151,551

38,976,645

37,701,994

39,077,741
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1,271,949

S

40,349,690

S

38,976,645

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2019

ASSETS
Casb and Investments
Resineted Casb and Investments
Due From Other Funds
Properiv Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables

General
Fund

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

S 15,779,733

S 1,209,162

-

S 18,945,604

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retamage Payable
Acenied Expenses
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits

S

105,672

-

Other
Governmental
Funds
S 2,348,386
33,000
-

38,141
45,456

-

-

-

13,696

-

-

S 3,948,673

S 1,995,293

S 2,464,983

S

S

S

81,083

303,143
65,144

67,616
-

-

-

-

-

1,770,974
224,319

2,725,815

-

20,346

S

-

80,701
2,679,899
284,440
120,831

TOTAL ASSETS

Capital
Projects
Fund

-

80,701
-

224,319
40,000

487,240

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
FUND EQUITY
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLO\VS, AND FUND EQUITY

613,258

81,083

2,679,899

2,724,687

372,966
3,599,052
11,680,429

1,142,903

15,652,447

1,142,903

1,544,305

2,094,907

S 18,945,604

5 3,948,673

5 1,995,293

S 2,464,983

-

331,935

38,141

1,544,305
-

2,094,907
-

-

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net ptisition are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities ate not financial resources and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Long-tenii habrhties are not due and payable in the current period and ate not reported th
the funds. These include COPs Payable (SlO,535,000), Premium on COPs Payable (S536,5l0),
Notes Payable (5374,77 1) accrued interest payable (S36,282), and Compensated Absences (S354,875).
Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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450,988

(X)VERNMEN1-\I.
EUNDS

2019

2018

S 19,33,281
1,8O3,94

S 18,669,715

305,020
5,443,855
329,896
134,527

4,474,848
305,020
4,712,324
196,071
220,782

S 27,354,553

S 28,578,760

S

S

559,514

977,735
179,160

65,144
20,346
305,020
40,000
487,240

26,974
305,020
40,000
193,564

1,477,264

1,722,453

5,442,727

4,712,324

4,012,178
4,741,955
11,680,429

6,215,323
5,897,666
10,030,994

20,434,562

22,143,983

30,480,617

28,220,986

(11,837,438)

(12,539,875)

S 39,077,741

S 37,825,094

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2019
-

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

General
Fund
REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Judicial
Communirv Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay

S 2,492,366
369,436
2,661,521
588,801
1,006,186
416,269
376,466
69,541
307,868

S 2,212,218

8,288,454

Capital
Projects
Fund
S

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

406,908
-

26,427

125,025
59,484

28,724
104,756

2,238,645

184,509

540,388

27,725

366,755

-

-

-

—

—

—

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,535,425

-

S

-

-

1,122,625
98,823
609,712
33,783
3,295,433
1,090,987

-

-

Other
Governmental
Funds

-

-

536,887

133,150
199,133
686,967

918,949
265,954
29,722

2,370,351

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

7,270,613

2,750,050

2,398,076

917,678

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER EXPENDITURES

1,017,841

(511,405)

(2,213,567)

(377,290)

16,997

(16,997)

16,997

(16,997)

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES

1,034,838

(528,402)

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

14,617,609

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the Issuance of Debt
Operating Transfers

-

-

-

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

FUND BALANCES, Ending

S 15,652,447

1,142,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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-

375,000

375,000

(2,213,567)

1,671,305
S

286
13,750

S

(2,290)

3,757,872

2,097,197

1,544,305

S 2,094,907

iO1A1.
(OVERNMENTAL

FUNDS
2019

2018

S 4,704,584
369,436
2,661,521

S 4,607,972
335,343
2,477,617
541,160
1,378,783
659,459
370,922

588,801
1,006,186
823,177
376,466
223,290
498,535

127,690
520,712

11,251,996

11,019,658

1,517,105

1,291,748
91,342
585,674
32,959

98,823
609,712
33,783
3,295,433
1,090,987
2,072,312

3,078,303
975,153
1,902,992

1,052,385
478,837
3,087,040

1,029,609
478,092
5,259,194

13,336,417

14,725,066

(2,084,421)

(3,705,408)

375,000

-

375,000

(1,709,421)

(3,705,408)

22,143,983

25,849,391

S 20,434,562

S 22,143,983

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2019

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:
Net Changes in Fund Balances Total Governmental Funds
-

S

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 1-lowever, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay S2,852,684 exceeded depreciation (5566,231)
and loss on disposal of assets (526,822) in the current period.

2,259,631

Debt proceeds are reported as financing sources in the governmental funds and increase fund
balance. In the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position and does not effect the statement of activities.

(375,000)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. These include debt principal payments of
Sl,052,385, amortization of premium S24,387, change in accrued compensated absences of (518,583),
and change in accrued interest of 519,248.
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The aecompanmg notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(1,709,421)

1,077,437
S

1,252,647

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
As of December 31, 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

2019
S

Total Crirrent Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2018

1,164,313
1,047

$

1,165,360

1,022,359

106,589

130,201

1,271,949

1,152,560

1,009

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,009

-

NET POSITION
Investment sn Capital Assets
Unrestricted

106,589
1,165,360

TOTAL NET POSITION

$

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the financial statements.
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1,020,639
1,720

1,271,949

130,201
1,021,350
S

1,151,551

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2019
2019
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

S

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

92,875

2018

S

83,987

92,875

83,987

6,435
2,288
23,612

18,044
9,217
23,612

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

32,335

50,873

OPERATING INCOME

60,540

33,114

23,508

15,843

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

23,508

15,843

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

84,048

48,957

36,350

25,100

120,398

74,057

1,151,551

1,077,494

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
General and Administrative
Depreciation

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income

Capital Contnbutions- Tap Fees
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

$

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,271,949

S

1,151,551

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2019
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

S

93,548
(9,732)
83,816

2018
S

82,897
(26,252)
56,645

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions

36,350

25,100

CASH FLOWS FROM IN\’ESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

23,508

15,843

143,674

97,588

1,020,639

923,051

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Ending
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCO\fE TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabibties
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

1,164,313

S

1,020,639

S

60,540

S

50,234

S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the frnancial statements.
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23,612

23,612

673
(1,009)
23,276

(234)

83,816

-

23,378
S

73,612

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AGENCY FUND- SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.7
December 31, 2019

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

S

92,606
103

TOTAL ASSETS

S

92,709

LIABILITIES
Due to Property Owners
Accounts Payable

S

12,709
80,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES

S

92,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILL\GE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTA CCOUNTING POLICIES
The City of Cherry Hills Vifiage, Colorado (the “City”) is a continuation of the City of Cherry
Hills Village after adoption of its Home Rule Charter in 1966. The City is governed by a
Mayor and six-member council elected by the residents.
The accounting pohcies of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. Following is a summary of
the more significant policies.
Reporting Entity
In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the City of Cherry Hills Village has
considered the possibility of inclusion of additional entities in its basic financial statements.
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on financial accountability. The City
is financially accountable for organizations that make up its legal entity. It is also financially
accountable for legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting majority of
the organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization
or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to
impose specific financial burdens on, the City. The City may also be financially accountable
for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent upon it.
Based on the application of these criteria, the following organization is included in the City’s
reporting entity.
Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3” Filing General Improvement District
The Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3 Filing General Improvement District (the
“District”) was established by voters in the November 2018 election. On January 19, 2019,
City Council passed an Ordinance declaring the District organized. The purpose of the
District is to obtain financing to be repaid with property taxes levied by the District. The
District is blended into the City’s financial statements as a special revenue fund. City Council
serves as the Board of the District and has significant operational responsibility of the
component unit.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Goveriimeiita/ activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from busiiiess-ljpe activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTA CCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct epe1lses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment.

Proram rei’em,es include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as enera/ rei’enues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current iiancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accountiIg. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be at’ai/able when they
are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
1-lowever, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, are recorded only when payment is due.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTA CCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
In the fund financial statements, the City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial

resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Parks aiid Recreation Fund accounts for allocated property tax revenues for parks
and recreation activities.
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the City’s proceeds from issuance of Certificates
of Participation and related capital expenditures.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Water Fund accounts for the financial activities associated with the provision of
water services.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:
The 4geuiq Fund accounts for resources to support the activities of the Special
Improvement District No. 7. The City holds all assets in a purely custodial capacity.
Cash and Investments
Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Investments are recorded at fair value.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than S5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Property and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
lachinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure (Sewer Lines)

50
10-25
5-10
25-50

years
years
years
years

Compensated Absences
The City allows its employees to accrue personal time off PTO). Employees are expected
to manage their PTO banks throughout the year, and banks should not exceed 200 hours.
Any excess leave accumulated (over 200 hours) at the end of the year shall be subject to
forfeiture except where the employee has been denied the opportunity to take vacation time,
or where special circumstances exist, and approval to exceed the limits has been authorized
by the City Manager. If approved, hours in excess of the 200 hour maximum will be paid at
100% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate during the year in which the PTO was
accrued. Upon separation of employment, up to 200 hours of unused PlO are paid out
using the employee’s regular hourly pay rate. Hours in excess of 200 are paid out at a rate
of 50% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate.
These compensated absences are recognized when due in the governmental fund pes. A
liabthtv has been recorded in the government-wide financial statements for the accrued
compensated absences.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTA CCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows or resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred on/f/ow of resonrces, represents a consumption of net position and
fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows or resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred in//ow ofresources, represents an acquisition of net position
and fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time.

Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied on November 1 and attach as an enforceable lien on property on
January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on February 28 and
June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and remits to the City on a
monthly basis.
Since property tax revenues are collected in arrears during the succeeding year, a receivable
and corresponding deferred revenue are recorded at December 31. As the tax is collected
in the succeeding year, the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue and the receivable is
reduced.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 1:

Fund Balance Classification
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound
to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective
governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund
financial statements are as follows:
•

Nonspendable This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. At December 31, 2019, the City does not report any nonspendable fund balances.

•

Restricted This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed
on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a
debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City has
classified the following amounts as restricted:

—

—

1.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

•

General Fund: Emergency Reserves of 330,000 are restricted because its use is
restricted by State Statute for declared emergencies. In addition, donations in the
amount of S42,966 are restricted for art purchases.
Capital Projects Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted for capital
expenditures.
Land Donation Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its use is
restricted by donors.
Open Space Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its use is
restricted by vote.
Conservation Trust Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its
use is restricted by State statute.
CRY Charlou Park GID Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted as its
use is restricted by vote.

Committed
This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes
the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was
employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes
contractual obhgations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically
committed for use in satisfl4ng those contractual requirements. As of December 31, 2019,
the City committed S3,599,052 of its General Fund fund balance to be used for capital
projects. In addition, the City has committed the fund balance in the Park and Recreation
Fund to be used for parks and open space projects and maintenance.
—
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
•

Assigned This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City Council
intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. As of
December 31, 2019, the City does not have any assigned fund balances.

•

Unassigned This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance
amounts.

—

—

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources,
and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively spend Unassigned resources.
Comparative Data
Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position
and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion would make the financial
statements unduly complex and difficult to read.
Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable
to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this
data.

NOTE 2:

STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
•

In October, the City staff submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

•

Pubhc hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY(Continued)
•

Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.

•

The City Administration is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within an’ fund. However, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

•

Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the City. Budgets for the General,
Capital Projects, and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Budgetary comparison
presented for the Enterprise Fund is presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis.
Capital outlay and debt payments are budgeted as expenditures.

•

Budgeted amounts in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as
amended by the City Council. All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado
governments may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A summary of deposits and investments as of December 31, 2019 follows:
Petty Cash
Cash Deposits
Investments

S

Total

351
2,437,099
19,960,724

$ 22,398.174

Cash and investments are reported in the financial statements as follows:
Governmental Activities
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities
Fiduciary Funds

-

—

Unrestricted
Restricted

Total

S 19,337,281
1,803,974
1,164,313
92.606
$ 22,398,174
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

—

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a hank failure, the government’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires
that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is
determined by state regulations. At December 31,2019, State regulatory commissioners have
indicated that all financial institutions holding deposits for the City are eligible public
depositories. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized
by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to
create a single collateral pooi for all public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by
another institution or held in trust for ali the uninsured public deposits as a group. The
market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits.
The City has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.
At December 31, 2019, the City had deposits with financial institutions with a carrying
amount of $2,437,099. The bank balances with the financial institutions were $2,438,826,
Of these balances, $573,340 was covered by federal depository insurance and 51,865,486
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the financial institutions name
(PD PA).
Investments
Interest Rate Risk
The City has a formal investment policy that limits interest rate risk by structuring the
investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing
operations, thereby avoiding the need to seli securities on the open market prior to maturity
and by investing operating funds primarily with durations of no longer than five years,
money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools.
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NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Credit Risk
Colorado statutes specify in which instruments the units of local government may invest
which includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Local government investment pools
\Vritten repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts

The above investments are authorized for all funds and fund types used by Colorado
municipalities.
Local Government Investment Pools
The City had invested $359,057 in the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Title
24, Article 75, Part 7 of the Colorado Revised Statues, to pool surplus funds for investment
purposes. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the requirements of
creating and operating the Pools. CSAFE reports its underlying investments at amortized
cost and is considered a qualifying external investment pool under GASB Statement 79.
CSAFE operates similar to money market funds where each share is equal in value to $1.00.
The fair value of the position in the poois is the same as the value of the pooled shares.
CSAFE is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. The designated custodial bank provides
safekeeping and depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal
functions. Substantially all securities are owned by the pools and held by the Federal Reserve
Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records
identify the investments owned by the pools. Investments of the pools comply with state
statues, consisting of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips, repurchase agreements, U.S.
Instrumentalities, Commercial Paper, Bank Deposits and Money Market Funds. CSAFE
does not have any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.
The City had invested $19,601,667 in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust
(ColoTrust) which has a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. ColoTrust is an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pooi surplus
funds and is regulated by the State Securities Commissioner. It operates similarly to a money
market fund and each share is ec1ual in value to SI .00. Investments consist of U.S. Treasury
and U.S. Agency securities, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury and
U.S. Agency securities. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository
services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions.
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NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Local Government Investment Pools (Continued)
Substantially aU securities owned are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account
maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records identify the investments
owned by the entities.
ColoTrust is not a 2a7-hke external investment pool. The unit of account is each share held,
and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by
the number of shares held. The government-investor does not “look through” the pool to
report a pro rata share of the pool’s investments, receivables, and payables.
Restricted Cash and Investments
At December 31, 2019, cash and investments in the amount of S1,770,974 is restricted for
capital expenditures in the Capital Projects Fund and cash in the amount of S33,000 is
restricted in the CH\T Charlou Park GID fund as the debt reserve requirement per the Series
2019 Note agreement.

NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets acuvltv for the year ended December 31, 2019 is summarized below:
Balances
12/31/2018
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets, not depreciated

S

Capital Assets, depreciated
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets, depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciatson
Total Capital Assets, depreciated, Net
Governmental Activines,
Capital Assets, Net

$

15,169,580
4.537.738
19.707.318

Additions

S

Balances
12/31/2019

Deletions

-

S

1.303.781
1.303.781

-

7,980,718
67,841
395,000
2.86 1.807
11,305.366

-

-

275.807
5,762.635

34,806
34.806

523,841
49,573
117,201
2.10 1.083
2.79 1.698
8.513.668

173,870
53,895
39,500
298.966
566.231
5.196.404

28,220,986

20

5,280,302
206,526

$

6,500,185

$

15,169,580
1.627,787
16,797,367

4.213.732
4.213.732

13,261,020
274,367
395,000
3.102.808.
17.033.195

-

-

697,711
103,468
156,701
2.392.065
3.349.945
13,683.250

-

-

-

7.984
7.984
26,822

$

4,240,554

$

3MB0,617

______

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

NOTE 4:

CAPITALASSETS(Continued)
Balances
i/.3±L018
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, depreciated
Sewer Lines
Total Capital Assets, depreciated

S

708.364
708.364

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer Lines
Total Accumulated Depreciation

578.163
578.163

Business-Type Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

130.201

Additions

Balances
12/31/2019

Deletions

S

S

S

-

-

-

23.612
23.612

708.364
708.364

601.775
601.775

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:
Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Total

NOTE 5:

S

75,562
179,986
208,930
101,753

$

566,231

LONG-TERMDEBT
Governmental Activities
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the governmental activities for the
year ended December 31, 2019.
Balance
12/31/2018
General Obligation Debt:
2017 COPs
S 10,830,000
2017 COPs Premium
560,897
Debt from Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements:
2019 GID GO Note Payable
Other General Obligations:
South Suburban Obligation
757,156

Additions

S

375,000

-

Compensated Absences
Total

-

336,292
$ 12,484.345

-

-

18.583

$
21

Payments
S

Balance
12/31/2019

295,000 S 10,535,000
24,387
536,510

229
757,156
-

Due In
One Year
S

374,771
-

354.875

393.583 $i,ll6,272 $ 11,801,156 $

305,000
-

10,000
-

-

315.000

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
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NOTE 5:

LONG-TERM DEBT(Continued)
General Obligation Debt
2017 Certificates of Participation (COPs)
On February 28,2017, the City issued Certificates of Participation, Series 2017, in the amount
of $11,395,000. Proceeds are used to finance the construction of buildings and improvements
to City owned park property. The certificates carry interest rates ranging from 2% to S% per
annum. Principal payments are due annually on November 15 and interest payments are due
on May 15 and November 15 through 2041. These Certificates are rated AA+ by S&P Global
Ratings.
The Certificates have been issued in connection with a lease of the property from the City to
LMB Bank NA., and a lease back to the City from the UMB Bank NA. This lease is subject
to annual appropriation by the City. If the Lease is not renewed because of an Event of
Nonappropriation has occurred or is terminated because and Event of Default has occurred,
the City wiU be required to vacate or surrender possession of the Leased Property.
Certificates maturing in the years 2017 through 2026 are not subject to redemption prior to
their respective maturity dates. Certificates maturing in the year 2027 and thereafter are
subject to redemption at the option of the City on December 1, 2026 and any date thereafter
at a redemption price equal to par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. Certificates
maturing on December 1, 2036 are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by
lot on December 1 of each year at a redemption price equal to the principal amount plus
accrued interest to the redemption date.
Debt from Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
2019 GID General Obligation Note Payable
On March 26, 2019, the Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3 Filing General Improvement
District (the District), a blended component unit of the City, issued the General Obligation
Note, Series 2019, in the amount of $375,000. Proceeds are used to finance the construction
fund improvements related to underground existing overhead electrical distribution lines.
The Series 2019 Note carries interest at a rate of 5.5O%. Principal payments are due annually
on December 1 and interest payments are due on June 1 and December 1 through 2040. In
the event of default, the interest rate of the Series 2019 Note shall be adjusted to 8.50%.
The Series 2019 Note are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District
on December 1, 2029, and any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount of the Series 2019 Note to be redeemed, without redemption premium, plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
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NOTE 5:

LONG-TERM DEBT(Continued)
Other Obligations
South Suburban Obligation
The City initiated exclusion from the South Suburban Parks and Recreation District (the
“District’). The resulting litigation produced an order from the District Court dated
November 2004. The order requires the City to pay the District S9,660,838 for the
conveyance and transfer of facilities, including water rights, parks, trails, and other
considerations. The City’s appeals process ended in November 2009 with a final decision by
the Colorado Supreme Court, denying the appeal. The City is required to make annual
principal and interest payments, beginning in December 2006 through 2019. This obligation
was paid in full in December 2019.
Compensated Absences
Compensated Absences are being paid from resources generated by the General Fund.
Annual debt service requirements for the general obligation debt at December 31, 2019 are
as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Principal

Interest

Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
20252029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2041

S

Total Debt Service Requirements

S1O,535,000 $ 5,745,874 $16,280,874

23

305,000 S 435,388 S 740,388
315,000
426,238
741,238
325,000
416,788
741,788
335,000
407,036
742,036
345,000
741,988
396,988
1,990,000
1,709,438
3,699,438
2,460,000
1,236,750
3,696,750
3,060,000
637,936
3,697,936
1,400.000
1,479.312
79.312
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NOTE 5:

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Annual debt service requirements for the direct borrowings and direct placements at
December 31, 2019 are as follows:
Year Ended December 31.

NOTE 6:

Principal

Interest

Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040

$

10,000 $
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
75,000
95,000
125,000
29,771

20,625 $
20,075
19,525
18,975
18,425
81,125
58,850
29,975
1,650

30,625
30,075
29,525
28,975
28,425
156,125
153,850
154,975
31.421

Total Debt Service Requirements

S

374,771 $

269,225 $

643,996

RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS
Police Pension Plan
Plan Description The City contributes to a single employer money purchase pension plan
(Plan) on behalf of police officers. All full time, paid police employees of the City are
members of the Plan.
-

Funding Policy -The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amended by the City Council. Both the City and the employee contribute 8.O%
of the employee’s covered salary. Employees vest in 25% of the City contributions after one
year of employment and an additional 25% each year thereafter. Employees fully vest after
four x’ears of participation in the Plan. During the year ending December 31, 2019 the City
contributed S188,953 to the Plan, equal to the required contributions. AU Plan assets are
managed by the International City/County Management Association Retirement
Corporation.
Non-Sworn Managers Pension Plan
The City contributes to a single-employer defined contribution money purchase pension plan
(the “Plan”) on behalf of non-sworn managers. All non-sworn managers are required to
participate in the Plan. The contribution requirements are established and may be amended
by the City Council. The city is required to contribute 5°/s the employee’s covered salary and
employees contribute I l% of covered salary. Employees fully vest in the Plan immediately.
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NOTE 6:

RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the City contributed $35,166 to the Plan, equal
to the required contributions. All Plan assets are managed by the International City/County
Management Association Retirement Corporation.
Deferred 457 Compensation Plan
The City has a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. Participation in the Plan is optional for employees. The City
matches the contribution of participating employees up to 3% of sworn police officer salaries
and up to 5% of other non-management employee salaries. Total contributions to the Plan
during the year ended December 31, 2019 were $296,968. The Plan is administered by the
International City/County Management Association Retirement Corporation.

NOTE 7:

CONSOLIDATION OF WATERAND SANITATIONDISTRICTS
The City has taken action to dissolve certain water and sanitation districts and other entities
which have provided services to areas within the City limits. The City will provide water and
sanitation services to these and future areas through service contracts with the Board of
Water Commissioners to the City and County of Denver (Denver.
Denver
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Denver to provide water service
within the City’s service area, even though only part of the City is being served at this time.
Although the City retains legal tide to the water distribution facilities, Denver is responsible
for all operations and maintenance, including all replacements of the facilities. Denver bills
users within the City directly.
Englewood
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Englewood to provide water within
two small areas of the City. Englewood is responsible for all operations and maintenance,
including all replacements of the distribLition facilities within the service areas and bills users
directly.
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NOTE 8:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Special Improvement District No. 7
In 2000, the Special Improvement District No. 7 (the “District”) issued S595,000 Special
Assessment Bonds, Taxable Series 2000A and $930,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Tax
Exempt Series 2000B. These bonds were issued to finance improvements within the District.
The bonds accrued interest at rates ranging from 5.8% to 8.75°/o per year.
The Series 2000A bonds were paid in full as of December 31, 2011. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the District issued $585,000 Special Improvement District Revenue
Refunding Note, Series 2012 to advance refund the Special Assessment Bonds, Tax Exempt
Series 2000B. The note accrues interest at a rate of 2.6% per year. Interest payments are due
semi-annually on June 15 and December 15. Principal payments on the note is due annually
on December 15, through 2020.
The City is not obligated for this debt and is only acting as an agent for the property owners
in collecting assessments and paying the required debt service. The activities of the District
are recorded in the City’s Agency Fund and the outstanding debt is not recorded on the City’s
financial statements. Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2019 totaled S60,000.

Denver Christian Schools
In October 2003, the City issued Denver Christian Schools Project Revenue Bonds to
provide financial assistance to a private sector entity to acquire equipment and to construct
and renovate certain buildings and educational facilities deemed to be in the public interest.
Neither the City, State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for

the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as a liabilit in the City’s
financial statements. Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2019 totaled S718,411.

South Metro Fire Rescue Authority
The City entered into an MOE with South Metro Fire Rescue Authority in February of 2011
for the planning and design of a public safety facility.
In September of 2011, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Authority to construct, own, and operate a common public safety facility. Ownership of the
facility will be determined by a calculation of the aggregate amount of contributions made by
each party to the Agreement. Upon completion of the construction, ongoing operating costs
will be calculated based on the percentage share of ownership interest. The original
Agreement expired in December 31, 2012 and automatically renews upon the same terms
and conditions for one-year periods.
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NOTE 8:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
The City began construction of the facility in March of 2012 and the construction was
substantially completed by December 31, 2012. The City’s Police Department along with the
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority moved into the new facility in January of 2013. The City’s
portion of the building cost is recorded as Buildings on the City’s government-wide financial
statements.
Under the terms of the operations agreement, South Metro Fire Rescue Authority is
responsible for paying 50 percent of the building’s utility costs and 20 percent of the building
telephone and internet services. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the South I\ietro
Fire Rescue Authority paid $26,807 to the City for reimbursement of these operating costs
under the terms of the agreement.
Tabor Amendment
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which
has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific
requirements of state and local government. On November 5, 1996, voters within the City
approved the collection, retention and expenditure of the full revenues generated by the City
in 1996 and subsequent years for street improvement projects, capital projects, basic
municipal services and/or lawful municipal purposes, notwithstanding the provisions of the
Amendment.
The City has established an emergency reserve, representing 3°/o of qualifying expendittires,
as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2019, the emergency reserve of $330,000
was recorded in the General Fund.

NOTE 9:

SUBSEOUENTEVENT
COVID-19

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), economic uncertainties may have
economic implications on the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
City. The duration of these uncertainties and the ultimate financial effects cannot be
estimated at this time.
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CITY OF Cl-TERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

Positive
(Negative)

ACTUAL

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest

S

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public \X’orks
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER EXPENDITURES

NET Cl-lANGE IN
FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Begiiining
FUND BALANCE, Ending

S

2,492,366

500,000
961,200
361,402
346,500
92,900
113,200

2,490,405
295,000
2,000,000
500,000
961,200
361,402
346,500
92,900
113,200

7,160,607

7,160,607

8,288,454

1,127,847

8,421,680

1,866,214

1,868,286
88,520
626,625

745,661
(10,303)
16,913
2,451

1,224,006

997,011

36,234
3,141,157
997,011

1,122,625
98,823
609,712
33,783
3,295,433
1,090,987

(154,276)
(93,976)

133,150
199,507
983,267

133,150
199,507
973,766

133,150
199,133
686,967

374
286,799

128,250
203,754
535,197

8,071,685

8,064,256

7,270,613

793,643

6,854,638

(911,078)

(903,649)

1,017,841

1,921,490

1,567,042

16,997

16,997

88,520
626,625
36,234
3,141,157

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers In

2,490,405
295,000
2,000,000

-

-

S

S

369,436
2,661,521
588,801
1,006,186
416,269
376,466
69,541
307,868

1,961
74,436
661,521
88,801
44,986
54,867
29,966
(23,359)
194,668

-

S

2,491,738
335,343
2,477,617
541,160
1,378,783
424,880
370,922
112,729
288,508

91,342
585,674
32,959
3,078,303
975,153

-

(911,078)

(903,649)

1,034,838

1,938,487

1,567,042

14,613,786

14,613,786

14,617,609

3,823

13,050,567

S 13,702,708

S 13,710,137

S 15,652,447

1,942,310

5 14,617,609

See the accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
PARKS AND RECREATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

ORIGINAL

FINAL

BUDGET

BUDGET

ACTUAL

S 2,222,260

S 2,222,260

S 2,212,218

30,000

26,427

(10,042)
(3,573)

$ 2,116,234

30,000
2,252,260

2,252,260

2,238,645

(13,615)

2,146,480

1,147,837

1,119,971

1,093,490

26,481

887,706

28,842
47,535

28,842
47,535

20,958
29,846

7,884
17,689

22,981
21,340

Contractual Services

130,397

130,397

102,426

27,971

96,301

Maintenance
Other

59,174
340,056

59,174
340,056

44,249
244,456

14,925
95,600

77,723
285,715

Capital Outlay

30,000

30,000

29,722

278

3,446

1,163,737

1,163,737

918,949

244,788

901,359

21,624

21,624

265,954

(244,330)

274,338

2,969,202

2,941,336

2,750,050

191,286

2,570,909

(716,942)

(689,076)

(511,405)

(204,901)

(19,000)

(19,000)

(16,997)

(2,003)

(735,942)

(708,076)

(528,402)

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES
Property Taxes

Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

S

30,246

EXPENDITURES
Current
Personal Services

Supplies and Materials
Utilities

Debt Service
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER EXPENDITURES

(424,429)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers Out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

1,615,156
S

879,214

S

1,615,156

1,671,305

907,080

S 1,142,903

See the accompanymg independent auditors report.
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177,671

-

(424,429)
2,095,734

S

177,671

S 1,6l,305

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO

NONMAJOR GOVERNJENTAL FUNDS
COfflINING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2019

AR.PAI1( )1
I .A\D

C()U”711

DON:\T1ON

OPEN SPACE

TRUST

PARK Gil)

FUNI)

FUN1)

FUNI)

FUND

CONSFRVATION CIIV CI L\IUX)U

ASSETS
Cash and Investments

S

426,731

Restncted Cash and Investments

-

Accounts Receivable
Property Taxes Receivable

1,465,532

S

-

45,456

416,686

S

-

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue

-

-

38,141

$

472,187

S

1,465,532

S

416,686

S

S

6,234

S

57,893
224,319
40,000

S

3,489

S

-

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

6,234

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

S

-

322,212

-

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

39,437

33,000

-

-

TOTALASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

S

-

-

3,489

-

110,578

-

38,141

-

465,953

1,143,320

413,197

72,437

465,953

1,143,320

413,197

72,437

472,187

S

1,465,532

See the accompanvmg independent auditors report.
30

S

416,686

S

110,578

1CiI’ALS
2019

2018

S 2,348,386
33,000
45,456
38,141

S

S 2,464,983

S

2,496,829

$

S

135,313
224,319

67,616
224,319

2,496,829
-

-

-

40,000

40,000

331,935

399,632

38,141

2,094,907

2,097,197

2,094,907

2,097,197

S 2,464,983

S

2,496,829

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2019

A1{APAI ION

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

I AND

COUNTY

DONATION
FUND

OPEN SPACE
FUND

$

TOTAL REVENUES

157,831
25,276
26,925

S

210,032

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Parks and Recreation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest

173,455
3,448
72,466

CONSERVATION CI IV (ZI L\RIX)U

TRUST
FUND

S

75,622

S

-

-

-

5,365

249,369

80,987

73,781

174,579

-

366,755
-

288,527
286
13,750

-

-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

366,755

73,781

174,579

302,563

(156,723)

175,588

(93,592)

(302,563)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from the Issoance of Debt

-

-

(156,723)

175,588

(93,592)

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

622,676

967,732

506,789

Pnor Penod Ad1ustment

-

-

S

465,953

S

1,143,320

See the accompanvmg independent auditors’ report.
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375,000

-

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, Ending

PARK OlD
FUND

72,437

-

-

S

413,197

S

72,437

2019
S

2018

406,908
28,724
104,756

$

540,388

317,443

366,755
536,887

51,622
511,226

286
13,750

-

-

917,678

562,848

(377,290)

(245,405)

375,000

-

(2,290)

(245,405)

2,097,197

2,518,609
(176,007)

-

S

234,579
14,961
67,903

2,094,907

S

2,097,197

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
LAND DONATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

S

S

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest
Intergovernmental
Other
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET C1-LkNGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

S

8,500
187,800

8,500
187,800

S

26,925
157,831

S

18,425
(29,969)

S

17,547
5,950

5,000

5,000

25,276

20,276

12,386

201,300

201,300

210,032

8,732

35,883

380,095

391,300

366,755

24,545

51,622

380,095

391,300

366,755

24,545

51,622

(178,795)

(190,000)

(156,723)

33,277

(15,739)

320,085

320,085

622,676

141,290

S

130,085

S

465,953

See the accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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302,591
S

335,868

638,415
S

622,676

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
ARAPAHOE COUNTY OPEN SPACE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Open Space Shareback
Other
Interest

S

TOTAL REVENUES

160,000
43,000
10,000

ACTUAL
S

173,455
3,448
72,466

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
S

13,455
(39,552)
62,466

2018
ACTUAL
S

163,543
2,575
46,740

213,000

249,369

36,369

212,858

245,000

73,781

171,219

53,642

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

245,000

73,781

171,219

53,642

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

(32,000)

175,588

207,588

159,216

1,162,949

967,732

(195,217)

984,523

EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

(176,007)

FUND BALANCE, Ending

S 1,130,949

See the

accornpanvmg

S 1,143,320

independent auditors’ report.
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S

12,371

S

967,732

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

S

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

S

FINAL
BUDGET

190,000
1,700

S

190,000
1,700

ACTUAL
S

75,622
5,365

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
S

(114,378)
3,665

2018
ACTUAL
$

65,086
3,616

191,700

191,700

80,987

(110,713)

402,500

372,500

174,579

197,921

457,584

(210,800)

(180,800)

(93,592)

87,208

(388,882)

480,424

480,424

506,789

26,365

895,671

269,624

S

299,624

S

413,197

See the accompanvmg rndependent auditors report.
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S

113,573

68,702

S

506,789

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CI-W CHARLOU PARK GID FUND
BUDGETARY CO\fPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest

S

550,000

FINAL
BUDGET

$

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(LNDER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

S

375,000

302,563

72,437

(550,000)

(360,964)

(302,563)

72,437

550,000

375,000

375,000

-

S

See the accompanvmg independent auditors’ report.

-

-

72,437

-

-

35

72,437

550,000

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
S

S

286
13,750

-

FUND BAL-’tNCE, Ending

288,527

286
13,750

-

TOTAL EXPENSES

360,964

ACTUXL

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

72,437

-

S

72,437

S

72,437

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest
Other

S

75,000
-

TOTAL REVENUES

$

59,484
125,025

S

(15,516)
125,025

S

134,055
-

75,000

184,509

109,509

134,055

30,000

27,725

2,275

16,120

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Debt Issuance Costs

-

Capital Outlay

-

-

-

4,023,683

2,370,351

1,653,332

4,720,551

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4,053,683

2,398,076

1,655,607

4,736,671

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER EXPENDITURES

(3,978,683)

(2,213,567)

1,765,116

(4,602,616)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt

-

-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

(3,978,683)

(2,213,567)

1,765,116

4,423,087

3,757,872

(665,215)

-

-

FUND BALANCE, Ending

S

444,404

$ 1,544,305

See the accompanvmg rndependent auditors report.
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-

-

S 1,099,901

-

(4,602,616)
8,184,481
176,007
S 3,757,872

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLGE, COLORADO
WATER AND SEWER FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES
Tap Fees
Sewer Repairs and Maintenance Fees
Miscellaneous
Interest

S

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Legal Fees
Contractual Services

Repairs and Maintenance
Other
Depreciation Expense
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET INCOME

S

5,000
69,660

S

2,300
8,000

23,508

31,350
23,215
(2,300)
15,508

84,960

152,733

67,773

124,930

2,500
20,000

338
1,950

2,162
18,050

292
8,925

500,000
1,000

6,435

493,565
1,000

18,044

23,612

23,612

547,112

32,335

(462,152)

120,398

-

S

-

S

S

25,100
83,420
567
15,843

-

23,612

514,777

50,873

582,550

74,057

1,151,551

1,077,494

1,271,949

$ 1,151,551

See the accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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S

-

NET POSITION, Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

36,350
92,875

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
AGENCY FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
RE VENUES
Assessment Revenue
Interest on Assessments
Interest Income

S

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Treasurer’s Fees
Debt Service
Principal
Interest Expense
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

S

62,894
3,952
500

FINAL
BUDGET
S

62,894
3,952
500

ACTUAL

S

73,280
4,375
1,891

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
S

10,386
423
1,391

2018
ACTUAL
S

63,330
6,048
629

67,346

67,346

79,546

12,200

70,007

668

668

777

(109)

694

80,000
8,000

80,000
8,000

80,000
3,639

4,361

80,000
4,698

88,668

88,668

84,416

4,252

85,392

(21,322)

(21,322)

(4,870)

16,452

(15,385)

21,322

21,322

17,578

(3,744)

32,963

-

S

-

S

12,708

See the accompanying mdependent auditors’ report.
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-

S

12,708

S

17,578

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLGE, COLORADO
AGENCY FUND
STATENT OF CI-IANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2019

BXLANCE
DECFJ”JBER 31,
2018
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Due from Others

S

TOTAL ASSETS

S

LIABILITIES
Due Property Owners
Accounts Payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

ADDITIONS

17,475
103

S

17,578

S

79,547

S

159,547

See the accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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4,416

S

92,606
103

S

92,709

-

S

79,547
80,000

-

17,578

S

-

17,578

S

79,547

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31.
DEDUCTIONS
2019

4,416

84,416

12,709
80,000

-

$

84,416

S

92,709

STATE COMPLIANCE

Financial Planning 02/01
Form # 350-050-36

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to averace 380 hours annually.

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
This Information From The Records Of (example City of_ or County of Prepared By:
City of Cherry Hills Village
Phone:
-

City or County:
Arapahoe
YEAR ENDING
December 2019
Jessica Sager
303-783-2730

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE
A.

ITEM

B.

Local
i%lotor-Fuel
Ti

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Local
Motor-Vehicle
Tn s

C. Receipts from
State Highway-

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway

It,

Total receipts available
Minus amount used for collection expenses
Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
Minus amount used for mass transit
Remainder used for highway purposes

—

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
Local highway disbursements:
1. Capital outlay (from page 2)
2. Maintenance:
3. Road and street services:
a. Traffic control operations
b. Snow and ice removal
c. Other
0
d. Total (a. through c.)
4. General administration & miscellaneous
5. Highway law enforcement and safety
0
6. Total ( 1 through 5)
0 B. Debt service on local obligations:
0
1. Bonds:
0
a. Interest
1,431,117
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
2. Notes:
3 14,59R
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
3. lotal (1.c+2.c)
Payments to State for highways
Payments to toll facilities
Total disbursements (A.6 + 8.3 + C + D)

ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:
1. Local highway-user taxes
a. Motor Fuel (from Item I.A.5.)
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)
c. Total (a.+b.)
2. General fund appropriations
3. Other local imposts (from page 2)
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)
5. Transfers from toll facilities
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:
a. Bonds Original Issues
b. Bonds Refunding Issues
c. Notes
d. Total (a. + b. + c.)
7. Total (1 through 6)
B. Private Contributions
C. Receipts from State government
(from page 2)
D. Receipts from Federal Government
(

-

.

-

-

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Opening Debt
Amount Issued

Redemptions

0
II

0
U
0
1,745,715

Closing Debt

A. Bonds (Total)
I._Bonds_(Refunding_Portion)
B. Notes (Total)

0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE
A. Beginning Balance
0
.

.otes and U..

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

B. Total Receipts Z. Total Disbursement
1.745.715 I
1,745.715 I

PREVIOUS EDIIIONS UISSOLEIE

D. Ending Balance
0

E. Reconciliation
(0)

(Next Page)

0000000D8G.xls
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STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mrn/yy):
December 2019

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES DETAIL
-

ITEM
A.3. Other local imposts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments
b. Other local imposts:

AMOUNT

1. Sales Taxes
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees
3. Liens
4. Licenses
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other
6. Total (1. through 5.)
c. Total (a. + b.)

ITEM
&.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Interest on investments
b. Traffic Fines & Penalities

434,106
434,106
434.106

c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

AMOUNT

Parking Garage Fees
Parking Meter Fees
Sale of Surplus Property
Charges for Services
Other Misc. Receipts
Other
Total (a. through h.)

0
Carry forward to page

Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
C. Receipts from State Government
1. Highway-user taxes

1)

ITEM
). Receipts from Federal Government
1. FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)

2. State general funds
3. Other State funds:
a. State bond proceeds
b. Project Match
c. Motor Vehicle Registrations
d. Other Seci)
e. Other (Specify)
f. Total (a. through e.)
4. Total(l.+2.+3.f)

23.123
23,123
314,598

2. Other Federal agencies:
a. Forest Service
b. FEMA
c. HUD
d. Federal Transit Admin
e. U.S. Corps of Engineers
f Other Federal
g. Total (a. through f.)
3. Total(l.+2.g)

0
forward to page I)

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES
ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)

-

DETAIL
OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)

TOTAL
(c)

A.I. Capital outlay:

a. Right-Of-Way Costs
b. Engineering Costs
c. Construction:
(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity Improvements
(3). System Preservation
(4). System Enhancement & Operation
(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines l.a. + lb. + l.c.5)

0
0

10,695

0
10,695

458,352

0
0
458,352

458,352
469,047

0
458,352
469,047
Carry forward to page 1)

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.I-05)

PREVIOUS EDitIONS OBSOLETE
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
YE

S

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEI: 6c

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

LAURA GILLESPIE, CITY CLERK

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 18, SERIES 2020; APPOINTING NEW MEMBERS TO THE
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSION
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Shall City Council approve Resolution 18, Series 2020; appointing new members to the Cherry
Hills Village Art Commission (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
CHVAC Commissioner Elaine Asarch resigned in January 2020. Additionally, Commissioners
Ann Polumbus and Gay Warren have served on the Commission since 2011 and wish to resign.
Both Commissioners Polumbus and Warren offered to serve until replacement members could be
found.
Applications were solicited in the March and May issues of the Village Crier and on the City
website. Three applications were received. Mayor Pro Tern Brown and Councilor Gallagher
reviewed the applications and recommend appointment of all three applicants.

Commissioner Polumbus has submitted her resignation effective June 16, 2020 pending City
Council’s appointment of a new member. Commissioner Warren has submitted her resignation
effective at the end of her current term on July 21, 2020.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown and Councilor Gallagher recommend the appointment of Shenley Smith
and Ann Marie Morrow effective June 16, 2020 and the appointment of Sarah Anderson
effective July 21, 2020.

Resolution 18, Series 2020 will result in the following terms on the CHVAC:
c;:\Cit’, Council\M’I’G-MENI()

Member
Kathie Finger
Alison Lynch
Shenley Smith
Pamela Hall
Ann Marie Morrow
Sarah Anderson
David Schmidt

Term End
May 2021
May 2021
May 2022
May 2022
May 2022
May 2023
May 2023

RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve Resolution 18, Series 2020; appointing new members to the Cherry Hills
Village Art Commission.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Resolution 18, Series 2020

;:\Cit- Councd\fIG-ME1\1O

EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION NO. 18
SERIES 2020

INTRODUCED BY:
SECONDED BY:

A RESOLUTION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
APPOINTING NEW MEMBERS TO THE CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSION
WHEREAS, Section 3.1 of the City of Cherry Hills Village City Charter authorizes the
City Council to “delegate to board and commissions.. .such functions, powers and authority of
the City as it deems proper and advisable”; and
WHEREAS, the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission (the “Commission”) was
established by Resolution 6, Series 2011 and expanded by Resolution 10, Series 2017; and
WHEREAS, Commissioner Elaine Asarch resigned in January 2020; and
WHEREAS, Commissioners Ann Polumbus and Gay Warren have both served on
the Commission since 2011 and wish to resign but offered to serve until replacement
members could be appointed; and
WHEREAS, applications were solicited in the Village Crier and through the City
website; and
WHEREAS, staff received three applications; and
WHEREAS, Commissioner Polumbus has submitted her resignation effective June
16, 2020 pending City Council’s appointment of a new member; and
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren has submitted her resignation effective at the
end of her current term on July 21, 2020; and
WHEREAS, Mayor Pro Tem Katy Brown and Councilor Mike Gallagher reviewed the
applications; and
WHEREAS, Mayor Pro Tern Brown and Councilor Gallagher recommend
appointment of Shenley Smith and Ann Marie Morrow to the Commission effective June 16,
2020; and
WHEREAS, Mayor Pro Tern Brown and Councilor Gallagher recommend
appointment of Sarah Anderson to the Commission effective July 21, 2020; and
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint new members to the Committee as
set forth below.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE THAT:
The City Council hereby makes the following appointment to the City of Cherry Hills
Village Art Commission:
Resolution 18, Series 2020
Page 1 of 2

Name

Term Begins

Term Expires

Shenley Smith
Ann Marie Morrow
Sarah Anderson

June 16, 2020
June 16, 2020
July 21, 2020

3 Tuesday in May 2022
31d
Tuesday in May 2022
3Id
Tuesday in May 2023

This Resolution shall be effective immediately.
Introduced, passed and adopted at the
regular meeting of City Council this
day
of
2020, by a vote of yes and no.
—

,

—

—

(SEAL)

Russell 0. Stewart, Mayor

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

Kathie B. Guckenberger, City Attorney

Resolution 18, Series 2020
Page 2 of 2

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 6d

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

EMILY BLACK, PARKS AND RECREATION COORDINATOR

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 19, SERIES 2020; ACCEPTING AN ANONYMOUS DONATION
ON BEHALF OF THE CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE PARKS DIVISION
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Shall City Council approve Resolution 19, Series 2020, accepting an anonymous donation on
behalf of the Cherry Hills Village Parks Division (Exhibit A)?

DISCUSSION
In April, the Parks Division was contacted regarding a donor interested in anonymously
contributing to the redevelopment of John Meade Park. Staff worked with the donor’s
representative to present various types and levels of funding opportunities for the park.
Ultimately, the donor was most interested in providing a donation for the play area (Exhibit B).
The City received a $500,000.00 grant from Arapahoe County Open Space that funds the
majority of the cost for the play area. That grant amount allocated $8,000 for a natural play
feature.
However, staff and the Parks, Trails, and Recreation Commission have chosen to
substitute a larger play feature (a sideways tree climber) in place of the prefabricated hollow log
that appears in the original plans and grant application. Since the sideways tree climber,
foundations and installation did not appear in the Arapahoe County Open Space grant
application, it was anticipated that the remaining play area cost ($26,421.29) would be paid from
the existing park budget authorized by City Council.
In late May, the donor’s representative confirmed that the donor would like to contribute the
remaining $26,421.29 for the procurement and installation of the sideways tree climber that will
not be paid for with existing grant funding. The Cherry Hills Village Home Rule Charter,
Section 13.7, titled Bequests, Gifts and Donations, authorizes the City Council to receive
bequests, gifts and donations of all kinds of property on behalf of the City for public, charitable
or other purposes and to do all things and acts necessary to carry out the purposes of such
Page 1 of 2

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

bequests, gifts and donations.
It is important to recognize the City has not received any favors or offered any favors in
exchange for this gift.
BUDGET IMPACT
This contribution will be deposited into the Parks Fund 30, and will offset a portion of the
amount authorized by City Council ($573,000) to be spent from that fund for the redevelopment
of John Meade Park.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19, Series 2020 to accept the anonymous donation to
be used by the Parks Division to fund the remainder of the cost for procurement and installation
of a sideways tree climber feature within the play area that is not otherwise grant-funded.
RECOMMENDED MOTION (if removed from the consent agenda)
“I move to approve Resolution 19, Series 2020 accepting an anonymous donation on behalf of
the Cherry Hills Village Parks Division for the redevelopment of John Meade Park.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Resolution 19, Series 2020
Exhibit B: Play Area Funding Opportunity for John Meade Park

Page 2 of 2

____,2020,

EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION NO. 19
SERIES 2020

INTRODUCED BY:
SECONDED BY:

A
RESOLUTION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
ACCEPTING AN ANONYMOUS DONATION ON BEHALF OF THE CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
PARKS DIVISION
WHEREAS, the Cherry Hills Village Parks Division received a generous offer of a donation
from an anonymous donor to be used for the redevelopment of John Meade Park; and
WHEREAS, Section 13.7, titled Bequests, Gifts and Donations, of the Cherry Hills Village
Home Rule Charter, authorizes the City Council to receive bequests, gifts and donations of all
kinds of property on behalf of the City for public, charitable or other purposes and to do all things
and acts necessary to carry out the purposes of such bequests, gifts and donations; and
WHEREAS, the Parks Division plans to utilize the proceeds of the donation to fund the
remainder of the cost for procurement and installation of a sideways tree climber feature within
the John Meade Park play area that is not otherwise grant-funded.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cherry Hills
Village, Colorado that:
Section 1.
The City Council hereby accepts a cash donation in the amount of $26,421 .29 from
an anonymous donor to be used by the Cherry Hills Village Parks Division to fund the remainder
of the cost for procurement and installation of a sideways tree climber feature within the John
Meade Park play area that is not otherwise grant-funded.
Section 2.
The City Council directs City staff, including the Parks and Recreation Coordinator,
Finance Director and City Manager, to take all steps necessary to effectuate the donation and to
carry out the purpose of such donation.
Section 3.

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.
Introduced, passed and adopted at the
regular meeting of City Council this
day
of
byavoteof_yes_no.

(SEAL)
Russell 0. Stewart, Mayor
ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

Kathie B. Guckenberger, City Attorney

Resolution 19. Series 2020
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Exhibit B

John Meade Park PlayArea-Specific Funding Opportunity
May 18, 2020
There is one funding opportunity in the play area due to a change from the original park plans
and an addition that is not fully grant-funded. The original plans for the play area at the park
call for a pre-fabricated hollow log play feature. The Parks, Trails, and Recreation Commission
and staff have chosen to change this feature to a sideways tree climber from Nature’s
Instruments for a more natural and interactive play experience.
The total cost of the change that remains after grant funding is:
$13,529.29

—

tree and shipping

$7,682.00— install foundations and tree
$5,210.00

—

expand boulder wall to accommodate larger play structure

Total: $26,421.29

Examples of the play feature:

Exhibit B
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoIDo

2450 F. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 8a

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JESSICA SAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: CITY FINANCIAL STATUS UPDATE
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
How does projected revenue for the City of Cherry Hills Village compare to the adopted 2020
budget?

DISCUSSION
Background

City Council approved the 2020 General Fund budget which includes total operating revenue of
$7,421,244.
Analysis
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the potential impact to the City’s revenue collections, staff
prepared a side by side comparison of every revenue line item using three different revenue
projection scenarios.

Scenario 1

—

Straight-line projection based on current revenue

The first scenario is a straight-line projection based on current revenue. This scenario calculated
the average monthly amount using January-May collections and assumes June-December
collections will remain consistent. The total revenue collections are projected to be $7,497,218 or
1% over budgeted revenue.

Scenario 2 Finance Department best year end projection
In the second scenario, staff analyzed each revenue line individually to calculate the “best year end
—

projection”. This scenario projects total revenue collections to be $7,378,232 or 1% less than
budgeted revenue.

1
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Scenario 3 Most conservative year end projection
The third scenario is the most conservative year end revenue projection. This scenario projects
total revenue collections to be $6,879,346 or 7% less than budgeted revenue.
—

The updated General Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures for scenario 2 indicates a total
operating g4jll of $373,609 (Exhibit B). The operating gain is due to staff reducing expenditures in
every department throughout the year and only approving expenses that are essential or necessary
to conduct business.

RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information included in the memo, staff would recommend two options for City
Council’s consideration.
Option 1 City Council could approve all three capital expenditures following this item on the
agenda (i.e. 2020 concrete project, 2020 chip seal project and the permanent sculpture for City
Hall).
—

Option 2 City Council could approve the 2020 concrete project and the permanent sculpture for
City Hall, but delay review of the 2020 chip seal project contract until later this summer.
—

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
2020 Revenue Projections
Exhibit B:
General Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
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2020 Revenue Projections

% to Budget
through May
31st
CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES
SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAXES
UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE
CABLETELEVISION FEES
CURRENT TAX INTEREST
SALES TAX
USE TAX/MOTOR VEHICLES
LIQUOR LICENSES
SECURITY ALARM PERMITS
BUILDING PERMITS
SERVICE EXPANSION FEES
ZONING & SUBDIVISION FEES
ELEVATOR INSPECTION FEE
PLAN REVIEW FEE
REINSPECTION FEES
DOG LICENSES
STREETCUTPERMITS
STORMWATER CONST. PERMIT
PLAN REVIEW STORMWATER CONST
MOTOR VEH.REGISTRATION
CIGARETTETAX
HIGHWAY USERS TAX
CNTY RD/BRIDGE LEVY
EXTRADUTYSERVICECHARGES
FALSE ALARM FEES
MUNICIPAL COURT FINES
DLI FINES
FUEL SURCHARGE
INTEREST INCOME
PENALTY-BUILDING PERMIT
CRIER CONTRIBUTIONS
CRIER ADVERTISEMENT

64%
39%
36%
27%
4%
47%
28%
38%
104%
52%
73%
80%
3%
47%
0%
73%
50%
60%
161%
31%
51%
30%
30%
13%
35%
40%
27%
41%
75%
3%
88%
53%

2020 Actual
through May 31st
S
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
5
$
$
$
$
$
S
S
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
S
5
$
$
$

1,713,476.75
115,101.89
130,677.26
37,350.84
133.71
506,479.11
284,850.08
2,375.00
31,300.00
33S.648.87
73,177.70
800.00
130.00
51,130.00

2020 Budget
S 2.679.899.00

1,460.00
22,550.00
900.00
16,067.50
7,829.19
1,532.81
72,398.13
30,901.44
6,977.50
1,400.00
108,972.00
2,020.92
6,615.00
63,849.27
50.00
5,280.00
3,995.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
5
S
S
S
$
$
$
$
$
S
$
S
$
$
$

295,000.00
360,000.00
140,000.00
3,200.00
1.087.298.00
1,030,000.00
6,200.00
30,000.00
650,000.00
100,000.00
1,000.00
4,000.00
110,000.00
500.00
2,000.00
45,000.00
1,500.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
3,000.00
243,170.00
104,076.00
55,000.00
4,000.00
275,000.00
7,500.00
16,000.00
85,000.00
1,500.00
6,000.00
7,500.00

-

$
$
$
$

$

Straight line
projection based Finance Department Most conservative
on current
best year end
year end
revenue
projection
projection
2.679,899.00 $
$ 2,679,899.00 $
2,679,899.00
276,244.54 $
295,000.00 $
289,100.00
$

$
$
$
$
S
$
$

313,625.42
139,350.00
1,254.00
1,215.549.86
854,550.24
6,196.00
31,300.00
812,757.29
175,626.48
800.00
4,130.00
122,712.00
500.00
1,936.00
54,120.00
1,500.00
16,068.00
18,790.06
3,678.74
173,755.51
104,076.00
16,746.00
3,360.00
261,532.80
4,850.21
15,876.00
112,849.00
50.00
6,000.00
7,500.00

$
$
$
$
S
$
$

$
S
$
$
$
$
$
S
$
$
S
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

$
S
$

$
$
$
$
S
$
S
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

302,427.00 $
139,350.00 $
1,254.00 $
1.276.479.00 $
824,000.00 $
6,196.00 $
31,300.00 $
663,000.00 $
97,417.00 $
800.00 S
4,130.00 $
112,200.00 $
500.00 $
1,936.00 $
54,120.00 $
1,500.00 S
16,068.00 S
25,000.00 $
3,374.00 $
243,170.00 $
104,076.00 $
32,978.00 $
3,627.00 $
275,000.00 $
5,717.00 S
16,000.00 $
112,849.00 $
1.50000 $
6,080.00 $
7,500.00 $

302,427.00
139,350.00
1,254.00
1,196.479.00
539,297.00
6,196.00
31,300.00
647,288.00
97,417.00
800.00
4,130.00
103,651.00
-

1,936.00
45,000.00
900.00
16,068.00
20,000.00
3,374.00
192,546.00
104,076.00
21,978.00
3,627.00
261,533.00
2,826.00
15,876.00
105,849.00
50.00
6,080.00
7,500.00

OTHER REVENUES

85%

$

21,353.99

$

25,000.00

$

51,249.58

$

25,000.00

$

22,754.00

LEASE PROCEEDS

45%

$

3,527.15

$

7,900.00

$

49%

$

3,663,311.11

$ 7,421,243.00

$

$
$

8,785.00
7,378,232.00

$

TOTAL

8,785.00
7,497,217.73

$

8,785.00
6,879,346.00
-7%

PERCENT OVER/UNDER BUDGET

1%

-1%

2020 BUDGET

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
U11

U1O

ACTUAL

ACTUAL

UU

LUU

ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE

BUDGET

REVENUE
Current Property Taxes @ 7.30 Mills
Use/Tax Motor Vehicles
Sales Tax
Service Expansion Fees
Building Permits
Franchise Fees
Highway Users Tax
Municipal Court Fines
County Road & Bridge Levy
Specific Ownership Tax
Other Revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

2,496:963
1,126,085
1,190,598
120,514
786,702
433.883
244,792
338,080
109,201
389,520
725,168
7,961,506

2,491,738
1,204,073
1,273,544
154,203
933,753
390,291
301,394
279,377
96,484
335,343
961,479
8,421,681

2,495,125
1,041,542
1,600,263
66,194
697,412
407,298
291,475
283,938
90,746
340,124
745,137
8,059,254

2,679,899
824,000
1,276,479
97,417
663,000
302,427
243,170
275,000
104,076
295,000
912,763
7,378,232

2,679,899
1,030,000
1,087,298
100,000
650,000
360,000
243,170
275,000
104,076
295,000
596,801
7,421,244

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Judicial
Dala Processing
Community Development
Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

1.596,572
74,435
158,610
453,595
31,585
2,830,827
886,499
6,032,123

1,553,305
81,844
133,210
547,418
32,959
2,762,212
876,488
5,987,436

1,484,088
98,248
147,220
544,322
33,467
2,955,627
988,017
6,250.989

1,642,999
86,168
145,105
601,051
34,990
3,163,326
997,809
6,671,449

1,733,797
91,558
167,659
699,235
36,052
3,310,986
1,048,782
7,088,069

COP PAYMENT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

281,893
6,314,016

332,004
6,319,440

332,657
6,583,646

333,174
7,004,623

333,174
7,421,244

OPERATING GAIN/(LOSS)

1,634,556

2,102,240

1,475,608

373,609

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

7,498,637

9,133,193

9,286,519

10,937,927

ADD/(SUBTRACT) OPERATING DIFFERENCE
LESS: EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES
ENDING FUND BALANCE

1,634,556

2,102,240

1,475,608

373,609

9,133,193

11,235,433

10,762,127

11,311,537

10,937,927

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE

9,133,193

11,235,433

10,762,127

11,311,537

10,937,9271

-

EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES
Transfer to Parks and Rec Fund
Transfer to Capital Fund
TOTAL EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES

6/8/202011:26 AM

10,937,927
-
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 8b

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: CONTRACT FOR THE CITY’S ANNUAL CONCRETE PROJECT WITH
SUNLAND ASPHALT & CONSTRUCTION INC. (TABLED FROM THE APRIL
7, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING)
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Shall Council approve the contract for the City’s annual Concrete Project with Sunland Asphalt
& Construction Inc (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
On February 27, 2020, the City accepted bids for the 2020 Street Improvement Program
Concrete Project. The project includes the removal and replacement of all or portions of
approximately ten (10) concrete cross pans at multiple intersections / locations throughout the
City of Cherry Hills Village and 1170 linear feet of curb and gutter. The following bids were
received:
COMPANY

BID AMOUNT

SUNLAND ASPHALT
STRAIGHT LINE SAWCUTTING, INC.
STONE AND CONCRETE
LOBOS STRUCTURES, LLC
WESTERN GRAVEL CONSTRUCTORS, LLC

$69,095.96
$95,840.00
$103,407.47
$219,040.00
$371,150.00

Sunland Asphalt was the low bid for the 2020 Capital Improvement Program. Sunland Asphalt
is a well-known construction company on the Front Range. Based on their reputation and strong
references staff feels that Sunland can produce the quality of work that meets the City’s
expectations and contract requirements.

G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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BUDGET IMPACT
There is a total of $85,000.00 budgeted in 2020 for this project. There is no negative impact on
the budget as the proposed contract amount is within the budget. This item was tabled at the
April 7, 2020 City Council meeting to allow time for Council and staff to determine the impact
of COVID-19 on the City budget.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the contract for the City’s annual Concrete Project with Sunland
Asphalt & Construction Inc. in the amount of $69,095.96. There is a total of $85,000.00 in the
2020 CIP funds for this project. Staff is requesting that City Council also approve an owner
contingency for this project of $5,000.00, bringing the total maximum expenditure to
$74,095.96.
City Attorney Guckenberger has reviewed the Contract for Services and approved it as to form,
with the addition of COVID-19 provisions.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the contract for the City’s annual Concrete Project with Sunland Asphalt &
Construction Inc. in the amount of $69,095.96 with an owner contingency of $5,000.00 for a
total maximum expenditure of $74,095.96, authorize the expenditure of these funds, and
authorize the Mayor to sign the contract for services.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Contract for Services with Sunland Asphalt & Construction Inc
Exhibit B: General Conditions of the Contract
Exhibit C: Form of Bid
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2

EXHIBIT A

CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT:

2020 CONCRETE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-002
This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into by and between SUNLAND
ASPHALT & CONSTRUCTION, INC. (hereinafter, “Contractor”), an Arizona corporation registered to
operate in the State of Colorado having a principal address of 1625 E. Northern Ave, Phoenix, AZ 85020
and a local office address of 12365 Dumont Way, Littleton, Colorado, 80125, and the CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE (hereinafter, “City” or “Owner”), a home rule municipal corporation of the State of
Colorado, having an address of 2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
(collectively, the City and Contractor may be referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as “Party”).
In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
PART 1 – WORK; TIME
1.01
The Contractor agrees to furnish all of the technical, administrative, professional, and other labor,
all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, local travel, office space and facilities, testing and
analyses, calculations, and any other facilities or resources necessary to perform in a workmanlike manner
all Work required by the Contract Documents.
1.02
This Contract shall be effective as of the date of its mutual execution by the Parties (“Effective
Date”). The Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Work within Sixty (60) days following
the Notice of Award and agrees that the Work will be completed within Sixty (60) working days (holidays,
weekends, and inclement weather excluded) of the date of the Notice to Proceed unless the Contract
Time is extended by the City as provided in the Contract Documents.
The Parties agree that, in any section in which the Contractor prepares any document for “the
1.03
approval of the City,” such subsequent approval by the City does not mean that City is responsible for the
accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment contained in the document. The City does not waive the right to hold
the Contractor responsible for the accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment expressed in the document, as it is
expressly agreed by the Parties that the City is relying on the expertise of the Contractor for the timely
completion of the Work required by the Contract Documents.

Cherry Hills Village Construction Contract (Sunland Asphalt)
Project: 2020-002 Concrete Removal and Replacement
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PART 2 – CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT
2.01
The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents the amount(s) shown on Contractor's Form of Bid, Items 1 - 5, not to exceed Sixty-Nine
Thousand Ninety-Five Dollars and Ninety-Six Cents ($69,095.96). The amount the City has appropriated
for this Contract is an amount that is, at a minimum, equal to the Contract Sum stated in this paragraph.
2.02
The City shall make payments as set forth in Article 9 of the General Conditions, subject to the
City's obligation to retain a portion of the payments until final completion and acceptance by the City of all
Work included in the Contract Documents.
2.03
Prior to final payment, all Work specified by the Contract Documents must be completed. Payment
shall be made only after the procedure specified by the General Conditions is completed.
2.04
The City represents that either an appropriation for the price specified in this Construction Contract
has been made by the City Council or that sufficient funds have otherwise been made available for the
payment of this Construction Contract.
2.05
The Parties understand and acknowledge that the City of Cherry Hills Village is subject to Article
X § 20 of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”). The Parties do not intend to violate the terms and
requirements of TABOR by the execution of this Contract. It is understood and agreed that this Contract
does not create a multi-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or obligation within the meaning of TABOR and,
therefore, notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, all payment obligations of the City are
expressly dependent and conditioned upon the continuing availability of the funds beyond the term of the
City’s current fiscal period ending upon the next succeeding December 31. Financial obligations of the
City payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated,
budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules, regulations, and resolutions of the
City of Cherry Hills Village and other applicable law. Upon the failure to appropriate such funds, this
Contract shall be terminated.
2.06
Beginning on the Effective Date, Contractor may apply for payment to the Project Manager no
more frequently than every thirty (30) days for Work completed. Upon issuance of a Certificate for Payment
by the Project Manager, the City shall pay Contractor in accordance with Article 9 of the General
Conditions.
PART 3 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.01
In order to induce the City to enter into this Construction Contract, the Contractor makes the
following representations:
(a) The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and the extent of the Contract Documents,
Work, the location and site of the Work and any and all local conditions and federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders that in any manner may affect cost, progress, or performance of
the Work.
(b) Contractor has carefully studied all physical conditions at the site and existing facilities
affecting cost, progress, or performance of the Work.
(c) Contractor has given the City written notice of all conflicts, errors, or discrepancies that it has
Cherry Hills Village Construction Contract (Sunland Asphalt)
Project: 2020-002 Concrete Removal and Replacement

Page 2 of 9
Eff. 5.8.2020

discovered in the Contract Documents and, if applicable, the written resolution(s) thereof by the City is/are
acceptable to the Contractor.
(d)
Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Contract. Contractor shall not contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with any illegal aliens to perform work under
this Contract. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies as of the date of this Contract that has
confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment and who will
perform work under the public contract for services through participation in the e-verify program or
department program. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the e-verify program or the department
program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is being
performed. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this
Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be required to notify the
subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that the Contractor has actual knowledge that a
subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien. The Contractor shall terminate the
subcontract if the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three
(3) days of receiving the notice regarding Contractor’s actual knowledge. The Contractor shall not
terminate the subcontract if, during such three (3) days, the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. The Contractor is
required to comply with any reasonable request made by the Department of Labor and Employment made
in the course of an investigation undertaken to determine compliance with this provision and applicable
state law. If the Contractor violates this provision, the City may terminate this Contract, and the Contractor
may be liable for actual and/or consequential damages incurred by the City, notwithstanding any limitation
on such damages otherwise provided by this Contract.
3.02
Contractor agrees to remedy all defects appearing in the Work or developing in the materials
furnished and the workmanship performed under this Construction Contract for a period of one (1) year or
such other time that is specified in the Contract Documents after the date of acceptance of the Work by the
City, and further agrees to indemnify and save the City harmless from any costs encountered in remedying
such defects. Contractor shall provide a performance, payment, maintenance and warranty bond that shall
remain in effect until all defects are corrected as required by this paragraph.
PART 4 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
4.01 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire Construction Contract between the City and the
Contractor, are attached to this Construction Contract and made a part hereof by this reference, including:
Invitation for Bids
Other: _____________________________
Instructions to Bidders
Bid Bond
Bid Form
Notice of Award
Notice to Proceed
Construction Contract
Construction Drawings
Specifications
Right-of-Way Standards
Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
General Conditions, including table of contents
Cherry Hills Village Construction Contract (Sunland Asphalt)
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Special Conditions
Construction Contract Addenda
Change Orders, Change Order Directives, and Order for Minor Change in Work
Insurance Certificates and Endorsements
Tax-Exempt Certificates
In the event of an inconsistency between any provisions of the Contract Documents, the more specific
provisions shall govern the less specific provisions, and written addenda, change orders, or other
modifications approved in writing by both Parties subsequent to the date of this Contract as set forth on
page 1 hereof shall govern the original Contract Documents.
4.02
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above. The Contract Documents may
only be altered, amended, or repealed by a modification, in writing, executed by the City and the Contractor
as provided in Part 9 of this Contract and as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
PART 5 - PROJECT MANAGER AND SUPERINTENDENT
5.01
The Project Manager, for the purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following, or such other
person or firm as the City may designate in writing:
Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Email:

Ralph Mason
2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
303-783-2741
rmason@cherryhillsvillage.com

The Project Manager is authorized to represent and act as agent for the City with respect to the City’s rights
and duties under the Contract Documents, provided, however, the Project Manager shall not have any
authority to approve any Change Order or approve any amendment to the Construction Contract or Contract
Documents, except for those minor Change Orders defined in paragraph 7.4.1 of the General Conditions,
such authority being specifically reserved to the duly authorized official of the City having such approval
authority pursuant to the City’s Charter and ordinances. In the event of doubt as to such authority, the
Contractor may request a written representation from the City Manager resolving such doubt and
designating the person with authority under the circumstances, which written representation shall be
conclusive and binding upon the City.
5.02
The Contractor’s Superintendent, for purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following and is
subject to Article 3 (Section 3.9) of the General Conditions and such other obligations as the Contract
Documents may specify:
Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Email:

Alex DeClusin
12365 Dumont Way, Littleton, Colorado, 80125
720-990-0304
alexd@sunlandasphalt.com

PART 6 - ASSIGNMENT
6.01
No assignment by a Party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be
binding on another Party hereto without the written consent of the Party sought to be bound; and
specifically, but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
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assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law),
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. This
restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the Contractor's right to payment to
its surety or lender.
6.02
It is agreed that this Construction Contract shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto, their heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors.
PART 7 - GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
7.01
This Construction Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado and the Charter
and ordinances of the City of Cherry Hills Village.
7.02
This Construction Contract shall be deemed entered into in Arapahoe County, State of Colorado,
as the City is located in said county. The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies, and
disputes arising out of or related to this Construction Contract or any breach thereof, whether by alternative
dispute resolution or litigation, shall be proper only in Arapahoe County.
PART 8 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
8.01
The City and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence in this Construction Contract and
that the City will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially completed within the time specified
in paragraph 1.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed by the City by written Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. They also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in
proving, in a legal or arbitration proceeding, the actual loss suffered by the City if the Work is not
substantially complete on time. Accordingly, rather than requiring any such proof, the City and the
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) the Contractor shall pay the
City the applicable amount set forth in the General Conditions for each day that expires after the time
specified in paragraph 1.02 until the Work is complete. It is agreed that this is a reasonable estimate of the
damages likely to be suffered by the City for late completion of the Work. If the Contractor shall fail to
pay such liquidated damages promptly upon demand therefor, the Surety on the Performance, Payment,
Maintenance and Warranty Bond shall pay such damages. In addition, and at the City’s option, the City
may withhold all or any part of such liquidated damages from any payment due the Contractor.
PART 9 - MODIFICATIONS
This Construction Contract shall be modified only by written Change Orders or Addenda agreed upon by
the Parties hereto, duly issued in form approved by the City Attorney and in conformance with the other
Contract Documents. Pursuant to Article 7 of the General Conditions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time
may be changed by a Change Order only. The City shall not approve any Contract modification that
increases the Contract Sum without providing the Contractor written assurance that the City has
appropriated funds for the additional amounts.
Notwithstanding the paragraph immediately above, the City reserves the right to renew this Construction
Contract for up to three (3) additional years, in its sole discretion, all terms and conditions to remain the
same with the exception of the prices to be paid for the required maintenance, work, and materials. No
later than October 1 of the year in which this Contract takes effect, the Contractor may submit to the Project
Manager a revised price schedule for the succeeding year. The Project Manager shall accept or reject the
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revised price schedule by written notification to the Contractor on or before December 1 of that same year.
The Project Manager’s acceptance of the revised price schedule shall constitute notice of the City’s intent
to exercise its option to renew this Contract for an additional year, subject to final approval of such renewal
by City Council or such other duly authorized official of the City having such approval authority pursuant
to the City’s Charter and ordinances; and subject to annual appropriation. Any renewal of this Contract for
an additional year shall be pursuant to a written letter amendment to the Contract signed by both Parties,
and such renewal shall be exempt from competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Section 4-3-20(b)(5)
of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code.
PART 10 - CONTINGENCY
This Construction Contract is expressly contingent upon the approval of the City of all of the terms set forth
herein. In the event this Construction Contract is not approved in its entirety by the City, neither Party shall
be bound to the terms of this Construction Contract.
The person or persons signing and executing this Construction Contract on behalf of each Party do hereby
warrant and guarantee that he/she or they have been fully authorized to execute this Construction Contract and
to validly and legally bind such Party to all the terms, performances, and provisions herein set forth.
No officer or employee or agent of the City shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under
or growing out of the Contract.
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BY THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THIS
CONTRACT SHALL BE SENT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE, ATTENTION: RALPH MASON, PROJECT MANAGER
PART 11 – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
11.01 General. Contractor is an independent contractor. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Contract, all personnel assigned by Contractor to perform work under the terms of this Contract shall be,
and remain at all times, employees or agents of Contractor for all purposes. Contractor shall make no
representation that it is a City employee for any purposes.
11.02 Liability for Employment-Related Rights and Compensation. The Contractor shall be solely
responsible for all compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person
completing the Work hereunder during the course of or arising or accruing as a result of any employment,
whether past or present, with the Contractor, as well as all legal costs including attorney’s fees incurred in
the defense of any conflict or legal action resulting from such employment or related to the corporate
amenities of such employment. The Contractor will comply with all laws, regulations, municipal codes,
and ordinances and other requirements and standards applicable to the Contractor’s employees, including,
without limitation, federal and state laws governing wages and overtime, equal employment, safety and
health, employees’ citizenship, withholdings, reports and record keeping. Accordingly, the City shall not
be called upon to assume any liability for or direct payment of any salaries, wages, contribution to pension
funds, insurance premiums or payments, workers’ compensation benefits or any other amenities of
employment to any of the Contractor’s employees or any other liabilities whatsoever, unless otherwise
specifically provided herein.
11.03 Insurance Coverage and Employment Benefits. The City will not include the Contractor as an
insured under any policy the City has for itself. The City shall not be obligated to secure nor provide any
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insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or the Contractor’s
employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors, agents, or representatives, including but not limited to
coverage or benefits related to: local, state, or federal income or other tax contributions, FICA, workers’
compensation, unemployment compensation, medical insurance, life insurance, paid vacations, paid
holidays, pension or retirement account contributions, profit sharing, professional liability insurance, or
errors and omissions insurance. The following disclosure is provided in accordance with Colorado law:
CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT NOR ITS AGENTS OR
EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS
UNLESS CONTRACTOR OR SOME ENTITY OTHER THAN THE CITY PROVIDES
SUCH BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT
NOR ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO WORKERS’
COMPENSATION BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS
OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY MONEYS
EARNED OR PAID PURSUANT TO THIS CONTRACT.
11.04 Employee Benefits Claims. To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Contractor waives all
claims against the City for any Employee Benefits; the Contractor will defend the City from any claim and
will indemnify the City against any liability for any Employee Benefits for the Contractor imposed on the
City; and the Contractor will reimburse the City for any award, judgment, or fine against the City based on
the position the Contractor was ever the City’s employee, and all attorneys’ fees and costs the City
reasonably incurs defending itself against any such liability.
PART 12 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
12.01 Compliance with Laws and Regulations. All of the Work performed under this Contract by the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and codes of the United States and the
State of Colorado. The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions of the City and shall commit no trespass on any public or private property in the performance
of any of the Work identified in this Contract.
12.02 ADA Compliance. Contractor shall comply with applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended from time to time (the “ADA”), and any other applicable federal
regulation. A signed, written certificate stating compliance with the ADA may be requested at any time
during the term, or any Renewal Term, of this Contract.
12.03 Severability. In the event any of the provisions of this Contract are held to be unenforceable or
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected,
provided that the remaining provisions without the invalidated provisions are consistent with the Parties’
intent. Should either Party fail to enforce a specific term of this Contract it shall not be a waiver of a
subsequent right of enforcement, nor shall it be deemed a modification or alteration of the terms and
conditions contained herein.
12.04 Retention and Open Records Act Compliance. All records of the Contractor related to the
completion of the Work hereunder, including public records as defined in the Colorado Open Records Act
(“CORA”), and records produced or maintained in accordance with this Contract, are to be retained and
stored in accordance with the City’s records retention and disposal policies. Those records which constitute
“public records” under CORA are to be at the City offices or accessible and opened for public inspection
in accordance with CORA and City policies. Public records requests for such records shall be processed in
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accordance with City policies. Contractor agrees to allow access by the City and the public to all documents
subject to disclosure under applicable law. Contractor’s willful failure or refusal to comply with the
provisions of this paragraph shall result in the immediate termination of this Contract by the City. For
purposes of CORA, the City Clerk is the custodian of all records produced or created as a result of this
Contract. Nothing contained herein shall limit the Contractor’s right to defend against disclosure of records
alleged to be public.
12.05 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Contract and all
rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the City and the Contractor, and
nothing contained in this Contract shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other or third
person under such Contract.
12.06 Headings. The headings contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not in
any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
12.07 Entire Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions contained herein
constitute the entire agreement and that all representations made by any elected official, officer, director,
agent or employee of the respective Parties unless included herein are null and void and of no effect. No
alterations, amendments, changes, or modifications to this Contract, except those which are expressly
reserved herein to the Project Manager and/or the Superintendent, shall be valid unless they are contained
in writing and executed by all the Parties with the same formality as this Contract.
12.08 Contract Controls. In the event a conflict exists between this Contract and any term in any exhibit
attached or incorporated into this Contract, the terms in this Contract shall supersede the terms in such
exhibit.
12.09 Release of Information. The Contractor shall not, without the prior written approval of the City,
release any privileged or confidential information obtained in connection with the Work or this Contract.
12.010 Survival. The Parties understand and agree that all terms and conditions of the Contract that require
continued performance, compliance, or effect beyond the termination date of the Contract shall survive
such termination date and shall be enforceable in the event of a failure to perform or comply.
12.011 Binding Effect. The Parties agree that this Contract, by its terms, shall be binding upon the
successors, heirs, legal representatives, and assigns; provided that this section shall not authorize
assignment.
12.012 Protection of Personal Identifying Information. If the Work includes or requires the City to disclose
to Contractor any personal identifying information as defined in C.R.S. § 24-73-101, Contractor shall
comply with the applicable requirements of C.R.S. §§ 24-73-101, et seq., relating to third-party service
providers.
12.013 Authority. The individuals executing this Contract represent that they are expressly authorized to
enter into this Contract on behalf of the City of Cherry Hills Village and the Contractor and bind their
respective entities.
12.014 Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. In addition, the Parties
specifically acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures shall be effective for all purposes, in
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accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, Title 24, Article 71.3 of the
Colorado Revised Statutes.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Construction Contract in triplicate. Two
counterparts have been delivered to the City and one counterpart has been delivered to the Contractor. All
portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by the City and the Contractor.
CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO
By: __________________________________
Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
Date: _________________________________
ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________
Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

_____________________________________
Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBLE FOR ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT: PUBLIC WORKS
CONTRACTOR: SUNLAND ASPHALT &
CONSTRUCTION, INC., an Arizona corporation
By:

____________________________________

Name: ____________________________________
Title:

____________________________

Date:

____________________________________

STATE OF _______________ )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ______________ )
The foregoing Construction Contract was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________________,
2020, by _____________________ as ________________________ of Sunland Asphalt & Construction, Inc.
Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires: ____________________.
Notary Public
(Required for all contracts pursuant to C.R.S.
§ 8-40-202(2)(b)(IV))
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ARTICLE 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1

DEFINITIONS

1.1.1 “Application for Payment” means the Contractor’s request for payment submitted to the Project
Manager according to the process set forth in paragraphs 9.3.1- 9.3.4.
1.1.2 “Bidding Documents” means the Notice to Bidders; Request for Proposals; Invitation to Bid;
Instructions to Bidders; Bid Proposal; Bid Schedule; and Bid Bond, as applicable.
1.1.3 “Certificate for Payment” means the amount approved for payment by the Project Manager after
the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, as more fully defined in paragraph 9.4.1.
1.1.4 “Change Order” means a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the Owner
stating their agreement upon a change in the Work; the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if
any; or the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any, as more fully defined in paragraph 7.2.
1.1.5 “Claim” means a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, adjustment
of contract terms, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the
Construction Contract, or other disputes between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the
Construction Contract.
1.1.6 “Construction Change Directive” means a written order directed to the Contractor and signed by
the Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the
Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, as defined more fully in paragraphs 7.3.1-7.3.9.
1.1.7 “Construction Contract” or “Contract” means the entire and integrated agreement between the
parties hereto, evidenced by the Contract Documents, which supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral, subject only to amendment or modification as
permitted by Article 7 and as permitted by the Construction Contract.
1.1.8 “Contract Documents” means the Construction Contract, the Conditions of the Contract (General,
Special, Supplementary and other Conditions, as applicable), the Drawings, the Specifications, all Addenda
issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract, and all other documents listed
in the Contract, including the Bidding Documents, the Notice of Award, Notice to Proceed; Performance,
Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond; Certificates of Insurance; and Tax-Exempt Certificates.
Nothing contained in the Contract Documents creates any contractual relationship between the Owner any
subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or supplier of equipment or materials (except as provided in paragraph
5.3 hereof).
1.1.9 “Contract Sum” means the amount stated in paragraph 2.01 of the Construction Contract and,
including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for
the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.
1.1.10 “Contract Time” means the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial
Completion of the Work, including authorized adjustments thereto.
1.1.11 “Contractor” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an
authorized representative thereof.
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1.1.12 “Date of Commencement of the Work” is the date established in the Notice to Proceed. If there is
no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Construction Contract or such other date as may be
established therein.
1.1.13 The “Date of Substantial Completion” is the date certified by the Project Manager in accordance
with paragraph 9.8.
1.1.14 “Day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
designated.
1.1.15 “Drawings” are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents, wherever located
and whenever issued, showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally including plans,
elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.
1.1.16 “Final Completion” means the finding by the Project Manager that the final Certificate for Payment
should be issued based on his knowledge, information and belief that the Work has been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to
be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate for Payment, is due and payable, as more fully
defined in paragraph 9.10.1.
1.1.17 “Modification” means (1) a written amendment to the Construction Contract signed by both parties,
(2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written Order for a Minor Change in the
Work approved by the Owner pursuant to paragraph 7.4.
1.1.18 “Notice to Proceed” means the form issued by the City and accepted in writing by the Contractor
that notifies Contractor to begin work on or before a date certain, establishes an end date, and returns bid
security.
1.1.19 “Order for a Minor Change in the Work” means an order for minor changes in the Work issued by
the Project Manager not involving an adjustment to the Contract Sum or extending the Contract Time as
permitted by paragraph 7.4.1.
1.1.20 “Owner” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an authorized
representative thereof. The term “City of Cherry Hills Village” or “City” may be used interchangeably
with the term “Owner”.
1.1.21 “Product Data” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.2.
1.1.22 “Project” means the total construction of which the Work performed under the Construction
Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the Owner or by
separate contractors.
1.1.23 “Project Manager” means the City representative identified as such in Part 5 of the Contract.
1.1.24 “Project Manual” means the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include the
bidding requirements, sample forms, conditions of the Contract, and Specifications.
1.1.25 “Samples” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.3.
1.1.26 “Shop Drawings” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.1.
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1.1.27 “Specifications” are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements
for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship for the Work, and performance
of related services.
1.1.28 “Subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform
any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof. "Subcontractor" does not include any
separate contractor or his subcontractor.
1.1.29 “Substantial Completion” means the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work (or
designated portion thereof that the Owner agrees to accept separately) is sufficiently complete in accordance
with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or use the Work for its intended use as more fully
explained in paragraph 9.8.
1.1.30 “Sub-subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a
subcontractor to perform any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof.
1.1.31 “Underground Utilities” means any below ground line, structure, facility or installation used by a
utility or service provider including, but not limited to, telephone company lines, cable and conduit; cable
television lines, cable and conduit; internet lines, cable and conduit; sewer lines and water lines, including
individual sewer and water service lines; stormwater lines; gas lines; electrical lines, cables and conduit;
and traffic signal lines, cable and conduit.
1.1.32 “Work” means the construction, deliverables, and services required by the Contract Documents,
whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services
provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's obligations for the completed
construction required by the Contract Documents. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the
Project.
1.2

EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT

1.2.1 The Contract Documents shall be signed in not less than triplicate by the Owner and Contractor
and shall be maintained by the Project Manager.
1.2.2 By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor represents that he has visited the site,
familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his
observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
In connection with the foregoing, and having carefully examined all Contract Documents, as
aforesaid, and having visited the site, and having familiarized himself with the site construction
circumstances of the Project, the Contractor acknowledges and declares that it has no knowledge of any
discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts in said Contract Documents and that if it becomes aware
of any such discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts, it will promptly notify Owner and Project
Manager of such fact.
1.2.3 The Contract Documents include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work by the Contractor. The Work shall consist of all items specifically included in the Contract
Documents as well as all additional items of work which are reasonably inferable from that which is
specified in order to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contract
Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one Contract Document shall be as binding as
if required by all. Any differences between the requirements of the Drawings and the Specifications or any
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differences within the Drawings themselves or within the Specifications themselves have been referred to
the Owner by Contractor prior to the submission of bids and have been clarified by an Addendum issued to
all Bidders.
If any such differences or conflicts were not called to the Owner’s attention prior to submission of
bids, the Project Manager shall decide which of the conflicting requirements will govern based upon the
most stringent of the requirements, and subject to the approval of the Owner, the Contractor shall perform
the Work at no additional cost or Contract Time to the Owner in accordance with the Project Manager’s
decision. Work not covered in the Contract Documents will not be required unless it is consistent therewith
and is reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results.
1.2.4 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and the arrangement of
Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among subcontractors or in establishing the
extent of Work to be performed by any trade.
1.2.5 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words and abbreviations which have wellknown technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized
meanings.
1.2.6 In the interest of brevity, the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all”
and “any” and articles such as “the” and “an.” The fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one
statement and appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.
1.2.7 Interpretation of Contract Documents. Masculine includes both the masculine and the feminine;
singular includes the singular and the plural; headings are for reference only and are not substantive.
1.3

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS

1.3.1 The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof are
furnished to the Contractor for the purpose of performing the Work and are, and shall remain, the property
of the Owner. The Contractor may retain one (1) record set. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor,
sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the Drawings,
Specifications and other similar or related documents, and Owner will retain all common law, statutory,
and other reserved rights, in addition to the copyright (including, without limitation, the right to create
derivative works therefrom). All copies of such documents shall be returned to the Owner upon completion
of the Work. The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof
furnished to the Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by the
Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier on other projects or
for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Owner.
The Contractor, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are granted a
limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Drawings, Specifications and other
documents appropriate to and solely for use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.
All copies made under this license shall bear the statutory copyright notice, if any, shown on the Drawings,
Specifications and other documents. Submittal or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or
for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of any
copyright or other reserved rights.
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ARTICLE 2
OWNER
2.1

INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

2.1.1 The Owner shall furnish existing surveys describing the physical characteristics, legal limitations
and utility locations, if such utilities are the property of Owner, for the site of the Project, and a legal
description of the site, if necessary. The Contractor shall undertake such further investigations and studies
as may be necessary or useful to determine site characteristics and conditions. In connection with the
foregoing, Contractor shall locate prior to performing any Work, all Underground Utilities. If utility locate
services are provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor nonetheless remains solely responsible to
determine the actual location of all Underground Utilities.
2.1.2 Except for permits and fees which are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract
Documents, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges
required for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing
facilities. Such approvals and the like shall be provided by Owner within a time and in a manner as to avoid
any unreasonable delays in the Work or schedule of Contractor and shall include only such approvals for
permanent facilities which are necessary to perform the Work as set forth in the Contract Documents.
2.1.3 Information or services required to be furnished by Owner shall be furnished by the Owner with
reasonable promptness to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly progress of the Work.
2.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, free of
charge, all copies of Drawings and Specifications reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.
2.1.5

The Owner shall forward all instructions to the Contractor through the Project Manager.

2.1.6 The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner enumerated herein
and especially those in respect to Work by Owner or by Separate Contractors, Payments and Completion,
and Insurance in Articles 6, 9, and 11 respectively.
2.2

OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

2.2.1 If the Contractor fails to correct defective Work as required by Paragraph 12.2 or fails to carry out
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or fails or refuses to provide a sufficient amount of
properly supervised and coordinated labor, materials, or equipment so as to be able to complete the Work
within the Contract Time, or fails to remove and discharge (within ten (10) days) any lien filed upon
Owner’s property by anyone claiming by, through, or under Contractor, or disregards the instructions of
the Project Manager or Owner when based on the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Owner or
the Project Manager, by a written order, may order the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof,
until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Owner and the Project Manager
to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit
of the Contractor or any other person or entity.
2.3

OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

2.3.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents and fails within a seven (7) day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, or fails within
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such seven (7) day period to eliminate (or diligently commence to eliminate) the cause of any stop work
order issued under paragraph 2.2.1 hereof, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting
from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
compensation and additional services and expenses made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. If
the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor
shall pay the difference to the Owner.
ARTICLE 3
CONTRACTOR
3.1

REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY
CONTRACTOR

3.1.1 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor’s duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and shall at once report to the Owner
any error, inconsistency or omission discovered. The Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any
damage resulting from any such errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents hereof
unless the Contractor recognized or reasonably should have recognized such error, inconsistency or
omission and failed to report it to the Owner. If the Contractor performs any construction activity involving
an error, inconsistency or omissions in the Contract Documents that Contractor recognized or reasonably
should have recognized, without such notice to the Owner, the Contractor shall assume complete
responsibility for such performance and shall bear the full amount of all costs related to correcting such
inconsistent performance. The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work at any time without
Contract Documents or, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such
portion of the Work.
3.1.1.1 If any errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in Contract Documents are recognized or reasonably
should have been recognized by the Contractor, any member of its organization, or any of its subcontractors,
the Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the Owner in writing of such error, inconsistency, or
omission before proceeding with the Work. The Owner will take such notice under advisement and within
a reasonable time commensurate with job progress, render a decision. If Contractor fails to give such notice
and proceeds with such work, it shall correct any such error, inconsistency, or omission at no additional
cost to Owner.
3.1.2 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor's duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
the Contractor shall take field measurements and verify field conditions and shall carefully compare such
field measurements and conditions and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract
Documents before commencing activities. Errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered shall be reported
to the Project Manager at once.
3.1.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and submittals
approved pursuant to paragraph 3.12.
3.2

SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

3.2.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely (subject to the terms and provisions of Article 4 hereof) responsible for and have
control over all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating
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all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless Contract Documents give other specific instructions
concerning these matters.
The Contractor shall review any specified construction or installation procedure, including those
recommended by manufacturers, and shall advise the Owner if the specified procedure deviates from good
construction practice or if following the procedure will affect any warranties, and may propose any
alternative procedure which the Contractor will warrant.
3.2.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees,
subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a
contract or other arrangements with the Contractor. It is understood and agreed that the relationship of
Contractor to Owner shall be that of an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein or inferable here
from shall be deemed or construed to (1) make Contractor the agent, servant, or employee of the Owner, or
(2) create any partnership, joint venture, or other association between Owner and Contractor. Any direction
or instruction by Owner in respect of the Work shall relate to the results the Owner desires to obtain from
the Work, and shall in no way affect Contractor's independent contractor status as described herein.
3.2.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with
the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the Project Manager in his administration of the
Contract, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed under Paragraph 13.7 by persons other
than the Contractor.
3.2.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for locating all existing underground installations,
including Underground Utilities and their service connections, in advance of excavating or trenching, by
contacting the utility owners thereof and prospecting. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be
provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor remains ultimately responsible to determine the actual
location of all Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or installations. The Contractor shall use his own
information and shall not rely upon any information shown or not shown on the plans or on field locates
provided by the utility owner concerning existing Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or
installations. Any delay, additional work, or extra cost to the Contractor caused by existing Underground
Utilities, facilities, structures or installations shall not constitute a claim for extra work, additional payment,
or damage.
3.2.5 The Contractor has the responsibility to ensure that all equipment and material suppliers and
subcontractors, their agents, and employees adhere to the Contract Documents, and that they order material
and equipment on time, taking into account the current market and delivery conditions, including conditions
related to COVID-19, and that they provide equipment and materials on time. The Contractor shall
coordinate its Work with that of all others on the Project, including deliveries, storage, installations, and
construction utilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for the space requirements, locations, and routing
of its equipment. In areas and locations where the proper and most effective space requirements, locations,
and routing cannot be made as indicated, the Contractor shall meet with all others involved, before
installation, to plan the most effective and efficient methods of overall installation.
3.2.6 The Contractor shall establish and maintain bench marks and all other grades, lines, and levels
necessary for the Work, report errors or inconsistencies to the Owner before commencing work, and review
the placement of the structure(s) and permanent facilities on the site with the Owner after all lines are staked
out and before foundation work is started. Contractor shall provide access to the Work for the Owner, the
Project Manager, other persons designated by Owner, and governmental inspectors. Any encroachments,
as revealed by an improvement survey, made by Contractor or its subcontractors (of any tier) on adjacent
properties due to construction, except for encroachments arising from errors or omissions not reasonably
discoverable by Contractor in the Contract Documents, shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor
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and Contractor shall correct such encroachments within thirty (30) days of the improvement survey (or as
soon thereafter as reasonably possible), at Contractor’s sole expense, either by the removal of the
encroachment (and subsequent reconstruction on the Project site) or agreement with the adjacent property
owner(s) (in form and substance satisfactory to Owner in its sole discretion) allowing the encroachments
to remain.
3.3

LABOR AND MATERIALS

3.3.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all
labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities,
transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the
Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.
3.3.1.1 Colorado labor shall be employed to perform the Work to the extent of not less than eighty (80%)
percent of each type or class of labor in several classifications of skilled and common labor employed on
such project or public works. "Colorado labor," as used in this Article, means any person who is a resident
of the State of Colorado, at the time of employment, without discrimination as to race, color, religion, creed,
national origin, sex, age, or handicap.
3.3.1.2 Preference is hereby given to materials, supplies, and provisions produced or manufactured in
Colorado, quality being equal to articles offered by competitors outside the State.
3.3.2 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his employees and
shall not employ on the Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him.
3.3.3 Materials shall conform to manufacturer's standards in effect at the date of execution of the
Construction Contract and shall be installed in strict accordance with manufacturer's directions. The
Contractor shall, if required by the Owner, furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of any
materials. All packaged materials shall be shipped to the site in the original containers clearly labeled, and
delivery slips shall be submitted with bulk materials identifying thereon the source and warranting quality
and compliance with Contract Documents.
3.3.4 When the Contract Documents require the Work, or any part of same, to be above the standards
required by applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and other statutory provisions pertaining to the
Work, such Work shall be performed and completed by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract
Documents.
3.4

TRAFFIC CONTROL

3.4.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for maintenance, control, and the safeguarding of traffic
affected by the Work as further outlined herein, and as may otherwise be provided in the Contract
Documents.
3.4.2 During construction, the Contractor shall provide for the safety of the workmen and for the safe
and expeditious movement of traffic and pedestrians through the Site by erecting and maintaining all
necessary signs, barricades, or other traffic safety devices. He shall also provide and maintain, in a safe
condition, temporary approaches or crossings at intersections with trails, roads, streets, businesses, parking
lots, residences, garages, and farms unless this requirement is waived by the Owner, through the Project
Manager. The Contractor shall also have a Certified Traffic Control Supervisor (“TCS”) responsible for
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traffic control. The TCS shall be on Site at all times when traffic control is in place or as agreed by the
Owner through the Project Manager.
3.4.2.1 Before commencing with construction, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner (1) the name of
the certified TCS, (2) a detailed traffic control plan for approval, including no parking requirements, and
(3) an access maintenance plan. Details in the plans will include, but not be limited to: hours of Work;
placement of signs and barricades; use of traffic control devices such as cones, barriers, and barricades; use
of traffic control devices such as signal control, temporary striping, maintenance of detours, dust abatement,
and length of lane closure tapers. In general, the traffic control/access maintenance plan(s) shall cover all
the various phases of the Work.
3.4.2.2 The access maintenance plan shall be developed by the Contractor and coordinated with, and based
on the requirement of any affected property owners and tenants. Prior to commencing any Work that affects
access to a property, the access maintenance plan must be signed by the property owner and submitted to
the Owner. The access maintenance plan shall include documentation of this coordination, including
approval of the access maintenance plan by signature of each affected owner and tenant. Should the
Contractor be unable to obtain approval and signatures, documentation of the efforts made to obtain said
approval and signatures must be submitted. The Contractor shall maintain continuous access through the
Project for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and disabled persons. All cost incidentals to the maintenance
of access shall not be paid separately but shall be included in the Contract Sum.
3.4.2.3 The Contractor shall implement and maintain the approved traffic control/access maintenance plan
throughout prosecution of the Work. The Contractor is solely responsible for claims, damages, losses, etc.,
arising or resulting from Contractor's failure to adhere to and maintain the traffic control plan as
approved. It is understood that the traffic control plan's primary purpose is to foster the safe travel of the
public while construction is in progress. It is not intended to specifically address construction traffic on
Site. The Contractor is solely responsible for safety measures on the Site.
3.4.2.4 The Owner, through the Project Manager, may provide Project signs to the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide and place appropriate supplementary information and erect project signs at
locations to be designated by the Project Manager. These advisory signs, if any, shall be installed at least
seven (7) consecutive days prior to beginning of construction. Any other traffic control signs/devices shall
be installed seventy-two (72) hours prior to starting construction. Cost for additional information and
erection of advisory signs are considered incidental to the Traffic Control bid item and costs for such shall
be included in the Traffic Control bid item, if Traffic Control is a separately stated item in the Form of
Bid. All costs associated with traffic control shall be included in the Contract Sum. Traffic control devices
that are no longer necessary shall be removed from the Site within seventy-two (72) hours.
3.4.2.5 The Contractor will not be permitted to have construction equipment or materials in the lanes open
to traffic at any time unless permitted by Owner. If the Owner, through the Project Manager, waives the
above condition, the Contractor must provide a flag person. The Contractor shall remove and reset all
construction signs prior to construction. Any damaged signs shall be replaced in kind by the Contractor.
3.4.2.6 The Contractor is cautioned that all personal vehicle and construction equipment parking will be
prohibited where it conflicts with safety, access, or the flow of traffic.
3.4.3 The Contractor will furnish signs, barricades and temporary markings that may be necessary. The
barricades shall conform to the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (“MUTCD”) requirements.
3.4.4 Streets may be closed to through traffic only after the City has approved such closure and all requisite
permits for work in a public way have been obtained. Street closures shall be made in such a manner as to
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provide for maximum public safety and public convenience. They shall be opened to through traffic at such
time as the Work has been completed, or as the City or appropriate governmental agency with jurisdiction over
such roadway may direct.
3.4.5 The City will make all necessary adjustments to traffic signals and traffic signal activators on City
rights-of-way at no cost to the Contractor. The Contractor, as required by Contractor’s construction schedule
and with approval of the Project Manager, will cover or remove existing signs or signals that interfere with, or
conflict with construction signing. Upon completion of the Project, the Contractor will reset all such signs.
3.4.6 Detours shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor unless otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents. Detours such as side street crossings, temporary bridges over freshly placed concrete, utilization
of one (1) or more lanes of the construction area for maintenance of traffic, and such related facilities for the
maintenance of traffic shall be the responsibility of the Contractor, the costs for which shall be included in the
appropriate unit price or lump sum portion of the Contract Sum, as applicable. Detour plans must be submitted
and approved in writing by the City through the Project Manager as part of the traffic control/access
maintenance plan.
3.4.7 Local traffic shall be provided access to private properties at all times, except during some urgent
stages of construction when it is impracticable to carry on the construction and maintain traffic simultaneously,
such as for the placing of asphalt concrete pavement, deep sewer excavations which prohibit safe travel of
vehicular traffic, or other similar circumstances.
3.4.8 Emergency traffic such as police, fire, and disaster units shall be provided reasonable access at all
times.
3.4.9

The Contractor shall take every precaution to protect pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

3.4.10 Where parking is a hazard to through traffic or to the construction Work, it shall be restricted either
entirely or during the time when it creates a hazard. Signs for this purpose will be initially furnished and placed
by the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for and shall maintain the signs if they are used on any
street that is directly or indirectly involved in the construction Work.
3.4.11 The Contractor shall furnish at his own expense all flagmen who may be needed.
3.5

WARRANTY

3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this
Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents,
and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract
Documents. All Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved
and authorized, may be considered defective. If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall furnish
satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.
3.5.2 Experienced manufacturer's representatives shall be used to supervise the installation of equipment
as may be required by the Owner. Any special tools or equipment which may be required for first class
work shall be provided by the Contractor.
3.5.3 The acceptance at any time of materials or equipment by or on behalf of the Owner shall not be a
bar to future rejection if they are subsequently found to be defective, inferior in quality or uniformity, to
the material or equipment specified, or are not as represented to the Owner.
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3.5.4 In the absence of detailed specifications, all materials shall conform to the latest standards of the
American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) available at the time notice inviting Contractors to bid is
published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.5 Any reference to standard specifications in any of the Contract Documents shall always imply the
latest edition of such standard specifications or specifications available at the time notice inviting
contractors to bid is published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.6 Within one (1) year after the date of final acceptance of the Work or within such longer period of
time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall make all needed repairs arising out of defective workmanship or materials,
or both, which in the judgment of the Owner shall become necessary during such period. If within ten (10)
days after the mailing of a notice in writing to the Contractor or his agent, the Contractor shall neglect to
make, or undertake with due diligence to make the aforesaid repairs, the Owner is hereby authorized to
make such repairs at the Contractor's expense. In case of an emergency, the Contractor will be notified and
shall correct and make repairs within the necessary time constraints. Failure of the Contractor to respond
to the notification shall result in the Owner making the necessary repairs at the Contractor's expense. This
obligation shall survive termination of the Contract.
3.5.7 Should the Owner claim by written communication before the warranty period expires that certain
defects exist and that these require repair or replacement, the warranty period and applicable surety shall
be automatically extended for as long as these defects remain unremedied.
3.6

TAXES

3.6.1 All sales of construction and building materials to contractors and subcontractors for use in the
building, erection, alteration or repair of structures, highways, roads, streets and other public works owned
and used by the Owner are exempt from State and other State-collected sales and use taxes and from Cherry
Hills Village sales and use taxes. However, such materials may be subject to sales and use taxes imposed
by other local taxing authorities.
3.6.2 Prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed and start of Work, if requested by the City, the
Contractor shall deliver to the Project Manager three (3) copies of the completed and executed "Contractor
Application for Exemption Certificate" with the approval of the Department of Revenue, State of Colorado,
affixed (Department of Revenue Form No. 172). These certificates will serve as an indication to the Owner
that the Contractor has acquired the necessary exemption for State and other State-collected sales taxes.
The Contractor also agrees to make the same requirement, as contained above, of the material suppliers and
subcontractors on this project.
3.6.3 All books and records pertaining to the Project that will allow the accurate determination of any
tax due must be retained and be kept available for inspection by the City for three (3) years after the
completion of the Project.
3.6.4 All applicable taxes are to be paid by Contractor and are to be included in appropriate bid items;
except that, the Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any State or other sales or use taxes incurred as a
result of failure to obtain an exemption certificate prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
3.7

PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES

3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall obtain any necessary
building permit and applicable inspections and shall secure and pay for all other permits and governmental
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fees, licenses and inspections by other jurisdictions necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work which are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and which are legally required.
3.7.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and
lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work, including, but not limited to,
all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees related to COVID-19.
3.7.3 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that the Contract Documents are in
accordance with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations. If the Contractor observes or in
the exercise of due care should observe that any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith in any
respect, he shall promptly notify the Project Manager in writing, and any suggested changes shall be made
to the Owner. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of all conflicts between the Drawings and
Specifications and any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or restrictions that come to the Contractor's
attention or should have come to his attention in the exercise of due care.
3.7.4 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that all his Work is done in accordance
with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations, and the Contractor shall bear any costs related
to his failure to do so.
3.7.5 If the Contractor performs Work, including without limitations, the installation of any materials or
equipment that it knows, or reasonably should know, would be contrary to laws, statutes, ordinances,
building codes, rules, and regulations, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such work and
shall bear all costs attributable to the correction thereof or related thereto, including all fines and penalties.
3.8

ALLOWANCES

3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents.
Items covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the Owner
may direct, but the Contractor will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes a reasonable
objection.
3.8.2

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
.1

materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected promptly by the Owner to
avoid unreasonable delay in the Work;

.2

these allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor, less any applicable trade discount,
of the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all
applicable taxes;

.3

the Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs,
overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be
included in the Contract Sum and not in the allowance;

.4

whenever the cost is more than or less than the allowance, the Contract Sum shall be
adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize changes, if any,
in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses.
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3.9

SUPERINTENDENT

3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent Superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in
attendance at the Project site during the progress of the Work. The Superintendent shall represent the
Contractor and all communications given to the Superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the
Contractor. Important communications shall be confirmed in writing. Other communications shall be so
confirmed on written request in each case.
3.9.2 Contractor shall assign a person to be and remain the Superintendent to generally and directly
supervise and coordinate the performance of the Work. The naming of such person is and was a material
inducement to Owner to enter into the Contract. If such person is not the Superintendent or does not remain
the Superintendent for any reason whatsoever, the Owner reserves the right to review and approve or
disapprove said Superintendent's replacement, in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is
disapproved, the Contract may, at Owner's option, be terminated for cause.
3.9.3 Owner shall have the right, upon notice, to demand that the Superintendent or other key personnel
retained by Contractor be replaced by Contractor. In the event of such demand, Contractor shall, within
seven (7) days after notification thereof, replace said individual(s) with an individual satisfactory to Owner,
in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is disapproved, the Contract, may, at Owner's option, be
terminated for cause.
3.10

CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

3.10.1 A preconstruction conference shall be scheduled at the time the Notice of Award is issued. The
Contractor, at the preconstruction conference, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's review and approval
a Contractor's construction schedule for the Work, in such form and detail as Owner may require and a
traffic control plan as required by paragraph 3.4. The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under
the Contract Documents, shall be revised as required herein and at appropriate intervals as required by the
conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the
Contract Documents, and shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. The
schedule shall indicate the proposed starting and completion dates for the various subdivisions of the Work
as well as the totality of the Work. The schedule shall be updated every thirty (30) days and submitted to
the Project Manager with Contractor's Applications for Payment. Each schedule shall contain a comparison
of actual progress with the estimated progress for such time stated in the original schedule. If any schedule
submitted sets forth a date for Substantial Completion for the Work or any phase of the Work beyond the
date(s) of Substantial Completion established in the Contract (as the same may be extended as provided in
the Contract Documents), then Contractor shall submit to the Owner for its review and approval, a narrative
description of the means and methods which Contractor intends to employ to expedite the progress of the
Work to ensure timely completion of the various phases of the Work as well as the totality of the Work. To
ensure such timely completion, Contractor shall take all necessary action including, without limitation,
increasing the number of personnel and labor on the Project and implementing overtime and double shifts.
In that event, Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Schedule.
3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare and keep current, for the Project Manager’s approval, a schedule of
submittals which is coordinated with the Contractor's construction schedule and allows the Project Manager
reasonable time to review submittals.
3.10.3 The Contractor shall conform to the most recent schedules.
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3.11

DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

3.11.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of all Drawings,
Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to
record all changes and selections (all changes and selections to be approved by the Owner in advance) made
during construction, and approved Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples and similar required
submittals. These shall be available to the Project Manager and shall be delivered to him for the Owner
upon completion of the Work.
3.11.2 At the Date of Substantial Completion and as a condition precedent to Final Payment, the
Contractor shall furnish the following documents (unless directed otherwise by Owner) to the Project
Manager for submittal to the Owner: record drawings showing the field changes and selections affecting
the general construction, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and all other work, and indicating the Work as
actually installed. These shall consist of carefully drawn markings on a set of reproducible prints of the
Drawings. The Contractor shall maintain at the job site one (1) set of Drawings and indicate thereon each
field change as it occurs.
3.11.3 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual delivery
to the Owner shall be delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format acceptable to the Owner.
3.12

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the Work
by the Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate
some portion of the Work.
3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures,
diagrams and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product or system for
some portion of the Work.
3.12.3 Samples are physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish
standards by which the Work will be judged.
3.12.4 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit to the Owner, with reasonable promptness and in
such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the work of the Owner or any separate contractor, all
Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents.
Submittals made by the Contractor that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned without
action.
3.12.5 The Contractor shall not perform any portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop
Drawings, product data, samples, or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been approved by
the Owner. Such Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.
3.12.6 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the
Contractor represents that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field
construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and that he has checked and coordinated the information
contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.
3.12.7 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of
the Contract Documents by the Owner’s or Project Manager’s approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Owner in writing of such
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deviation at the time of submission and the Owner has given written approval to the specific deviation. The
Contractor shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Owner’s approval thereof.
3.12.8 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing, on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, or similar submittals to revisions other than those required by the Owner on previous
submittals.
3.12.9 When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, or equipment is
required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall be entitled to rely in a reasonable
and professional fashion upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications. If any
or all such calculations or certifications are found to be inaccurate or incomplete, Contractor shall assume
full responsibility and bear all costs attributable or related thereto, including, without limitation, the expense
of Owner’s additional services associated with the verification of such calculations or certifications, and
the expense of Owner’s additional services made necessary by the failure of such calculations or
certifications to be accurate or complete.
3.12.10 Contractor shall furnish Owner with copies of all operator's instructions, service and parts manuals,
and all other literature received by Contractor from the manufacturer or supplier of equipment furnished
under the Contract. All operator's instructions, service and parts manuals, and all other such literature shall
be bound in permanent binders satisfactory to the Project Manager.
3.12.11 Copies of any manufacturer's guaranty or certificate as may be required by the Contract Documents
or normally included with the product, shall be submitted to the Owner through the Project Manager prior
to the acceptance of the Work by the Owner.
3.12.12 Throughout the progress of construction, the Contractor shall maintain a careful up-to-date record
of all changes on the plans and drawings during actual construction. Upon completion of Work, and prior
to acceptance by the Owner, the Contractor shall file with the Project Manager one (1) set of complete
drawings with all changes and Contractor's field construction notes neatly and legibly recorded thereon.
Such drawings shall indicate in part the exact routing, if changed from drawing location, of Underground
Utilities, condenser water lines, fuel oil tanks and lines, fire protection lines and any other major buried
utility lines, and routing of conduit runs which are buried or concealed in concrete slabs. Such information
may be used to prepare record drawings for the Owner.
3.12.13 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual
delivery to the Owner shall be maintained and delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format
acceptable to the Owner.
3.13

USE OF SITE

3.13.1 The Contractor shall confine his construction operations to the immediate vicinity of the location
shown on the plans and shall use due care in placing construction tools, equipment, excavated materials,
materials and equipment for installation and supplies, so as to cause the least possible damage to property
and interference with traffic. The placing of such tools, equipment, and materials shall be subject to the
approval of the Project Manager. If it is necessary or desirable that the Contractor use land outside the
Owner's right-of-way or other appropriate permit or easement(s), the Contractor shall obtain consent from,
and shall execute a written agreement with, the owner of any such land, as well as tenants and/or occupants
of such property if required. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all associated costs, including
clean-up and restoration. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land
or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any adjacent land or areas, resulting from the performance
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of the Work. Should any claim be made by any such owner, tenant or occupant because of the performance
of the Work, the Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve
the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law. The Contractor shall, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses and damages arising out of
or resulting from any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner, occupant or tenant
against Owner, the Project Manager, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or
based upon Contractor’s performance of the Work.
3.13.2 The Contractor shall protect, shore, brace, support and maintain all Underground Utilities, drains,
and underground construction uncovered or otherwise affected by the construction work performed by him.
3.14

CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK

3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting or patching that may be required to
complete the Work or to make its several parts fit together properly. It is the intent of the Contract
Documents that all areas requiring cutting and patching shall be restored to a completely finished condition
acceptable to the Owner.
3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger any portion of the Work or the work of the Owner or
any separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such work, or by excavation. The
Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter the Work of the Owner or any separate contractor except with
the prior written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor. The Contractor shall not
unreasonably withhold from the Owner or any separate contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise
altering the Work.
3.15

CLEANING UP

3.15.1 The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation
of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of the Work, he shall remove all
his waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project, as well as all his tools, construction equipment,
machinery and surplus materials. The Contractor shall leave the site clean and ready for use or occupancy
by the Owner at Substantial Completion of the Work. The Contractor shall restore to original condition all
property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so
and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor.
3.16

COMMUNICATIONS

3.16.1 The Contractor shall forward all communications to the Owner through the Owner's Project
Manager, except as the Owner may otherwise direct in writing.
3.17

ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

3.17.1 The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and each of Owner’s
officers, agents, servants and employees, including the Project Manager from liability of any nature or kind,
including cost and expense for, or on account of, any patented or unpatented invention, process, article, or
appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the Contract, including its use by the Owner, or the
Owner's officers, agents, servants, or employees, unless otherwise specifically stipulated in the Contract
Documents.
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3.17.2 If the Contractor uses any design, device or materials covered by letters patent or copyright, he
shall provide for such use by suitable agreement with the owner of such patented or copyrighted design,
device or material. It is mutually agreed and understood that, without exception, the Contract prices shall
include all royalties or costs arising from the use of such design, device or materials, in any way involved
in the Work. The Contractor or his Surety shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any and all
claims for infringement by reason of the use of such patented or copyrighted design, device or materials or
any trademark or copyright in connection with Work agreed to be performed under the Contract, and shall
indemnify the Owner for any cost, expense or damage which it may be obliged to pay by reason of such
infringement at any time during the prosecution of the Work or after completion of the Work.
3.17.3 The Contractor shall pay all royalty and license fees.
3.18

INDEMNIFICATION

3.18.1 The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and their
officers, employees, consultants, agents and insurers, from and against all liability, claims, and demands,
on account of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury,
personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever,
which arise out of or are in any manner connected with the Contract, if such injury, loss, or damage is
caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part by, the act, omission, error,
professional error, mistake, negligence, or other fault of the Contractor, any Subcontractor of the
Contractor, or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor, or
which arise out of any workers' compensation claim of any employee of the Contractor or of any employee
of any Subcontractor. The Contractor agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for
and defend against, any such liability, claims or demands at the sole expense of the Contractor. The
Contractor also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorney
fees, whether or not any such liability, claims, or demands alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent.
3.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or Project Manager, or any of their respective consultants,
agents, officers, directors or employees by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such
employee) of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any supplier to the Contractor, any person or organization
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under paragraph 3.18.1 shall not be limited
in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for
the Contractor, or any such Subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under workers'
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.
3.18.3 The indemnity set forth in this paragraph 3.18 shall also cover the City’s defense costs, in the event
that the City, in its sole discretion elects to provide its own defense. The City retains the right to disapprove
counsel, if any, selected by Contractor to fulfill the forgoing defense indemnity obligation, which right of
disapproval shall not be unreasonably exercised. Insurance coverage requirements specified herein shall in
no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The
Contractor shall obtain at its own expense any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the City’s
protection in the performance of the Construction Contract.
3.18.4 All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by or given in
accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in this paragraph
3.18, will survive final payment, completion and acceptance of the work and termination or completion of
the Agreement.
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3.18.5 RESERVED
3.19

ATTORNEYS FEES

3.19.1 In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring an action against the other to enforce any
provision of the Contract Documents, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, the prevailing
party in such action shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees as determined by the Court.
3.20

RESERVED

ARTICLE 4
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT
4.1

PROJECT MANAGER

4.1.1 Subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph 5.01 of the Construction Contract, the Project
Manager is empowered to act for Owner during the construction of the Work.
4.1.2 In case of termination of employment of the Project Manager, Owner may at any time employ or
retain any other person it may deem qualified to perform all or any part of the duties of the Project Manager
hereunder or to exercise any of its rights hereunder. Owner shall notify all parties in writing, setting forth
the scope of said replacement of Project Manager’s duties and responsibilities, prior to making this change.
4.2

PROJECT MANAGER’S ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

4.2.1 The Project Manager will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract
Documents and will be the Owner’s representative during construction and until final payment is due.
The Owner’s instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Project Manager. The
Project Manager will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the
Contract, unless otherwise modified by written instrument in accordance with other provisions of the
Contract.
4.2.2

RESERVED

4.2.3 The Project Manager will not have control or charge of safety precautions and programs or any
construction means or methods in connection with the Work.
4.2.4 The Project Manager shall at all times have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation and
progress.
4.2.5 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been
specially authorized by Owner, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate through the
Project Manager, provided, however, that Owner may instruct, correspond, or negotiate with Contractor
directly. Communications by and with subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor.
Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Project Manager.
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4.2.6 Based on the progress and quality of the Work, an evaluation of the Contractor’s Applications for
Payment, and all other information available, the Project Manager will determine the amounts owing to the
Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts as provided in paragraph 9.4.
4.2.7 The Project Manager will have the responsibility and authority to reject Work which does not
conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Project Manager considers it necessary or advisable to
insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require
special inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.7 whether or not such Work has
been fabricated, installed or completed.
4.2.8 The Project Manager will promptly review and approve or reject or take other appropriate action
upon Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken
with reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Contractor or
separate contractors, while allowing sufficient time in the Project Manager’s reasonable judgment to permit
adequate review. The Project Manager’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of any of Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents. The Project Manager’s
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.
4.2.9 The Project Manager will prepare Change Orders in accordance with Article 7, and will have
authority to order Minor Changes in the Work as provided in paragraph 7.4.1. All Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and Orders for Minor Changes in the Work shall require the approval of
Owner in writing to be binding on Owner.
4.2.10 The Project Manager shall determine the date(s) of Substantial Completion and Final Completion,
shall issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion when and as required by the Contract Documents, will
receive, review, and maintain written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor, and will issue a final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents.
4.3

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.3.1 Claims must be made by written notice to the Project Manager. The responsibility to substantiate
claims shall rest with the party making the claim.
4.3.2

RESERVED

4.3.3 Time Limits on Claims. Claims by either party must be made within twenty-one (21) days after
occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim or within twenty-one (21) days after the claimant first
recognizes, or reasonably should have recognized, the condition giving rise to the claim, whichever is later.
An additional claim made after the initial claim has been implemented by change order will not be
considered unless submitted in a timely manner.
4.3.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a claim, including litigation, unless
otherwise directed by Owner in writing, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the
Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. No
Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as may be
agreed to in writing by the Owner.
4.3.5 Waiver of Claims: Final Payment. The making and acceptance of Final Payment shall constitute a
waiver of claims by the Owner except those arising from:
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.1

Liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;

.2

Failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents;

.3

Terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or

.4

Faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion.

4.3.6 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If conditions are encountered at the site which are
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions which differ materially from those indicated in
the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially
from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the
character provided for in the Contract Documents, then notice by the observing party shall be given to the
other party promptly before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than seven (7) days after first
observance of the conditions. Site conditions which an experienced and prudent contractor could have
anticipated by visiting the site, familiarizing himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to
be performed and correlating his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents shall not
be considered as claims for concealed or unknown conditions, nor shall the locations of Underground
Utilities which differ from locations provided by the utility companies. If the Owner determines that the
conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that
no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Owner shall so notify the Contractor in writing,
stating the reasons. Claims by the Contractor in opposition to such determination must be made within
twenty-one (21) days after the Owner has given notice of the decision. If the Owner and Contractor cannot
agree on an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be subject to further
proceeding pursuant to paragraph 4.4.
4.3.7 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Sum, written notice as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Said notice
shall itemize all claims and shall contain sufficient detail and substantiating data to permit evaluation of
same by Owner. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. Prior notice is not required for claims
relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Paragraph 10.3.
If the Contractor believes additional cost is involved for reasons including but not limited to (1) a
written interpretation from the Owner, (2) an order by the Owner to stop the Work where the Contractor
was not at fault, (3) a written Order for a Minor Change in the Work issued by the Project Manager, (4)
failure of payment by the Owner, (5) termination of the Contract by the Owner, (6) Owner's suspension of
the Work, or (7) other reasonable grounds, claim shall be filed in accordance with the procedure established
herein. Any change in the Contract Sum resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
Additional costs that Contractor may incur related to COVID-19 including, without limitation,
labor, material, and equipment costs, insurance costs, costs related to compliance with construction industry
best practices and governmental or quasi-governmental orders, and costs related to the suspension of Work,
shall not be grounds for an increase in the Contract Sum.
4.3.8 Claims for additional time. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Time, written notice as provided herein shall be given. The Contractor's claim shall include an estimate of
cost and of probable effect of delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one
claim is necessary. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
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4.3.9 Injury or damage to person or property. Subject to the Parties' obligations and responsibilities
under the Contract Documents in general and Article 11 hereof in particular, if either party to the Contract
suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, of any of
the other party's employees or agents, or of others for whose acts such party is legally liable, written notice
of such injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time
not exceeding ten (10) days after first observance. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the
other party to investigate the matter. If a claim for additional cost or time related to this claim is to be
asserted, it shall be filed as provided in paragraphs 4.3.7 or 4.3.8.
4.4

RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.4.1 The Project Manager will review all claims by the Contractor and take one (1) or more of the
following preliminary actions within ten (10) days of receipt of a claim: (1) request additional supporting
data from the Contractor, (2) submit a schedule to the Contractor indicating when the Owner expects to
take action, (3) reject the claim in whole or in part, stating reasons for rejection, (4) recommend approval
of the claim by the Owner, or (5) suggest a compromise. The Owner may also, but is not obligated to,
notify the surety, if any, of the nature and amount of the claim.
4.4.2

If a claim has been resolved, the Project Manager will prepare or obtain appropriate documentation.

4.4.3 If a claim has not been resolved, the Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the Project
Manager’s preliminary response, take one (1) or more of the following actions: (1) submit additional
supporting data requested by the Project Manager, (2) modify the initial claim, or (3) notify the Project
Manager that the initial claim stands.
4.4.4 If a claim has not been resolved after consideration of the foregoing and of further evidence
presented by the parties or requested by the Project Manager, the Project Manager will notify the Contractor
in writing that the Project Manager’s decision will be made within ten (10) days, which decision shall be
considered advisory only and not binding in the event of litigation with respect to the claim. Upon
expiration of such time period, the Project Manager will render to the parties the Owner’s written decision
relative to the claim, including any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. If there is a
surety and there appears to be a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, but is not obligated
to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

ARTICLE 5
SUBCONTRACTORS
5.1

AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF
THE WORK

5.1.1 Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents or the Bidding Documents, the Contractor,
as soon as practicable after the award of the Construction Contract, shall furnish to the Project Manager in
writing the names of the persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment
fabricated to a special design) proposed for each of the principal portions of the Work. The Project Manager
will promptly reply to the Contractor in writing stating whether or not the Owner has reasonable objection
to any such proposed person or entity.
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5.1.2 The Contractor shall not contract with any such proposed person or entity to whom the Owner has
made reasonable and timely objection under the provisions of paragraph 5.2.1. The Contractor shall not be
required to contract with anyone to whom he has a reasonable objection.
5.1.3 If the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity, the Contractor shall
submit a substitute to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection, and the Contract Sum shall be increased
or decreased by the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate change order shall
be issued; however, no increase in the Contract Sum shall be allowed for any such substitution unless the
Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required by paragraph 5.2.1.
5.1.4 The Contractor shall make no substitution for any subcontractor, person or entity previously
selected if the Owner makes reasonable objection to such substitution.
5.1.5
5.2

RESERVED
SUB-CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

5.2.1 By an appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor, to the extent
of the Work to be performed by the subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract
Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the
Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner. Each subcontract agreement shall
preserve and protect the rights of the Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be
performed by the subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall
allow to the subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the Contractor-Subcontractor
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by these
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor to
enter into similar agreements with his sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each
proposed subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to
which the subcontractor will be bound by this paragraph 5.2, and, upon written request of the subcontractor,
identify to the subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at variance
with the Contract Documents. Each subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such documents available
to his sub-subcontractors.
5.3

CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS

5.3.1 Contractor hereby assigns to Owner (and Owner's assigns) all its interest in any subcontract
agreements and purchase orders now existing or hereinafter entered into by Contractor for performance of
any part of the Work, which assignment will be effective upon acceptance by Owner in writing and only as
to those subcontract agreements and purchase orders that Owner designates in writing. It is agreed and
understood that Owner may accept said assignment at any time during the course of construction prior to
Final Completion. Upon such acceptance by Owner, (1) Contractor shall promptly furnish to Owner true
and correct copies of the designated subcontract agreements and purchase orders, and (2) Owner shall be
required to compensate the designated subcontractors or suppliers only for compensation accruing to such
parties for work done or materials delivered from and after the date on which Owner determines to accept
the subcontract agreements or purchase orders. All sums due and owing by Contractor to the designated
subcontractors or suppliers for Work performed or material supplied prior to Owner's acceptance of the
subcontract agreements or purchase orders shall constitute a debt between such parties and Contractor. It
is further agreed that all subcontract agreements and purchase orders shall provide that they are freely
assignable by Contractor to Owner and Owner's assigns under the terms and conditions stated hereinabove.
It is further agreed and understood that such assignment is part of the consideration to Owner for entering
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into the Construction Contract with Contractor and may not be withdrawn prior to Final Completion.
Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Owner a written acknowledgment in form and substance
satisfactory to Owner from each of its subcontractors and suppliers of the contingent assignment described
herein no later than ten (10) days after the date of execution of each subcontract agreement and purchase
order with such parties.
ARTICLE 6
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER
OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
6.1

OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE
CONTRACTS

6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and to
award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other work on the site under
these or similar conditions of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, he shall make such claim as provided elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site,
the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each
separate Construction Contract.
6.1.3 The Owner will provide for the coordination of the work of his own forces and of each separate
contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to
do so. The Contractor shall make any revisions to its construction schedule as requested by the Owner. If
the Contractor claims additional cost because of any such revisions, the Contractor shall make such claim
as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The construction schedules shall then constitute the
schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until subsequently revised.
6.2

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors access to the site and all areas of
the Work as may be reasonably necessary for the performance of their work, reasonable opportunity for the
introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and for the execution of their work, and shall
connect and coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.
6.2.2 If any part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of the
Owner or any separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with the Work, promptly report
to the Project Manager any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it unsuitable
for proper execution and results of Contractor's Work or render it incompatible with Contractor's Work.
Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or separate contractor's
work as fit and proper to receive his Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.
6.2.3 Subject to Paragraph 8.3 hereof, any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by
the party responsible therefor.
6.2.4

Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of the Owner, or to other completed
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or partially completed construction or property on the site or to property of any adjoining owner or other
party, the Contractor shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in paragraph 10.2.4.
6.2.5 Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of any separate contractor, or in the
event of any other claim, dispute, or matter in question between the Contractor and any separate contractor,
the Contractor shall promptly attempt to settle with such other contractor by agreement, or otherwise to
resolve the dispute. In any event, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Owner, its
officers, employees, and agents, to the full extent as agreed to under paragraph 3.18.
6.3

OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

6.3.1 If a dispute arises between the Contractor, separate contractors, and the Owner as to their
responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from
waste materials and rubbish as described in paragraph 3.15, the Owner may clean up and allocate the cost
thereof among the contractors responsible therefor.
ARTICLE 7
CHANGES IN THE WORK
7.1

CHANGES

7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Construction Contract, and
without invalidating the Construction Contract, only by Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or
Order for a Minor Change in the Work, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and the Contractor; a
Construction Change Directive may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor; an Order for a Minor Change
in the Work may be issued by the Project Manager alone.
7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents,
and the Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction
Change Directive, or Order for a Minor Change in the Work.
7.1.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if the
quantities originally contemplated are so changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change
Directive that application of such unit prices to the quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial
inequity to the Owner or the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted; provided
however, that Owner may increase the number of units without change in the unit price if reasonable.
.1

The term “substantial inequity” shall be construed to apply only to the following
circumstances: (1) when the character of the Work as altered differs materially in kind or
nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or (2) when a
major item of work is increased in excess of one hundred and twenty five percent (125%)
or decreased below seventy five percent (75%) of the original contract quantity. A major
item is defined to be any item having an original contract value in excess of ten percent
(10%) of the original contract amount

.2

Any allowance for an increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125%
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of original contract item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75%, to the actual amount
of work performed.
7.2

CHANGE ORDERS

7.2.1 A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the Owner stating
their agreement upon all of the following:
.1

a change in the Work;

.2

the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and

.3

the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.

The Contract Sum and the Contract Time may be changed only by Change Order.
7.2.2 Methods used in determining adjustments to the Contract Sum may include those listed in
paragraph 7.3.3.
7.3

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES

7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order directed to the Contractor and signed by the
Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract
Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating
the Construction Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Construction Contract
consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted
accordingly.
7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a
Change Order.
7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the
adjustment shall be based on one of the following methods:
.1

by mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient
substantiating data to permit evaluation;

.2

by unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3

by cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable
fixed or percentage fee; or

.4

by the method provided in paragraph 7.3.6.

7.3.4 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the
change in the Work involved and advise Owner of the Contractor's agreement or disagreement with the
method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in
the Contract Sum or Contract Time.
7.3.5

A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the agreement of the
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Contractor therewith, including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for
determining them. Such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.
7.3.6 If the Contractor does not respond promptly to the Construction Change Directive or disagrees with
the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, the method and the adjustment shall be determined by the
Owner on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the Work attributable to
the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, a percentage fee for overhead and profit
not to exceed five percent (5%) of such Work's actual cost for Contractor and ten percent (10%) of such
Work's actual cost to be apportioned between any and all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors. For Work
performed by Contractor's own forces, Contractor's mark-up shall be limited to actual cost plus a percentage
fee for overhead and profit not to exceed ten percent (10%). In such case, and also under Clause 7.3.3.3,
the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Project Manager may prescribe, an itemized
accounting of actual costs together with appropriate supporting data. For the purposes of this paragraph
7.3.6, actual costs shall be defined as and limited to the following:
.1

costs of labor, including Social Security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe
benefits required by agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance;

.2

costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including costs of transportation, whether
incorporated or consumed;

.3

reasonable rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, obtained and
used specifically for such Work, whether rented from the Contractor or others; and

.4

costs of premiums for all bonds (if any), permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes directly
attributable to such Work. Actual cost does not include any item which could be deemed
to be a general conditions cost or overhead, such as but not limited to, the cost of Contractor
and Subcontractor supervisory personnel assigned to the Work, and field office and related
expenses.

7.3.7 Pending final determination of actual cost to the Owner, amounts not in dispute may be included
in applications for payment. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a
deletion or change which results in a net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed
by the Project Manager. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if
any, with respect to that change.
7.3.8 If the Owner and Contractor do not agree with the adjustment in Contract Time or the method for
determining it, the adjustment or the method shall be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8.3 hereof.
7.3.9 When the adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time are determined as provided herein,
such determination shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded by preparation and execution of an
appropriate Change Order.
7.4

MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

7.4.1 The Project Manager will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving an
adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent
of the Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written order, and shall be binding on the
Owner and the Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall carry out such
written orders promptly.
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ARTICLE 8
TIME
8.1

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK

8.1.1 The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be postponed by the failure to act of the
Contractor or of persons or entities for whom the Contractor is responsible.
8.2

PROGRESS AND COMPLETION

8.2.1 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Construction Contract.
By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable
period for performing the Work.
8.2.2 The Contractor shall begin the Work on the Date of Commencement of the Work. The Contractor
shall not, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely commence operations
on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be furnished by the
Contractor. The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such
insurance.
8.2.3 The Contractor shall carry the Work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve
Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.
8.3

DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME

8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed, disrupted, or otherwise interfered with at any time, or from time to
time, in the performance of the Work, the rights and obligations of the parties with respect to such delay
shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3. Contractor's exclusive remedy for any delay, disruption, or
interference shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3.
8.3.1.1 Any delay within the control of the Contractor or within the control of any subcontractor, agent, or
supplier thereof (including, without limitation, delay within the joint control of the Contractor or one (1) or
more of his subcontractors, agents, or suppliers) shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor, and the
Contractor shall not be entitled to any extension of time or to any increase in the Contract Sum as the result
of any such delay.
8.3.1.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement, progress, or Substantial Completion
of the Work by fire, flood, other unusually severe weather, acts of God, or other unforeseeable occurrences
beyond the reasonable control of the Contractor (which shall not include cost increases related to COVID19), or by a government or quasi-government-imposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or
City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public health emergency (including measures responding to COVID19), then those performance dates specified in the Contract Documents that are affected by the delay shall
be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive, for such reasonable time as Owner, in its
reasonable good faith judgment, may determine, provided that Contractor complies with subparagraph
8.3.1.4 below. The extension of the affected performance dates shall be the Contractor’s sole and exclusive
remedy for any delay under this subparagraph 8.3.1.2 and shall not result in any increase in the Contract
Sum.
8.3.1.3 Upon the occurrence of any delay that will affect the Date of Substantial Completion not concurrent
with delays described under subparagraphs 8.3.1.1 and 8.3.1.2 above, which is proximately caused by acts
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or omissions within the control of the Owner, his agents (other than Contractor), or employees, the Date of
Substantial Completion shall be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive on a day-forday basis and the Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment to the Contract Sum as reimbursement for
actual, proven costs reasonably and necessarily incurred as a direct consequence of such delay, provided
that Contractor complies with subparagraph 8.3.1.4 below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a delay under
this subparagraph 8.3.1.3 is proximately related to COVID-19, the extension of the Date of Substantial
Completion shall be Contractor’s sole and exclusive remedy, and Contractor shall not be entitled to any
adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof.
8.3.1.4 Any claim for an extension of time under subparagraphs 8.3.1.2 or 8.3.1.3 above, and any claim
for an adjustment to the Contract Sum authorized by subparagraph 8.3.1.3 above, shall be made as follows:
.1

The Contractor shall, within five (5) days after the onset of any delay, notify the Project
Manager in writing of the causes of delay, the facts relating thereto, the requested time
extension and, if the relief is available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, the requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum. In the case of a continuing delay, only one (1) claim is
necessary, provided, that proof of any recoverable delay costs to support a requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum shall be submitted within fifteen (15) days after the end of
any period of delay.

.2

The Project Manager shall determine whether the cause for the claim for an extension of
time is beyond the control of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, agents, or
suppliers. Owner shall either approve or disapprove the requested extension and, if
available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, any related request for an adjustment to the Contract
Sum.

.3

Should a time extension or adjustment to the Contract Sum be granted by the Owner, a
Change Order or Construction Change Directive, signed by the Owner, shall be issued
stating the new date(s) for, as applicable, commencement, performance, and or Substantial
Completion and any adjustment to the Contract Sum.

.4

Failure by Contractor to timely provide, in writing, a request for time extension or an
adjustment to the Contract Sum (including proof of costs related to the same), shall
constitute a waiver by Contractor of any time extension or Contract Sum adjustment which
Contractor may have otherwise been granted pursuant to this paragraph 8.3.

.5

Nothing herein shall prevent Contractor from requesting, and Owner granting, an extension
of time contingent upon payment by Contractor of an agreed amount of liquidated damages
in consideration of the time extension.

8.3.2 Contractor expressly acknowledges and confirms its obligation to minimize any delays as well as
the costs associated with any delay. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor shall, to the best of its
ability, re-assign personnel and equipment, commence or accelerate unaffected portions of the Work, and
otherwise employ all prudent measures available to minimize delay and associated delay costs. In no event
shall the Owner be liable for payment of delay costs which could have been avoided or mitigated by any
means reasonably available to the Contractor.
8.3.4 If the Owner or any of its employees, consultants, or agents, including the Project Manager, is
delayed at any time in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract by fire, flood, other
unusually severe weather, acts of God, other unforeseeable occurrences beyond the reasonable control of
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imposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public
health emergency (including measures responding to COVID-19), then the dates for performance of the
obligations affected by the delay shall be extended on a day-for-day basis; provided, however, that such
extension shall not entitle Contractor to any adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof. The Owner
or the Project Manager will provide Contractor with verbal or written notice of the event causing delay of
performance within five (5) days after the onset of any delay.
8.4

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Time is of the essence of the Contract. In the event that the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion
of the Work within the Contract Time or fails to meet any other time requirement set forth in the Contract, after
due allowance for any time extensions granted by Owner, the Contractor shall be liable to Owner for Liquidated
Damages, and not as a penalty, in the amount set forth in the table below. For each and every calendar day that
Work shall remain incomplete after the Contract Time as adjusted by duly executed Change Order or
Construction Change Directive, the sum per calendar day shown in the following table, unless otherwise
specified in the Bid, may be deducted from monies due to or to become due to the Contractor or Owner may
take action to collect such Liquidated Damages from the Contractor or its Surety. This sum is fixed and agreed
upon between the parties because the actual loss to Owner and to the public caused by delay in completion will
be extremely difficult to determine.
All punch list items (required by paragraph 9.8.2) must be completed within thirty (30) days of Substantial
Completion or Liquidated Damages as provided herein will be assessed.
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the Contract Time, or after the
date to which the Contract Time may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of
Owner of any of its rights under the Contract.
Original Contract Amount
From More than $
0
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
To and Including $
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000
--------------

Liquidated Damages per
Calendar Day ($)*
500.00
600.00
800.00
1,400.00
2,000.00
3,300.00
3,900.00
**

*The per day liquidated damages shall be the amount set forth in this table, or in the Standard Specifications
for Road and Bridge Construction as published by the Colorado Department of Transportation controlling as
of the date on which the Contract is mutually executed by the Contractor and Owner, whichever is higher.
**3,900.00 plus 300.00 per each additional 1,000,000 contract amount or part thereof over 10,000,000.
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ARTICLE 9
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9.1

CONTRACT SUM

9.1.1 The Contractor will not be allowed any claims for anticipated profits, for loss of profits, or for any
damages or additional costs incurred because of a difference between the estimate of any item and the
amount of the item actually required, or for the elimination of any part of the Work. Funds for construction
of the Work herein contemplated are limited. The Owner reserves the right to eliminate or reduce the items
of the proposal or any of the Work as may be required to bring the cost of the Work within the limits of
available funds.
9.2

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager a
schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the Work, which in the aggregate equals the total
Contract Sum, divided so as to facilitate payments to subcontractors, supported by such evidence of
correctness as the Project Manager may direct. This Schedule, when approved by the Project Manager,
shall be used to monitor the progress of the Work and as a basis for Certificates for Payment.
9.3

APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

9.3.1 In accordance with the permitted frequency of applications for payment established in the
Construction Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager an itemized Application for
Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be
supported by such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Project Manager may require,
and reflecting retainage, if any, as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
9.3.1.1 Such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in the Work which have
been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives but not yet included in Change Orders.
9.3.1.2 Such applications may not include requests for payment of amounts the Contractor does not intend
to pay to a subcontractor or supplier because of a dispute or other reason.
9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments will be made on account of
materials or equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site and, if
approved in advance by the Owner, payments may similarly be made for materials or equipment suitably
stored at some other location agreed upon in writing for subsequent incorporation in the Work. Payments
for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon submission by the Contractor
of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such
materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, including applicable insurance and
transportation to the site for those materials and equipment stored off the site.
9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all work, materials and equipment covered by an Application
for Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of
payment by the Contractor, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or
encumbrances, hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no work, materials or equipment
covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the Contractor, or by any other person
performing work at the site or furnishing materials and equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement
under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed
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by the Contractor or such other person.
9.3.4 When Application for Payment includes materials stored off the Project site or stored on the Project
site but not incorporated in the Work, for which no previous payment has been requested, a complete
description of such material shall be attached to the application. Suitable storage which is off the Project
site shall be a bonded warehouse or appropriate storage approved by Owner with the stored materials
properly tagged and identifiable for this Project and properly segregated from other materials. The Owner's
written approval shall be obtained before the use of offsite storage is made. Such approval may be withheld
in Owner's sole discretion.
9.4

CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

9.4.1 The Project Manager will, within ten (10) days after the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for
Payment, either issue a Certificate for Payment to the Contractor, for such amount as the Project Manager
determines is properly due, or notify the Contractor in writing his reasons for withholding a certificate in
whole or in part as provided in paragraph 9.5.1.
9.4.2 No Certificate for Payment shall be issued unless it appears to the Project Manager that the Work
has progressed to the point indicated; that, to the best of the Project Manager’s knowledge, information and
belief, but without in any way waiving any of Owner’s rights or claims under the Contract Documents, the
quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents and that all certificates required under
the Contract Documents have been furnished in proper form. However, the issuance of a Certificate for
Payment will not be a representation that the Project Manager has made examination to ascertain how or
for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.
9.5

DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION

9.5.1 The Project Manager may decline to certify payment and may withhold his certificate in whole or
in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner, if in his opinion he is unable to make the
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2. If the Project Manager is unable to make such
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2 and to certify payment in the amount of the application, he
will notify the Contractor as provided in paragraph 9.4.1. If the Contractor and the Project Manager cannot
agree on a revised amount, the Project Manager will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount
for which he is able to make such determinations. The Project Manager may also decline to certify payment
or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or
any part of any Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in his opinion
to protect the Owner from loss because of:
.1

defective Work not remedied,

.2

third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;

.3

failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to subcontractors or for labor,
materials or equipment;

.4

reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the
Contract Sum;

.5

damage to the Owner or another contractor;
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.6

reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, or that
the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the
anticipated delay;

.7

failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; or

.8

failure to maintain accurate and up-to-date as-built drawings.

9.5.2 When the above grounds are removed, Certificates for Payment shall be made by the Project
Manager for amounts withheld because of them.
9.6

PROGRESS PAYMENTS

9.6.1 After the Project Manager has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in
a timely manner not to exceed forty-five (45) days from the time the Project Manager issued the Certificate
for Payment. The Owner may refuse to make payment on any Certificate for Payment for any default of
the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through
9.5.1.8. The Owner shall not be deemed in default by reason of withholding payment while any of such
defaults remain uncured.
9.6.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each subcontractor, upon receipt of payment from the Owner,
out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work, the amount to which
said subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, if any, from payments to the
Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work. The Contractor shall, by an appropriate agreement
with each subcontractor, require each subcontractor to make payments to his sub-subcontractors in similar
manner.
9.6.3 The Project Manager may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any subcontractor, if
practicable, information regarding the percentages of completion or the amounts applied for by the
Contractor and the action taken thereon by the Project Manager on account of Work done by such
subcontractor.
9.6.4 The Owner shall not have any obligation to pay or to see the payment of any monies to any
subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
9.6.5 Payment to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in paragraphs 9.6.2, 9.6.3,
and 9.6.4.
9.6.6 No certificate for a progress payment, nor any progress payment, nor any partial or entire use or
occupancy of the Project by the Owner, shall constitute an acceptance of any Work not in accordance with
the Contract Documents.
9.6.7

RETAINAGE

9.6.7.1 In addition to any amounts withheld from payment pursuant to any other provision in this
Construction Contract, Owner shall retain from progress payments, until payment is due under the terms
and conditions governing final payments, amounts as follows:
.1

Owner shall retain five percent (5%) of each progress payment to a maximum of five
percent (5%) of the Contract Sum.
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.2
9.7

In no event shall the amount retained be reduced to less than five percent (5%) of the
Contract Sum until after final acceptance of the Project by the Owner.
FAILURE OF PAYMENT

9.7.1 If the Project Manager does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor,
within ten (10) days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not, for
reasons other than a default of the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set
forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through 9.5.1.8, pay the Contractor within forty-five (45) days after the date
established in the Contract Documents any amount certified by the Project Manager, then the Contractor
may, upon seven (7) additional days' written notice to the Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount
owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall
be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, which
shall be effected by appropriate Change Order.
9.8

SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

9.8.1 The Work will not be considered suitable for Substantial Completion review until all project
systems included in the Work are operational as designed and scheduled, all designated or required
governmental inspections and certifications have been made and posted, designated instruction of Owner's
personnel in the operation of systems has been completed, and all final finishes within the Construction
Contract are in place. In general, the only remaining Work shall be minor in nature, so that the Owner
could occupy the building or utilize the improvements on that date and the completion of the Work by the
Contractor would not materially interfere or hamper the Owner's normal operations. As a further condition
of Substantial Completion acceptance, the Contractor shall certify that all remaining Work will be
completed within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days or as agreed upon by the Owner and Contractor in
writing following the Date of Substantial Completion.
9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a designated portion thereof which the Owner
agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Project
Manager a list of items to be completed or corrected. The Contractor shall proceed promptly to complete
and correct items on the list. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility
of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of the
Contractor’s list, the Project Manager will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated
portion thereof is Substantially Complete. If the Project Manager’s inspection discloses any item, whether
or not included on the Contractor’s list, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or
correct such items upon notification by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall then submit a request
for another inspection by the Project Manager to determine Substantial Completion. When the Work or
designated portion thereof is Substantially Complete, the Project Manager will prepare a Certificate of
Substantial Completion which shall establish the Date of Substantial Completion, shall state the
responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the
Work, and insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed
therein, which time shall be no longer than thirty (30) days after the scheduled completion date. The
Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and the Contractor for their written
acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.
9.8.3 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof and upon application by
the Contractor and certification by the Project Manager, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting
adjustment in retainage, if any, for such Work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract Documents.
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9.9

PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE

9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any
stage of construction regardless of whether the Contract Time has expired (hereinafter sometimes referred
to as “partial occupancy”). Such partial occupancy may commence whether or not the applicable portion
of the Work is Substantially Complete.
9.9.2 In the event of partial occupancy, the Contractor shall promptly secure endorsement from its
insurance carriers and consent from its sureties, if any.
9.9.3 In the event of partial occupancy before Substantial Completion as provided above, the Contractor
shall cooperate with the Owner in making available for the Owner’s use and benefit such building services
as heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting, telephone, elevators, and security for the portion or portions
to be occupied, and if the Work required to furnish such services is not entirely completed at the time the
Owner desires to occupy the aforesaid portion or portions, the Contractor shall make every reasonable effort
to complete such Work or make temporary provisions for such Work as soon as possible so that the
aforementioned building services may be put into operation and use. Similar provisions shall be made
where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner may use or occupy such portions
of the structure or improvement.
9.9.4 In the event of partial occupancy prior to Substantial Completion, mutually acceptable
arrangements shall be made between the Owner and Contractor in respect of the operation and cost of
necessary security, maintenance and utilities, including heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting,
telephone services, and elevators. The Owner shall assume proportionate and reasonable responsibility for
the cost of the above services, reduced by any savings to Contractor for such services realized by reason of
partial occupancy. Further, mutually acceptable arrangements shall be made between the Owner and
Contractor in respect of insurance and damage to the Work. Contractor's acceptance of arrangements
proposed by Owner in respect of such matters shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned.
Similar provisions shall be made where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner
may use or occupy such portions of the structure or improvement.
9.9.5 In each instance, when the Owner elects to exercise its right of partial occupancy as described
herein, Owner will give Contractor advance written notice of its election to take the portion or portions
involved, and immediately prior to partial occupancy, Contractor, and the Project Manager shall jointly
inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used to determine and record the conditions of
the same.
9.9.6 It shall be understood, however, that partial occupancy shall not: (1) constitute Final Acceptance
of any Work, (2) relieve the Contractor for responsibility for loss or damage because of or arising out of
defects in, or malfunctioning of, any Work, material, or equipment, nor from any other unfulfilled
obligations or responsibilities under the Contract Documents, or (3) commence any warranty period under
the Contract Documents; provided that Contractor shall not be liable for ordinary wear and tear resulting
from such partial occupancy.
9.9.7 Subject to the terms and conditions provided herein, if the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of partial occupancy by the Owner, Contractor shall make such claim as provided
elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
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9.10

FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

9.10.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and,
when he finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Construction Contract fully
performed, he will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of his knowledge,
information and belief, and on the basis of his observations and inspections, the Work has been completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found
to be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate, is due and payable. The Project Manager’s
final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that the conditions precedent to the
Contractor's being entitled to final payment as set forth in paragraph 9.10.2 have been fulfilled. Final
Payment is also subject to all City Charter and City Code requirements. Warranties required by the Contract
Documents shall commence on the date that the Project Manager issues a final Certificate of Payment to
the Owner.
9.10.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the
Contractor submits to the Project Manager:
9.10.2.1 Evidence of compliance with all requirements of the Contract Documents: notices, certificates,
affidavits, other requirements to complete obligations under the Contract Documents, including but not
limited to (a) instruction of Owner’s representatives in the operation of mechanical, electrical, plumbing
and other systems, (b) delivery of keys to Owner with keying schedules, sub-master and special keys, (c)
delivery to Owner of Contractor’s general warranty as described in Paragraph 3.5, and each written
warranty and assignment thereof prepared in duplicate, certificates of inspections, and bonds for Project
Manager’s review and delivery to Owner, (d) delivery to Project Manager of printed or typewritten
operating, servicing, maintenance and cleaning instructions for the Work; parts lists and special tools for
mechanical and electrical work;
9.10.2.2 If required by the Owner, (a) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and
other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or his property might in any way be
responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (b) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, and (c)
other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers
of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Construction Contract, to the extent
and in such form as may be designated by the Owner, and (d) a final waiver of liens in a form satisfactory
to Owner, covering all Work including that of all subcontractors, vendors, labor, materials and services,
executed by an authorized officer and duly notarized;
9.10.2.3 In addition to the foregoing, all other submissions required by other articles and paragraphs of the
specifications including final construction schedule shall be submitted to the Project Manager before
approval of Final Payment;
9.10.2.4 If any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor
may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against any such lien. If any such
lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all monies
that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys'
fees.
9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through
no fault of the Contractor or by the issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Project
Manager so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Project
Manager, and without terminating the Construction Contract, make payment of the balance due for that
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portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed
or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if bonds have been
furnished, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Project Manager prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final
payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.
9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Owner except those
arising from:
.1

unsettled liens,

.2

faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion,

.3

failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents,

.4

terms of any special warranties required by the Contract Documents, or

.5

replacement of material or equipment which is rejected if found, after the date of final
payment, to be defective, or inferior in quality or uniformity, to the material or equipment
specified, or is not as represented to the Project Manager and Owner.

9.10.5 The acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a subcontractor, or supplier shall constitute a
waiver of all claims by that payee.
9.10.6 Pursuant to § 24-91-103, C.R.S., if the Contract Sum exceeds One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00), Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall only be made upon compliance with the
following publication requirement. The Owner shall publish a “notice of final payment” at least twice in an
Arapahoe County newspaper of general circulation prior to making final payment to the Contractor. This
notice of final payment advertises the date, time, and place when final payment will be made and is intended
to alert subcontractors so they can present any claims for unpaid amounts to the Owner. Notwithstanding
anything in the Contract Documents to the contrary, final payment shall not be made to Contractor until the
Owner has complied with § 38-26-107, C.R.S. and all claims, if any, have been resolved to the satisfaction
of the Owner.
ARTICLE 10
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10.1

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS

10.1.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, including, but not limited to, implementing,
managing, and enforcing construction industry best practices and protocols for maintaining worker and
jobsite safety at the Project related to COVID-19.
10.1.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, in the event the Contractor encounters on
the site material reasonably believed to be asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) which has not been
rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop work in the area affected and report the condition
to the Owner in writing. The Work in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed except by written
agreement of the Owner and Contractor, if in fact the material is asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)
and has not been rendered harmless. The Work in the affected area shall be resumed in the absence of
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asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or when it has been rendered harmless, upon written direction
of Owner.
10.1.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not be required pursuant
to Article 7 to perform without consent any Work relating to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB).
10.2

SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

10.2.1 The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all necessary
protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
.1

all persons involved in or affected by the Work;

.2

all the Work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage
on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of his
subcontractors or sub-subcontractors; and

.3

other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including but not limited to trees, shrubs,
lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, ditches, fences, gates, private property, and
utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

.4

The Contractor shall take all measures necessary to mitigate the impact of weather so that
the Project may continue on schedule. In no event shall the Owner be liable for extra costs
incurred on materials and any part of the Work due to the Contractor’s failing to take all
measures necessary to protect the Work from weather and the Contractor shall not be
entitled to such claims. Also, no extension of the Contract Time shall be allowed if the
Contractor is able to proceed with other Work related to the Project.

10.2.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property, or their
protection from damage, injury or loss, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA), as applicable, and all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees
in response to COVID-19.
10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the
Work, all necessary safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other
warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent
utilities of the safeguards and protections, and complying with the orders, resolutions, and decrees of all
federal, state and local governmental agencies, instrumentalities and authorities having jurisdiction over
the Project or Contractor, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to COVID-19.
10.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss at its sole cost and expense (other than
damage or loss insured under Paragraph 11.3) to any property referred to in Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3
caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, any sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for
which the Contractor is responsible under Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable
to the acts or omissions of the Owner or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone
for whose acts the Owner may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor.
Utility locate services provided in the field by the Owner shall not be deemed an act or omission that relieves
Contractor of its responsibility hereunder. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to
his obligations under Paragraph 3.5.
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10.2.5 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.
This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in
writing to the Owner.
10.2.6 The Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger its
safety, nor shall the Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures
that will endanger it.
10.3

EMERGENCIES

10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at his
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any additional compensation or extension of time
claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency Work shall be determined as provided in Paragraph
4.3, Paragraph 8.3 and Article 7.
10.4

USE OF EXPLOSIVES, DRIVING OR REMOVAL OF PILES, WRECKING,
EXCAVATION WORK OR OTHER SIMILAR AND POTENTIALLY
DANGEROUS WORK

10.4.1 When the use of explosives, driving or removal of piles, wrecking, excavation work or other
similarly potentially dangerous work is necessary for the prosecution of the Work, the Contractor shall
exercise the utmost care so as not to endanger life or property and shall carry on such activities under the
supervision of properly qualified personnel, such potentially dangerous work shall not be undertaken unless
and until the Project Manager has authorized same.
10.4.2 Detonation of explosives by the Contract shall be by permit authorized by Owner. The following
information must be submitted to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof at least thirty (30)
days prior to the detonation of explosives:
.1

A graphic plan showing locations of proposed explosive use and improvements (including
structures, roadways, utilities, etc.) on the property, surrounding land uses, and
improvements on adjacent properties within a distance equal to 1000 feet plus the
maximum distance of vibration as specified in the report described below.

.2

A geotechnical report prepared by Colorado-registered professional engineer describing
the geology of the area and the impacts of explosive use in the area, including wave
attenuation and travel distance and potential impacts on improvements in the area.

.3

An analysis of alternatives to explosives, including safety, time, and monetary comparisons
of the alternatives.
The Contractor shall ensure that audible signals warning persons of danger will be given
before detonation of explosives.

.4

As a condition of permitting the detonation of explosives as part of the Work, the Developer or Contractor
shall submit to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof a certificate of insurance for coverage
of detonation of explosives in the minimum following amounts: $2,000,000 for property damage, each
accident; and $2,000,000 for public liability, bodily injury, single limit or equivalent, each accident. Owner
shall be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy.
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10.4.3 The Contractor shall be fully responsible for, and shall save and hold Owner harmless from, any
and all damages, claims, and for the defense of any actions against the Owner resulting from the prosecution
of such Work in connection with or arising out of the Contract Documents.
10.4.4 The Contractor shall notify each public utility company or other owner of property having
structures or improvements in proximity to the site of the Work, of his intent to perform potentially
dangerous work. Such notice shall be given sufficiently in advance to enable the companies or other owners
of property to take such steps as they may deem necessary to protect their property from injury. Such notice
shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for any damages, claims, or the defense of any actions
against the Owner resulting from the performance of such Work in connection with or arising out of the
Construction Contract.
10.4.5 All explosives shall be stored in a secure manner and all storage places shall be marked clearly
"EXPLOSIVES - KEEP OFF" and shall be in the care of competent watchmen at all times. The Contractor
shall also be required to obtain any permits which may be required by the South Metro Fire Rescue
Authority or other fire district having jurisdiction.
10.5

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

10.5.1 Known Underground Utilities and other underground structures are shown on the Drawings only
to the extent such information has been made available to or discovered by the Owner. It is expected that
there may be discrepancies and omissions in the location and quantities of actual Underground Utilities and
other underground structures and those shown. This information is shown for the convenience of the
Contractor, but is not guaranteed to be either correct or complete, and all responsibility for the accuracy
and completeness thereof is expressly disclaimed by Owner. The Contractor shall, ahead of excavation,
confirm the location of all Underground Utilities and other underground structures so that they will not be
accidentally damaged by the construction operation. Contractor shall be responsible for contacting all utility
owners concerning location of all above ground utilities and Underground Utilities before proceeding with
the Work. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be provided in the field by utility owners,
Contractor shall verify actual location, and Contractor remains solely responsible for any claims or damage
to Underground Utilities or other facilities or structures caused by excavating. Contractor is responsible for,
at no additional cost to the owner, potholing all existing Underground Utilities to be crossed or that may
otherwise affect their means and methods for constructing the Project prior to beginning any construction
on the Project.
ARTICLE 11
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
11.1

CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

The Contractor agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of insurance sufficient
to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Contractor pursuant
to the Contract Documents, including but not limited to Paragraphs 3.13, 3.17 and 3.18 hereof, in addition
to any other insurance requirements imposed by the Contract Documents or by law. The Contractor shall
not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed by reason of its failure to
procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient
amounts, durations or types.
11.1.1 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and
maintain, at its own expense, valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance
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throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of the policy or signed certificate of
insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times. Evidence of qualified self-insurance status may be
substituted for the Workers’ Compensation Insurance requirements of this paragraph.
11.1.1.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice of
cancellation or intention of non-renewal to the Owner.
11.1.1.2 Limits of liability for Worker’s Compensation Insurance shall be in conformance with the statutory
requirements of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of the State of Colorado. Limits of Employers Liability
Insurance shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injuries, $1,000,000 per employee for bodily injury
by occupational disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injuries by disease.
11.1.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own
expense, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance throughout the entire term of its obligations to the
Owner. A copy of the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.2.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give all named parties a minimum of a thirty (30)
day notice of cancellation or intention to non-renew coverage or any material change or restriction of
coverage.
11.1.2.2 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence;
Bodily Injury and Property Damage combined, Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.
11.1.2.3 The following coverages shall be included in the policy:
.1

Premises, operations and elevators, including work let or sublet, to cover all claims for
bodily injury (including but not limited to death, disease or sickness) and damage or
destruction or loss of use of any tangible property.

.2

Products and completed operations.

.3

Broad form blanket contractual liability with all exclusions deleted.

.4

Personal injury liability.

.5

Explosions, collapse, and underground hazards.

.6

Broad form property damage endorsement.

.7

Incidental malpractice.

.8

Independent contractors.

11.1.2.4 The products and completed operations coverage shall be maintained in effect for a period of six
(6) years after the date of final acceptance of the Work.
11.1.3 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its
own expense, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. A copy of a certificate of insurance shall
be on file with the Owner at all times. The policy shall contain a severability of interests’ provision.
11.1.3.1 The policy shall cover all owned or leased vehicles operated by the insured as well as coverage for
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all non-owned or hired vehicles used by the insured in the course of his operations.
11.1.3.2 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days notice of
cancellation or intent to non-renew to Owner.
11.1.3.3 The limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (combined single
limit).
11.1.4 Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense,
an Umbrella (excess) Liability policy throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of
the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.4.1 Policy shall be in excess of all underlying insurance including employer’s liability, written on a
follow form basis.
11.1.4.2 Policy shall not contain any exclusions for hazards, or contractual hazards.
11.1.4.3 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).
11.1.5 Owner’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense, an
Owner's Liability policy in the name of the Owner.
11.1.5.1 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.
11.2

ADDITIONAL NAMED INSURED

11.2.1 The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability coverages, and the Commercial General Liability additional
insured coverage shall include products and completed operations coverage. The Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability additional insured coverage shall be primary with respect to
claims made by the City.
11.3

BUILDER’S RISK/PROPERTY INSURANCE

11.3.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the entire Work at the site to
the full insurable value thereof. Such insurance shall be in a company or companies against which the
Owner has no reasonable objection.
This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, subcontractors and subsubcontractors in the Work as additional insureds, providing that such insurance is primary with respect to
claims made by the additional insureds, and be in the form of "all risk" insurance for physical loss or damage
with all exclusions deleted. If not covered under all risk insurance or otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall effect and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the Work
stored off the site or in transit when such portions of the Work are to be included in a Request for Payment
under paragraph 9.3.2.
11.3.1.1 The form of policy for this coverage shall be "Completed Value". The coverage under this policy
shall include contemplated work and work in progress.
11.3.1.2 If by the terms of this insurance any mandatory deductibles are required, or if the Contractor
should elect, with the concurrence of the Owner, to increase the mandatory deductible amounts or purchase
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this insurance with voluntary deductible amounts, the Contractor shall be responsible for payment of the
amount of all deductibles in the event of a paid claim. If separate contractors are added as insureds to be
covered by this policy, the separate contractor shall be responsible for payment of appropriate parts of any
deductibles in the event claims are paid on their part of the Project.
11.4

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

11.4.1 The Contractor shall file two (2) certified copies of all policies with the Project Manager before the
date of commencement of the Work. If the Owner is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to maintain
such insurance and to so notify the Owner, then the Contractor shall bear all reasonable costs properly
attributable thereto. The Owner reserves the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy at
any time, and any and all endorsements to said policy.
11.4.2 All insurance policies and/or certificates of insurance required under the Contract Documents shall
be issued subject to the following stipulations by the Insurer:
.1

Underwriter shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against the Owner, it being the
intent of the parties that the insurance policy so effected shall protect both parties and be
primary coverage for any and all losses covered by the described insurance.

.2

The clause entitled "Other Insurance Provisions" contained in any policy including the
Owner as an additional insured shall not apply to the Owner.

.3

The insurance companies issuing the policy or policies shall have no recourse against the
Owner for payment of any premiums due or for any assessments under any form of any
policy.

.4

Any and all deductibles contained in any insurance policy shall be assumed by and shall
be the sole liability of the Contractor.

11.4.3 Additional coverages or higher limits of liability may be required by the Owner should the scope
or nature of the work change during the course of the Construction Contract. All liability insurance and
builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall specifically provide that all coverage
limits shall be exclusive of costs of defense, including attorneys’ fees.
11.4.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all subcontractors or suppliers obtain
and maintain in force for the term of this Construction Contract insurance policies sufficient to meet the
minimum coverages required under the Contract Documents.
11.4.5 Nothing contained in this Article 11 shall be construed as limiting the extent of the Contractor's
responsibility for payment of damages resulting from his operations under the Construction Contract.
Contractor agrees that he alone shall be completely responsible for procuring and maintaining full insurance
coverage to adequately insure against the risk attendant to the performance of this Construction Contract.
Any approvals of Contractor's insurance coverages by the Owner or the Project Manager shall not operate
to the contrary.
11.4.6 The risk of loss to any property to be provided by Contractor to Owner pursuant to the Contract
Documents shall be upon the Contractor until said property has been finally accepted by Owner.
11.4.7 Nothing in this Article 11 shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any of the protections to
which Owner may be entitled under the Constitution of the State of Colorado or pursuant to the Colorado
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Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.
11.4.8 The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and all endorsements required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. It shall be an affirmative obligation of Contractor
to provide written notice to the Owner within two (2) days of the cancellation of or substantive change
to any of the policies required herein and failure to do so shall constitute a breach of the Contract.
11.4.9 All insurance required under the Contract Documents shall be obtained from financially responsible
insurance companies with a current Best’s Insurance Guide Rating of A- and Class VII or better, licensed
in the State of Colorado, and approved by the Owner, and shall be maintained until the Contractor's Work
is accepted by the Owner. The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. The Owner may, in writing, specifically indicate its
approval or disapproval of each separate policy provided pursuant to the Contract Documents.
11.4.10 All policies under the Contract Documents that are scheduled to expire prior to the time the
Contractor's Work is finally accepted by the Owner shall be renewed prior to the scheduled expiration date
and evidence of such renewal shall be submitted to the Owner for approval.
11.4.11 If any of the policies required under the Contract Documents shall be or at any time become
unsatisfactory to the Owner as to form or substance, or if a company issuing any such policy shall be or at
any time become unsatisfactory to the Owner, Owner shall so advise Contractor who shall promptly obtain
a new policy, submit the same to the City for approval, and thereafter submit a certificate of insurance as
hereinabove provided.
11.4.12 All liability insurance and builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall
be occurrence-based policies.
ARTICLE 12
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12.1

UNCOVERING OF WORK

12.1.1 If any portion of the Work should be covered contrary to the request of the Project Manager or
Owner or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing
by the Project Manager, be uncovered for his observation and shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense
without change in the Contract Time or Contract Sum.
12.1.2 If any other portion of the Work has been covered which the Owner or Project Manager has not
specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, the Project Manager or Owner may request to see
such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to the
Owner. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such
costs unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor, in which event the Owner
shall be responsible for the payment of such costs.
12.2

CORRECTION OF WORK

12.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct all Work rejected by the Project Manager as incomplete,
defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after Substantial
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Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of
correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections and compensation for any
additional services made necessary thereby.
12.2.2 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Paragraph 3.5, if, within one (1) year after the
Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or within one (1) year after
acceptance by the Owner of designated equipment or within such longer period of time as may be prescribed
by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the
Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously
given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. This period of one (1) year shall be extended
with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between
Substantial Completion and the actual performance of the Work. This obligation shall survive acceptance
of the Work and termination of the Construction Contract. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after
discovery of the condition by the Owner.
12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site all portions of the Work which are defective or nonconforming and which have not been corrected or accepted by the Owner.
12.2.4 If the Contractor fails to correct defective or nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the
Owner may correct it in accordance with Paragraph 2.4.
12.2.5 If the Contractor does not proceed with the correction of such defective or non-conforming Work
within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Project Manager, the Owner may remove it and
may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor. If the Contractor does not pay the
cost of such removal and storage within ten (10) days thereafter, the Owner may upon ten (10) additional
days' written notice sell such Work at auction or at private sale and shall account for the net proceeds
thereof, after deducting all the costs that should have been borne by the Contractor, including compensation
for any additional services made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which
the Contractor should have borne, the difference shall be charged to the Contractor and an appropriate
Change Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to
cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.
12.2.6 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction, whether
completed or partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused, in whole or in part, by the
Contractor's correction or removal of Work which is defective or not in accordance with the requirements
of the Contract Documents.
12.2.7 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with
respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including
Paragraph 3.5 hereof, or under law or in equity. The establishment of the time period of one (1) year after
the Date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the
terms of any warranty required by the Contract Documents relates only to the specific obligation of the
Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which his obligation to comply
with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may
be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to his obligations other than specifically
to correct the Work.
12.3

ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING WORK

12.3.1. If the Owner prefers to accept defective or nonconforming Work, he may do so instead of requiring
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its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a reduction in the Contract
Sum where appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has
been made.
ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13.1

GOVERNING LAW

13.1.1 The Construction Contract shall be governed by the law of the State of Colorado. Those provisions
of law applicable but discretionary because of the Owner’s status as a home-rule municipality shall be
binding at the Owner’s election.
13.2

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

13.2.1 The Owner and the Contractor each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of
such other party with respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract
Documents. Neither party to the Construction Contract shall assign, sublet, or transfer (by operation of law
or otherwise) any interest in the Construction Contract without the prior written consent of the other. The
Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the Construction Contract or any monies due or to
become due thereunder without the prior written consent of the Owner and of the surety on the Contractor's
bond. Any assignment without such written consent shall be void. A copy of such consent of surety,
together with a copy of the assignment, shall be filed with the Project Manager. In case the Contractor
assigns all or part of any monies due or to become due under the Construction Contract, the instrument of
assignment shall contain a clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in
and to any monies due or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior claims and liens of all
persons, firms and corporations for services rendered; for the payment of all laborers and mechanics for
labor performed; for the payment of all materials and equipment used or furnished and for payment of all
materials and equipment used or rented in the performance of the Work called for in the Construction
Contract; and for the payment of any liens, claims, or amounts due the Federal, State or local governments
or any of their funds. This restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the
Contractor's right to payment to its surety or lender.
13.3

WRITTEN NOTICE

13.3.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and may
be given, served, or made by depositing the same in the United States mail addressed to the party to be
notified, postpaid and registered or certified with return receipt requested, or by delivering the same in
person. Notice deposited in the mail in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be effective unless
otherwise stated in the Construction Contract from and after the fourth day next following the date deposited
in the mail, or when actually received, whichever is earlier. Notice given in any other manner shall be
effective only if and when received by the party to be notified. All notices to be given shall be sent to or
made at the last business address known to the party giving notice.
13.4

CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

13.4.1 Should either party to the Construction Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property
because of any act or omission of the other party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose
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acts he is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after
the first observance of such injury or damage. All claims by Contractor against Owner that are within the
scope of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., shall be subject to, and
brought in accordance with, the provisions of said Act.
13.5

PERFORMANCE, PAYMENT, MAINTENANCE AND WARRANTY BOND

13.5.1 The Contractor will be required, simultaneously with the execution of the Construction Contract,
to furnish a Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond, in an amount equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the Contract Sum. Said bond shall be issued by a responsible surety approved by the
Owner and shall guarantee the faithful performance of the Construction Contract and the terms and
conditions herein contained and the maintenance of the proposed improvements in good repair according
to the terms contained in the Construction Contract. Accompanying the bond form shall be a "Power of
Attorney" authorizing the attorney in fact to bind the surety company and certified to include the date of
the bond. Such bond shall be on a form provided by the Owner.
13.5.2 The Contractor shall deliver said bond to the Project Manager no later than the date of execution
of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor fails or neglects to deliver the bond, as specified, he shall
be considered to have abandoned the Construction Contract and his bid security will be forfeited.
13.6

RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

13.6.1 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. Such rights and remedies shall survive the acceptance of
the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents.
13.6.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Project Manager or Contractor shall constitute a waiver
of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Construction Contract, nor shall any such action or
failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be
specifically agreed in writing.
13.6.3 In all actions by the Owner to enforce its rights and remedies hereunder, whether at law or equity,
the Owner, in addition to all other remedies, shall be entitled to recovery of its reasonable attorneys fees
and costs.
13.6.4 The Contractor agrees that the economic loss rule as set forth in the Town of Alma v. Azco
Construction, Inc., 10 P.3d 1256 (Colo. 2000), shall not serve as a limitation on the Owner's right to pursue
tort remedies in addition to other remedies it may have against the Contractor. Such rights and remedies
shall survive the acceptance of the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents. Contractor further
specifically waives all the provisions of Chapter 8 of Article 20 of Title 13, Colorado Revised Statues,
regarding defects in the Work under the Construction Contract.
13.7

TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

13.7.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or
by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of public authorities having jurisdiction shall be made at
an appropriate time. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests,
inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with
the appropriate public authority. The Contractor shall give the Project Manager and the Owner timely
notice of its readiness so the Project Manager and the Owner may observe such inspection, testing or
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approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests or approvals.
13.7.2 If the Project Manager or public authority having jurisdiction determines that any Work requires
additional or special inspection, testing, or approval which paragraph 13.7.1 does not include, the Project
Manager may instruct the Contractor to order such additional or special inspection, testing or approval, and
the Contractor shall give notice as provided in paragraph 13.7.1. If such additional or special inspection or
testing reveals a failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, or if the
necessity of any such testing, inspection, or approval procedures arises out of the fault, neglect, or omission
of Contractor, the Contractor shall bear all costs of such testing, inspection, and approval procedures,
including compensation for any additional services made necessary by such failure; otherwise the Owner
shall bear such costs, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued.
13.7.3 Required certificates of inspection, testing or approval, unless otherwise required by Contract
Documents, shall be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered by him to the Project Manager.
13.7.4 If the Project Manager is to observe the inspections, tests or approvals required by the Contract
Documents, he will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.
13.7.5 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to
avoid delay in the Work.
13.8

LITIGATION AND WORK PROGRESS

13.8.1 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Contractor shall carry on the Work and maintain its progress
during any litigation proceedings, and the Owner shall continue to make payments to the Contractor in
accordance with the Contract Documents.
13.9

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

13.9.1 In connection with the execution of this Construction Contract, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex,
handicap, or national origin, if otherwise qualified. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, lay-off or
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including
apprenticeship.
13.10

COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE SUBSTANCE SCREENING

13.10.1 The Contractor shall provide written assurance to the City that each driver that provides services
requiring a commercial driver’s license pursuant to this Construction Contract participates in an alcohol
and controlled substances testing program that meets the requirements of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Regulations found at 49 C.F.R. Part 382.
ARTICLE 14
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
14.1

TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR

14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract if all of the Work is stopped for a
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continuous period of sixty (60) days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, subsubcontractor, or their agents or employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under
contract with the Contractor, for any of the following reasons:
.1

issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction, except as
provided below in this Section 14.1.1;

.2

an act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, making material
unavailable;

.3

because the Project Manager has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified
the Contractor of the reason for withholding certification as provided in paragraph 9.4.1,
or because the Owner has not made payment on a Certificate for Payment (without cause)
within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

.4

if repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions by the Owner as described in paragraph
14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than one hundred percent (100%) of the total number
of days scheduled for completion, or one hundred twenty (120) days in any three hundred
sixty-five (365) day period, whichever is less.

In addition, if all of the Work is stopped for a continuous period of ninety (90) days due to any governmental
or quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19, and the cause of such Work
stoppage is not any act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract with the Contractor, then
Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract.
14.1.2 If one of the above reasons exists, the Contractor may, upon fourteen (14) days' advance written
notice to the Owner, terminate the Construction Contract, unless this reason is cured prior to the expiration
of the notice period. Contractor may recover from the Owner payment for Work properly executed in
accordance with Contract Documents (the basis for such payment shall be as provided in the Construction
Contract) and payment for costs directly related to work thereafter performed by Contractor in terminating
such work, including reasonable demobilization and cancellation charges. The Owner shall not be
responsible for damages for loss of anticipated profits on work not performed on account of any termination
described in paragraphs 14.1.1 and 14.1.2.
14.2

TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE

14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Construction Contract if the Contractor:
.1
.2
.3
.4
.5

refuses or fails to supply, in a timely manner, enough properly skilled workers or proper
materials or equipment;
fails to make payment to subcontractors or suppliers for materials, equipment, or labor in
accordance with the respective agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors
or suppliers;
disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of the City or other governmental
entity having jurisdiction;
disregards the instructions of Owner when such instructions are based on the requirements
of the Contract Documents;
is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of
Contractor's creditors, or a trustee or receiver is appointed for Contractor or for any of its
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property, or files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under
bankruptcy or similar law; or
otherwise does not fully comply with the Contract Documents.

14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or
remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and Contractor's surety, if any, seven (7) days' written
notice, (except in cases of emergency as reasonably determined by Owner), terminate the services of the
Contractor and may:
.1

take possession of the site and project and of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned, rented, or leased by the Contractor;
and

.2

finish the Work by whatever method the Owner may deem expedient.

14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Construction Contract for one (1) of the reasons stated in paragraph
14.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.
14.2.4 To the extent the costs of completing the Work, including compensation for additional professional
services and expenses, exceed those costs which would have been payable to Contractor to complete the
Work except for Contractor's default, Contractor will pay the difference to Owner, and this obligation for
payment shall survive termination of the Construction Contract.
14.2.5 In addition to Owner's right to remove Contractor from any part of the Work pursuant to the
Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause:
.1
terminate the Construction Contract for convenience prior to commencement of the Work,
provided that Owner shall not exercise this right unreasonably;
.2
terminate the Construction Contract if, after the Work has commenced, the Work is delayed
for a continuous period of seventy-five (75) days due to any governmental or quasi-governmental
orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19; or
.3
terminate any part of the Work or any subcontract or all remaining Work for any reason
whatsoever by giving written notice to Contractor specifying the part of the Work or subcontract
to be terminated and the effective date of termination. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the
part of the Work not terminated, if any. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents
shall remain in full force and effect.
14.2.6 In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5.1, Owner shall pay Contractor an amount
equivalent to Contractor’s reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation charges as the sole amount
due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract. In the event of termination pursuant to
paragraph 14.2.5.2, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the
Construction Contract the sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to
date, including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination). In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph
14.2.5.3, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract
the following: (i) sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to date,
including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination); (ii) reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation
charges; and (iii) as additional and special consideration for this provision, a profit for underperformed
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work equal to one-half percent (0.5%) of the cost of the Work actually performed to date.
14.2.7 Upon a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that the termination of Contractor
pursuant to paragraph 14.2.1 was wrongful, such termination will be deemed converted to a termination for
convenience pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5 and Contractor's remedy for wrongful termination shall be
limited to the recovery of the payments permitted for termination for convenience as set forth in paragraph
14.2.6.
14.3

SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE

14.3.1 In addition to Owner's right to suspend, delay, or interrupt Contractor from any part of the Work
pursuant to the Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause, suspend, delay, or
interrupt all or any part of the Work or any subcontract for all or any part of the work for any reason
whatsoever for such period of time as the Owner may determine by giving written notice to Contractor
specifying the part of the Work or subcontract to be suspended, delayed, or interrupted and the effective
date of such suspension, delay, or interruption. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the part of the Work
not suspended, delayed, or interrupted and shall properly protect and secure the part of the Work so
suspended, delayed, or interrupted. If any part of the Work or subcontract is so suspended, delayed, or
interrupted, Contractor shall be entitled to payment of reasonable standby fees (or at Owner's option,
payment for demobilization and subsequent remobilization) and of costs directly associated with protecting
and securing the affected Work; provided, however, that payment by Owner of any such fees and costs
shall not be required for any suspension, delay, or interruption in Contractor’s performance of the Work
resulting from an order, resolution, or other decree by the City Council or City Manager of Cherry Hills
Village that is issued in response to COVID-19. Further, no payment shall be made by Owner, however,
to the extent that such Work or subcontract is, was, or could have been suspended, delayed, or interrupted
under the Contract Documents or an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the
Construction Contract. In case of such suspension, delay, or interruption, Owner will issue a Construction
Change Directive or authorize a Change Order making any required adjustment to the Date of Substantial
Completion or the Contract Sum. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents shall remain in
full force and effect.
14.3.2 The rights and remedies of Owner under this Paragraph 14.3 shall be non-exclusive, and shall be
in addition to all the other remedies available to Owner at law or in equity.
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EXHIBIT C

III.

FORM OF BID

Bidder: Sunland Asphalt & Construction Inc.
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-002
This Bid is dated

February 21st

,

2020

The City of Cherry Hills Village, State of Colorado.

To:

BASE BID
Item

#

Description

Estimated Quantity

I

Removal & Replacement Multiple Crosspans

69.1 Cubic Yards

$431.58

$29,822.18

2

Sunrise Subdivision Valley Pans

44.4 Cubic Yards

$431.58

$19,162.15

3

Cherry Vale Drive New Construction VP

26.1 Cubic Yards

$431.58

$11,264.24

4

Devonshire Hts / Segdwick CP & CG

12.5 Cubic Yards

$431.58

$5,394.75

5

E. Quincy Ave. & Happy Canyon Road

8 Cubic Yards

$431.58

$3,452.64

Total Base Bid

$69,095.96

Unit

Unit Cost

Cost Extended

6

7

Summary of Work

All concrete replaced must have residential fiber added at the batch plant. All areas for concrete
removal and replacement, or new installation will be pre-marked by the Project Manager. ALL
IRRIGATION and egregious landscape damage, including adjoining sidewalks will be the
responsibility of the Contractor for repair. All asphalt patch back operations and minor landscape
repairs will be the responsibility of the City. All utility locates will be the responsibility of the
Contractor. All Traffic Control, Road Closures, Detours and Flaggers at these locations will be the
responsibility of the Contractor. A Pre-Bid Tour is strongly recommended.
The City of Cherry Hills Village reserves the right to Delete portions or Quantities of this Bid I Project
at any time.
The City will allow adjoining asphalt edges to act as street side forms as much as possible, if adjoining
asphalt is in good / solid condition with no low or high spots.
The above quantities are Estimates only. It is the Contractors responsibility to view the proposed
construction project sites at their discretion prior to bidding. A City representative can be available
Tuesday through Friday for a Pre-Bid project tour per appointment. Appointments must be scheduled
48 hours in advance. Contact Project Manager, Ralph Mason, 303-783-2741 for appointments.
The City does not recognize Mobilization, Re-mobilization, or De-mobilization as a separate line item.
The City does not recognize Tear Out / Demo of concrete, asphalt, sub-grade or hauling as a separate
line item.
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The City does not recognize Traffic Control as a separate line item.
The Contractor will need to Build Into The Contract: mobilizations, demolitions, hauling and all traffic
control into Unit Costs.
The Contractor shall have a City approved, watertight, concrete washout container on all sites before
any work can begin.
The Contractor shall have a Port-a-Pot I Toilet on site before any work can begin.
The Contactor shall only stage equipment, construction materials, concrete washout container, and port
a pot to perform the project in City approved and pre-marked areas.
All concrete and asphalt to be removed and replaced will be pre-marked in white spray paint by the
Project Manager. To make room for concrete forms and proper compaction of sub-grade the Contractor
may be responsible to remove eighteen (18”) inches of asphalt from all adjoining concrete to be replaced
unless otherwise directed.
The City will perform all asphalt patch back operations and minor landscape repairs.
The Contractor will be responsible for any major landscape or private driveway or walkway repairs
damaged during demolition (removal) or replacement of pre-marked asphalt and concrete.
All damaged irrigation / sprinkler systems will be the responsibility of the Contractor for repair.
All utility locates will be the responsibility of the Contractor.
All compaction must be done with a jumping jack / vibratory rammer, for maximum sub-grade
compaction, No Plate Compactors.
All road base needed for sub-grade preparation is the responsibility of the Contractor to supply. It is
anticipated that the native soil under most of the concrete pans will be acceptable.
A Pre-Bid Tour is Strongly Recommended. A Pre-Bid Tour can be scheduled by contacting the Project
Manager, Ralph Mason at 303-783-2741 or email at rmason(àcherryhillsvillage.com
All work to be performed between the months of March
paving operations.
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16th

and June

12th

of 2020, ahead of asphalt

IV.

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER
(Complete and submit attached to your bid)

STATE OF

arizona

COU1’TY OF

)

Maricopa

)ss.

)

Doug DeClusin
(1) He is the
inc

,

being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

CEO/President
of_Sunland Asphalt & Construction
the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid (the “Bid”);
,

(2) He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent
circumstances respecting such Bid;
(3) Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid;
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partner, owners agents, representatives, employees or
parties in intcrcst, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly
or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with
the Construction Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted or to refiain from bidding in
connection with such Construction Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by
agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead,
profit or cost element of the bid price or the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through the collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cherry Hills Village or
persons interested in the proposed Construction Contract; and

(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives,
owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.
Signed:
By:
Printed Nam
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25

day of February

,

Susan M Skalniak
as Accounting Administrator
(title)
(Affiant)
of Sunland Asphalt & Construct1onInc Corporation
(corporation or partnership)
(Bidder)
pursuant to the laws of the State of Arizona

,

2020, by

organized

Notary Pubic Ai
-

Notary Public
My Commission Expires

MARICQPA COUNTY
Susan M Skainjak
My Commission Expires
June 19,21

6-19-202 1
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V.

BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION (Complete and submit attached to your bid)

To:

City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado (hereinafter called “CITY”).

From:

Sunland Asphalt & Construction Inc
(hereinafter “Bidder”),
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona
doing business
as (a corporation), (a partnership), (an individual).

The Bidder, in compliance with the City’s Invitation for Bids and Instructions to Bidders, hereby proposes
to perform all work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents within the time set forth therein, and
at the prices stated on the included Bid Form as totaled herein (the “Bid”).
By submission of this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint venture each party
thereto certifies as to his own organization, that the Bid has been arrived at independently, without
consultation, communication, or agreement as to any matters relating to this Bid with any other Bidder or
with any competitor.
The undersigned, having thoroughly inspected the existing conditions in the Project area affecting the cost
of the Worlc and having thoroughly examined all of the Contract Documents, together with all other forms,
attachments, and information required or otherwise submitted with this Bid, hereby offers to furnish all
supervision, technical personnel, labor, materials, machinery, tools, equipment and services including
utility and transportation services and to perform and complete all work required for:
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-002
Proj ect Deseriptioi
Item #1. Completely Remove and Replace, or Partially Remove and Replace, portions of
approximately Ten (10) concrete cross pans at multiple intersections / locations throughout the City of
Cherry Hills Village. All new cross pan’s to be replaced at nine-inch (9”) depth. This may require
some sub-grade excavation. The Contractor may need to remove approximately eighteen inches (18”)
of adjoining asphalt on either side of concrete pan being repaired unless otherwise directed. Some of
these cross pans will need to be done in halves as there is only one way into and out of the designated
streets. Detours will be allowed where practicable. The City will provide all asphalt patch back. The
Project Manager will pre-mark in white spray paint all areas to be repaired.
Item #2. Sunrise Drive Subdivision. Work in this subdivision will consist of removal and
replacement of approximately six hundred feet (600’) of four foot (4’) valley pans, including possible
removal of eighteen inches (18”) of adjoining asphalt on the street side of the valley pan if pre-marked
in white spray paint. All concrete replacement in this subdivision will need to be at six inch (6”) depth.
This may require some sub-grade removal / excavation. The City will provide all asphalt patch back.
The Project Manager will pee-mark in white spray paint all areas to be repaired.
Item #3. Cherry Vale Drive. Work on this City street will consist of constructing
approximately four hundred and seventy feet (470’) of three foot (3’) valley pan in an existing bar
ditch. All concrete constructed in this new valley pan will be at six inches (6”) in depth. The City will
have needed portions of the bar ditch filled with compactable soils prior to the start of the new
concrete installation. This site will need to be surveyed! grade shot to ensure proper flow. The City
WILL ALLOW valley pan depth to vary to ensure proper flow. The contractor may need to remove
some adjoining asphalt to ensure proper flow and clean edges. The City will provide all asphalt patch
back.
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Item #4. Devonshire Heights I Sedgwick Drive Entrance Area. Work at this location will
consist of removal and replacement of one fifty foot (50’) by five foot (5’) cross pan at nine inch (9”)
depth and removal and replacement of one hundred and twenty feet (120’) of thirty inch (30”) curb
and gutter. The Contractor may need to remove approximately eighteen inches (18”) of adjoining
asphalt. The City will provide all asphalt patch back. The Project Manager will pre-mark in white
spray paint all areas to be repaired.
Item #5. E. Quincy Ave. & Happy Canyon Road. Work at this location will consist of removal,
re-alignment, and replacement of approximately one hundred feet (100’) of thirty inch (30”) curb and
gutter pan ten inches (10”) in depth. Demolition at this intersection will include the removal of an ADA
ramp (not to be replaced) and approximately ten (10) yards of adjoining embankment. Work at this
location can only be permitted between the hours of 9:00 n.m. and 3:00 p.m. due to heavy traffic flow.
All work is to be performed in the months of March

16th

and June l2” of 2020, ahead of asphalt paving

operations.

Pre-Bid Tours are Strongly Recommended.

It is understood by the Bidder that should the cost of the Bid exceed budgeted funds, the City reserves the
right to reject any or all bids, or portions of work bid, or to use any of the methods stated in the Instructions
to Bidders to obtain the most advantageous bid price. Bidders must bid all items, additive schedules,
alternatives, and supplementary unit price schedule as contained in the Form of Bid.
The Bid is based on subcontracting certain major portions of the work to subcontractors as listed below:
Item No.

License Number

Subcontractor
N/A

(Add additional names on separate sheet, if necessary.)
In addition, by submission of this Bid and this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies as follows:
1. Bidder understands that the City reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informahities
in the bidding.
2. The Bidder agrees that this Bid shall be good and will not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90)
calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. If written notice of the acceptance of this
Bid is mailed or otherwise delivered to the undersigned within this period, or at any time thereafter before
this Bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver a Construction Contract in the
prescribed form and furnish the required surety bond within ten (10) days after the Construction Contract
is presented to him for signature.
3. As required by the Instructions to Bidders, attached hereto is the Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime
Bidder, submitted as proof that the undersigned has not colluded with any person in respect to this Bid or
any other bid or the submitting of bids for the Construction Contract for which this Bid is submitted.
4. The Bidder is submitting, or will submit upon request, such additional proof as the City may require that
1.9

he can qualify in accordance with these Contract Documents with this Bid.
5. To the extent required by Ci.. S. § 8-17.5-102(1), by submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that at the
time of Bid submission it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien and that Bidder will
participate in either the E-veri’ program administered by the United States Department of Homeland
Security and the Social Security Administration, or the employment verification program administered by
the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment in order to verify the employment eligibility of all
employees who arc newly hired for employment to perform work under the Construction Contract.

6. Bidder agrees to execute the Construction Contract, including its General Conditions, in the form
presented in the Bid Packet.
The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to be ready and to appear at the office of the City’s Contract
Administrator to execute the Construction Contract in conformity with his Bid and also to have ready and
to furnish at that time the attached Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond each in an
amount not less than the full amount of the attached Bid Form.
a corporation of the State of
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
The
Massachuetts
is hereby offered as surety on said bond. If such surety is not approved by
,

,

the City, another and satisfactory surety company shall be furnished.
Enqcd herewith is Bid Security, as defined in the attached Tnstructions to Bidders, in the amount of
IU /0
which Bid Security the undersigned Bidder agrees is to be paid to and become the property
of the City, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, to compensate the City for actual costs, delay and
the difference between this Bid and the next lowest acceptable bid, should this Bid be accepted and the
Construction Contract awarded this Bidder and should he fail to enter into the Construction Contract in the
form prescribed or fail to furnish the required Peifonnanee, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
within ten (10) days as stipulated.
,

The undersigned Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:
Addendum No.________ Date

Initial by Bidder

Date

Initial by Bidder

Addendum No._________ Date

Initial by Bidder

Date

Initial by Bidder

Addendum No.

Addendum No.

The undersigned Bidder certifies that he and each of his subcontractors possess an adequate supply of
workers qualified and equipment satisfactory to perform the Work specified in the Contract Documents;
that there is no existing or impending dispute between it and any labor organization; and that it is prepared
to comply fully with the provisions contained in the Contract Documents.
This Bid is submitted upon the declaration that neither I (we) nor, to the best of my (our) knowledge, none
of the members of my (our) firm or company have either otherwise taken any action in restraint of free
competitive bidding in connection with this Bid.
Dated at Phoenix AZ

this

25th

20

day of February

,

2020.

Signature of Bidder:

If an Individual:

doing business as

—

If a Partnership:
General Partner.

by

Sunland Asphalt & Construction Inc

If a Corporation:
a

Arizo a

poiation

by,eS1dent.

glas

sin

e

Attest:

Sec67erlene Monlon
[Corporate Seal]
Business Address of Bidder 1625 E Northern Ave

City, State, Zip Code

Phoenix, AZ 85020

Telephone Number of Bidder

Email of Bidder

7209900304

alexdunlandasphalt.com
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 8c

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: CONTRACT FOR CHIP SEAL SERVICES WITH VANCE BROTHERS INC.
(TABLED FROM THE APRIL 7, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING)
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Should City Council approve the Contract for Chip Seal Services with Vance Brothers, Inc. for
the 2020 Street Improvement Chip Seal Project (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
On March 13, 2020, the City accepted bids for the 2020 Street Improvement Program Chip Seal
Maintenance Project. The project includes approximately 167,000 square yards of chip seals and
fog seals on City streets. The following bids were submitted:
Company
Vance Brothers
A-One Chipseal

Bid Amount
$530,268.02
$553,497.79

Vance Brothers, Inc. was the low bid for the 2020 Capital Improvement Program. Vance
Brothers, Inc., formerly Foothills Paving, was contracted by the City for the 2016-2019 Chip
Seal Capital Improvement Programs and all the projects were very successful. Based on last
year’s performance staff believes Vance Brothers, Inc. can produce the quality of work that
meets the City’s expectations and contract requirements.
City Attorney Guckenberger has reviewed the Contract for Services and approved it as to form.
BUDGET IMPACT
There is a total of $600,000.00 budgeted in 2020 for this project. There is no negative impact on
the budget as the bid is within the budget. This item was tabled at the April 7, 2020 City Council
meeting to allow time for Council and staff to determine the impact of COVID-19 on the City
budget.
G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the Contract for Chip Seal Services with Vance Brothers, Inc. in
the amount of $530,268.02 plus an owner contingency in the amount of $10,000.00 for a total
maximum expenditure of $540,268.02. There is a total of $600,000.00 in the 2020 Street
Improvement fund.
City Attorney Guckenberger has reviewed the Contract for Services and approved it as to form,
with the addition of COVID-19 provisions.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the contract for chip seal services with Vance Brothers, Inc. in the amount of
$530,268.02 plus a $10,000.00 Owner contingency for a total maximum expenditure of
$540,268.02, authorize the expenditure of these funds, and authorize the Mayor to sign the
contract for services.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Contract for Services with Vance Brothers, Inc.
Exhibit B: General Conditions of the Contract
Exhibit C: Form of Bid
Exhibit D: Chip Seal Project Map
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EXHIBIT A

CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT:

2020 CHIP SEAL PROJECT

City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-001
This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into by and between VANCE
BROTHERS, INC. (hereinafter, “Contractor”), a Missouri corporation registered to operate in the State of
Colorado having a principal office address of 5201 Brighton Street, Kansas City, MO 64130 and a local
address of 380 West 62nd Avenue, Denver, Colorado 80216, and the CITY OF CHERRY HILLS
VILLAGE (hereinafter, “City” or “Owner”), a home rule municipal corporation of the State of Colorado,
having an address of 2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113 (collectively, the
City and Contractor may be referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as “Party”).
In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
PART 1 – WORK; TIME
The Contractor agrees to furnish all of the technical, administrative, professional, and other labor,
1.01
all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, local travel, office space and facilities, testing and
analyses, calculations, and any other facilities or resources necessary to perform in a workmanlike manner
all Work required by the Contract Documents.
This Contract shall be effective as of the date of its mutual execution by the Parties (“Effective
1.02
Date”). The Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Work within Ninety (90) days following
the Notice of Award and agrees that the Work will be completed within Twenty (20) working days
(holidays, weekends, and inclement weather excluded) of the date of the Notice to Proceed unless the
Contract Time is extended by the City as provided in the Contract Documents.
1.03
The Parties agree that, in any section in which the Contractor prepares any document for “the
approval of the City,” such subsequent approval by the City does not mean that City is responsible for the
accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment contained in the document. The City does not waive the right to hold
the Contractor responsible for the accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment expressed in the document, as it is
expressly agreed by the Parties that the City is relying on the expertise of the Contractor for the timely
completion of the Work required by the Contract Documents.
PART 2 – CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT
2.01

The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract
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Documents the amount(s) shown on Contractor's Form of Bid, Items 1 - 3, not to exceed Five Hundred
Thirty Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars and Two Cents ($530,268.02). The amount the
City has appropriated for this Contract is an amount that is, at a minimum, equal to the Contract Sum stated
in this paragraph.
2.02
The City shall make payments as set forth in Article 9 of the General Conditions, subject to the
City's obligation to retain a portion of the payments until final completion and acceptance by the City of all
Work included in the Contract Documents.
2.03
Prior to final payment, all Work specified by the Contract Documents must be completed. Payment
shall be made only after the procedure specified by the General Conditions is completed.
2.04
The City represents that either an appropriation for the price specified in this Construction Contract
has been made by the City Council or that sufficient funds have otherwise been made available for the
payment of this Construction Contract.
2.05
The Parties understand and acknowledge that the City of Cherry Hills Village is subject to Article
X § 20 of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”). The Parties do not intend to violate the terms and
requirements of TABOR by the execution of this Contract. It is understood and agreed that this Contract
does not create a multi-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or obligation within the meaning of TABOR and,
therefore, notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, all payment obligations of the City are
expressly dependent and conditioned upon the continuing availability of the funds beyond the term of the
City’s current fiscal period ending upon the next succeeding December 31. Financial obligations of the
City payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated,
budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules, regulations, and resolutions of the
City of Cherry Hills Village and other applicable law. Upon the failure to appropriate such funds, this
Contract shall be terminated.
2.06
Beginning on the Effective Date, Contractor may apply for payment to the Project Manager no
more frequently than every thirty (30) days for Work completed. Upon issuance of a Certificate for Payment
by the Project Manager, the City shall pay Contractor in accordance with Article 9 of the General
Conditions.
PART 3 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.01
In order to induce the City to enter into this Construction Contract, the Contractor makes the
following representations:
(a) The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and the extent of the Contract Documents,
Work, the location and site of the Work and any and all local conditions and federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders that in any manner may affect cost, progress, or performance of
the Work.
(b) Contractor has carefully studied all physical conditions at the site and existing facilities
affecting cost, progress, or performance of the Work.
(c) Contractor has given the City written notice of all conflicts, errors, or discrepancies that it has
discovered in the Contract Documents and, if applicable, the written resolution(s) thereof by the City is/are
acceptable to the Contractor.
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(d)
Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Contract. Contractor shall not contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with any illegal aliens to perform work under
this Contract. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies as of the date of this Contract that has
confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment and who will
perform work under the public contract for services through participation in the e-verify program or
department program. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the e-verify program or the department
program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is being
performed. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this
Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be required to notify the
subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that the Contractor has actual knowledge that a
subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien. The Contractor shall terminate the
subcontract if the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three
(3) days of receiving the notice regarding Contractor’s actual knowledge. The Contractor shall not
terminate the subcontract if, during such three (3) days, the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. The Contractor is
required to comply with any reasonable request made by the Department of Labor and Employment made
in the course of an investigation undertaken to determine compliance with this provision and applicable
state law. If the Contractor violates this provision, the City may terminate this Contract, and the Contractor
may be liable for actual and/or consequential damages incurred by the City, notwithstanding any limitation
on such damages otherwise provided by this Contract.
3.02
Contractor agrees to remedy all defects appearing in the Work or developing in the materials
furnished and the workmanship performed under this Construction Contract for a period of one (1) year or
such other time that is specified in the Contract Documents after the date of acceptance of the Work by the
City, and further agrees to indemnify and save the City harmless from any costs encountered in remedying
such defects. Contractor shall provide a performance, payment, maintenance and warranty bond that shall
remain in effect until all defects are corrected as required by this paragraph.
PART 4 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
4.01 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire Construction Contract between the City and the
Contractor, are attached to this Construction Contract and made a part hereof by this reference, including:
Invitation for Bids
Other: _____________________________
Instructions to Bidders
Bid Bond
Bid Form
Notice of Award
Notice to Proceed
Construction Contract
Construction Drawings
Specifications
Right-of-Way Standards
Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
General Conditions, including table of contents
Special Conditions
Construction Contract Addenda
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Change Orders, Change Order Directives, and Order for Minor Change in Work
Insurance Certificates and Endorsements
Tax-Exempt Certificates
In the event of an inconsistency between any provisions of the Contract Documents, the more specific
provisions shall govern the less specific provisions, and written addenda, change orders, or other
modifications approved in writing by both Parties subsequent to the date of this Contract as set forth on
page 1 hereof shall govern the original Contract Documents.
4.02
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above. The Contract Documents may
only be altered, amended, or repealed by a modification, in writing, executed by the City and the Contractor
as provided in Part 9 of this Contract and as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
PART 5 - PROJECT MANAGER AND SUPERINTENDENT
5.01
The Project Manager, for the purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following, or such other
person or firm as the City may designate in writing:
Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Email:

Ralph Mason
2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
303-783-2741
rmason@cherryhillsvillage.com

The Project Manager is authorized to represent and act as agent for the City with respect to the City’s rights
and duties under the Contract Documents, provided, however, the Project Manager shall not have any
authority to approve any Change Order or approve any amendment to the Construction Contract or Contract
Documents, except for those minor Change Orders defined in paragraph 7.4.1 of the General Conditions,
such authority being specifically reserved to the duly authorized official of the City having such approval
authority pursuant to the City’s Charter and ordinances. In the event of doubt as to such authority, the
Contractor may request a written representation from the City Manager resolving such doubt and
designating the person with authority under the circumstances, which written representation shall be
conclusive and binding upon the City.
5.02
The Contractor’s Superintendent, for purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following and is
subject to Article 3 (Section 3.9) of the General Conditions and such other obligations as the Contract
Documents may specify:
Name: Heath Russo
Address: Vance Brothers, 380 West 62nd Avenue, Denver, CO 80216
Telephone: (720) 234-9065
Email: hrusso@vancbrothers.com
PART 6 - ASSIGNMENT
6.01
No assignment by a Party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be
binding on another Party hereto without the written consent of the Party sought to be bound; and
specifically, but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law),
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
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release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. This
restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the Contractor's right to payment to
its surety or lender.
6.02
It is agreed that this Construction Contract shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto, their heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors.
PART 7 - GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
7.01
This Construction Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado and the Charter
and ordinances of the City of Cherry Hills Village.
7.02
This Construction Contract shall be deemed entered into in Arapahoe County, State of Colorado,
as the City is located in said county. The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies, and
disputes arising out of or related to this Construction Contract or any breach thereof, whether by alternative
dispute resolution or litigation, shall be proper only in Arapahoe County.
PART 8 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
8.01
The City and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence in this Construction Contract and
that the City will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially completed within the time specified
in paragraph 1.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed by the City by written Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. They also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in
proving, in a legal or arbitration proceeding, the actual loss suffered by the City if the Work is not
substantially complete on time. Accordingly, rather than requiring any such proof, the City and the
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) the Contractor shall pay the
City the applicable amount set forth in the General Conditions for each day that expires after the time
specified in paragraph 1.02 until the Work is complete. It is agreed that this is a reasonable estimate of the
damages likely to be suffered by the City for late completion of the Work. If the Contractor shall fail to
pay such liquidated damages promptly upon demand therefor, the Surety on the Performance, Payment,
Maintenance and Warranty Bond shall pay such damages. In addition, and at the City’s option, the City
may withhold all or any part of such liquidated damages from any payment due the Contractor.
PART 9 - MODIFICATIONS
This Construction Contract shall be modified only by written Change Orders or Addenda agreed upon by
the Parties hereto, duly issued in form approved by the City Attorney and in conformance with the other
Contract Documents. Pursuant to Article 7 of the General Conditions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time
may be changed by a Change Order only. The City shall not approve any Contract modification that
increases the Contract Sum without providing the Contractor written assurance that the City has
appropriated funds for the additional amounts.
Notwithstanding the paragraph immediately above, the City reserves the right to renew this Construction
Contract for up to three (3) additional years, in its sole discretion, all terms and conditions to remain the
same with the exception of the prices to be paid for the required maintenance, work, and materials. No
later than October 1 of the year in which this Contract takes effect, the Contractor may submit to the Project
Manager a revised price schedule for the succeeding year. The Project Manager shall accept or reject the
revised price schedule by written notification to the Contractor on or before December 1 of that same year.
The Project Manager’s acceptance of the revised price schedule shall constitute notice of the City’s intent
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to exercise its option to renew this Contract for an additional year, subject to final approval of such renewal
by City Council or such other duly authorized official of the City having such approval authority pursuant
to the City’s Charter and ordinances; and subject to annual appropriation. Any renewal of this Contract for
an additional year shall be pursuant to a written letter amendment to the Contract signed by both Parties,
and such renewal shall be exempt from competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Section 4-3-20(b)(5)
of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code.
PART 10 - CONTINGENCY
This Construction Contract is expressly contingent upon the approval of the City of all of the terms set forth
herein. In the event this Construction Contract is not approved in its entirety by the City, neither Party shall
be bound to the terms of this Construction Contract.
The person or persons signing and executing this Construction Contract on behalf of each Party do hereby
warrant and guarantee that he/she or they have been fully authorized to execute this Construction Contract and
to validly and legally bind such Party to all the terms, performances, and provisions herein set forth.
No officer or employee or agent of the City shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under
or growing out of the Contract.
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BY THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THIS
CONTRACT SHALL BE SENT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE, ATTENTION: RALPH MASON, PROJECT MANAGER
PART 11 – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
11.01 General. Contractor is an independent contractor. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Contract, all personnel assigned by Contractor to perform work under the terms of this Contract shall be,
and remain at all times, employees or agents of Contractor for all purposes. Contractor shall make no
representation that it is a City employee for any purposes.
11.02 Liability for Employment-Related Rights and Compensation. The Contractor shall be solely
responsible for all compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person
completing the Work hereunder during the course of or arising or accruing as a result of any employment,
whether past or present, with the Contractor, as well as all legal costs including attorney’s fees incurred in
the defense of any conflict or legal action resulting from such employment or related to the corporate
amenities of such employment. The Contractor will comply with all laws, regulations, municipal codes,
and ordinances and other requirements and standards applicable to the Contractor’s employees, including,
without limitation, federal and state laws governing wages and overtime, equal employment, safety and
health, employees’ citizenship, withholdings, reports and record keeping. Accordingly, the City shall not
be called upon to assume any liability for or direct payment of any salaries, wages, contribution to pension
funds, insurance premiums or payments, workers’ compensation benefits or any other amenities of
employment to any of the Contractor’s employees or any other liabilities whatsoever, unless otherwise
specifically provided herein.
11.03 Insurance Coverage and Employment Benefits. The City will not include the Contractor as an
insured under any policy the City has for itself. The City shall not be obligated to secure nor provide any
insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or the Contractor’s
employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors, agents, or representatives, including but not limited to
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coverage or benefits related to: local, state, or federal income or other tax contributions, FICA, workers’
compensation, unemployment compensation, medical insurance, life insurance, paid vacations, paid
holidays, pension or retirement account contributions, profit sharing, professional liability insurance, or
errors and omissions insurance. The following disclosure is provided in accordance with Colorado law:
CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT NOR ITS AGENTS OR
EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS
UNLESS CONTRACTOR OR SOME ENTITY OTHER THAN THE CITY PROVIDES
SUCH BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT
NOR ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO WORKERS’
COMPENSATION BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS
OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY MONEYS
EARNED OR PAID PURSUANT TO THIS CONTRACT.
11.04 Employee Benefits Claims. To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Contractor waives all
claims against the City for any Employee Benefits; the Contractor will defend the City from any claim and
will indemnify the City against any liability for any Employee Benefits for the Contractor imposed on the
City; and the Contractor will reimburse the City for any award, judgment, or fine against the City based on
the position the Contractor was ever the City’s employee, and all attorneys’ fees and costs the City
reasonably incurs defending itself against any such liability.
PART 12 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
12.01 Compliance with Laws and Regulations. All of the Work performed under this Contract by the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and codes of the United States and the
State of Colorado. The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions of the City and shall commit no trespass on any public or private property in the performance
of any of the Work identified in this Contract.
12.02 ADA Compliance. Contractor shall comply with applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended from time to time (the “ADA”), and any other applicable federal
regulation. A signed, written certificate stating compliance with the ADA may be requested at any time
during the term, or any Renewal Term, of this Contract.
12.03 Severability. In the event any of the provisions of this Contract are held to be unenforceable or
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected,
provided that the remaining provisions without the invalidated provisions are consistent with the Parties’
intent. Should either Party fail to enforce a specific term of this Contract it shall not be a waiver of a
subsequent right of enforcement, nor shall it be deemed a modification or alteration of the terms and
conditions contained herein.
12.04 Retention and Open Records Act Compliance. All records of the Contractor related to the
completion of the Work hereunder, including public records as defined in the Colorado Open Records Act
(“CORA”), and records produced or maintained in accordance with this Contract, are to be retained and
stored in accordance with the City’s records retention and disposal policies. Those records which constitute
“public records” under CORA are to be at the City offices or accessible and opened for public inspection
in accordance with CORA and City policies. Public records requests for such records shall be processed in
accordance with City policies. Contractor agrees to allow access by the City and the public to all documents
subject to disclosure under applicable law. Contractor’s willful failure or refusal to comply with the
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provisions of this paragraph shall result in the immediate termination of this Contract by the City. For
purposes of CORA, the City Clerk is the custodian of all records produced or created as a result of this
Contract. Nothing contained herein shall limit the Contractor’s right to defend against disclosure of records
alleged to be public.
12.05 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Contract and all
rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the City and the Contractor, and
nothing contained in this Contract shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other or third
person under such Contract.
12.06 Headings. The headings contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not in
any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
12.07 Entire Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions contained herein
constitute the entire agreement and that all representations made by any elected official, officer, director,
agent or employee of the respective Parties unless included herein are null and void and of no effect. No
alterations, amendments, changes, or modifications to this Contract, except those which are expressly
reserved herein to the Project Manager and/or the Superintendent, shall be valid unless they are contained
in writing and executed by all the Parties with the same formality as this Contract.
12.08 Contract Controls. In the event a conflict exists between this Contract and any term in any exhibit
attached or incorporated into this Contract, the terms in this Contract shall supersede the terms in such
exhibit.
12.09 Release of Information. The Contractor shall not, without the prior written approval of the City,
release any privileged or confidential information obtained in connection with the Work or this Contract.
12.010 Survival. The Parties understand and agree that all terms and conditions of the Contract that require
continued performance, compliance, or effect beyond the termination date of the Contract shall survive
such termination date and shall be enforceable in the event of a failure to perform or comply.
12.011 Binding Effect. The Parties agree that this Contract, by its terms, shall be binding upon the
successors, heirs, legal representatives, and assigns; provided that this section shall not authorize
assignment.
12.012 Protection of Personal Identifying Information. If the Work includes or requires the City to disclose
to Contractor any personal identifying information as defined in C.R.S. § 24-73-101, Contractor shall
comply with the applicable requirements of C.R.S. §§ 24-73-101, et seq., relating to third-party service
providers.
12.013 Authority. The individuals executing this Contract represent that they are expressly authorized to
enter into this Contract on behalf of the City of Cherry Hills Village and the Contractor and bind their
respective entities.
12.014 Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. In addition, the Parties
specifically acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures shall be effective for all purposes, in
accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, Title 24, Article 71.3 of the
Colorado Revised Statutes.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Construction Contract in triplicate. Two
counterparts have been delivered to the City and one counterpart has been delivered to the Contractor. All
portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by the City and the Contractor.
CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO

By: __________________________________
Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
Date: _________________________________
ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________
Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

_____________________________________
Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBLE FOR ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT: PUBLIC WORKS
CONTRACTOR: VANCE BROTHERS, INC., a
Missouri corporation
By:

____________________________________

Name: ____________________________________
Title:

____________________________

Date:

____________________________________

STATE OF _______________ )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ______________ )
The foregoing Construction Contract was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________________,
2020, by _____________________ as ________________________ of Vance Brothers, Inc.
Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires: ____________________.
Notary Public
(Required for all contracts pursuant to C.R.S.
§ 8-40-202(2)(b)(IV))
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ARTICLE 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1

DEFINITIONS

1.1.1 “Application for Payment” means the Contractor’s request for payment submitted to the Project
Manager according to the process set forth in paragraphs 9.3.1- 9.3.4.
1.1.2 “Bidding Documents” means the Notice to Bidders; Request for Proposals; Invitation to Bid;
Instructions to Bidders; Bid Proposal; Bid Schedule; and Bid Bond, as applicable.
1.1.3 “Certificate for Payment” means the amount approved for payment by the Project Manager after
the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, as more fully defined in paragraph 9.4.1.
1.1.4 “Change Order” means a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the Owner
stating their agreement upon a change in the Work; the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if
any; or the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any, as more fully defined in paragraph 7.2.
1.1.5 “Claim” means a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, adjustment
of contract terms, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the
Construction Contract, or other disputes between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the
Construction Contract.
1.1.6 “Construction Change Directive” means a written order directed to the Contractor and signed by
the Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the
Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, as defined more fully in paragraphs 7.3.1-7.3.9.
1.1.7 “Construction Contract” or “Contract” means the entire and integrated agreement between the
parties hereto, evidenced by the Contract Documents, which supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral, subject only to amendment or modification as
permitted by Article 7 and as permitted by the Construction Contract.
1.1.8 “Contract Documents” means the Construction Contract, the Conditions of the Contract (General,
Special, Supplementary and other Conditions, as applicable), the Drawings, the Specifications, all Addenda
issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract, and all other documents listed
in the Contract, including the Bidding Documents, the Notice of Award, Notice to Proceed; Performance,
Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond; Certificates of Insurance; and Tax-Exempt Certificates.
Nothing contained in the Contract Documents creates any contractual relationship between the Owner any
subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or supplier of equipment or materials (except as provided in paragraph
5.3 hereof).
1.1.9 “Contract Sum” means the amount stated in paragraph 2.01 of the Construction Contract and,
including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for
the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.
1.1.10 “Contract Time” means the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial
Completion of the Work, including authorized adjustments thereto.
1.1.11 “Contractor” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an
authorized representative thereof.
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1.1.12 “Date of Commencement of the Work” is the date established in the Notice to Proceed. If there is
no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Construction Contract or such other date as may be
established therein.
1.1.13 The “Date of Substantial Completion” is the date certified by the Project Manager in accordance
with paragraph 9.8.
1.1.14 “Day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
designated.
1.1.15 “Drawings” are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents, wherever located
and whenever issued, showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally including plans,
elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.
1.1.16 “Final Completion” means the finding by the Project Manager that the final Certificate for Payment
should be issued based on his knowledge, information and belief that the Work has been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to
be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate for Payment, is due and payable, as more fully
defined in paragraph 9.10.1.
1.1.17 “Modification” means (1) a written amendment to the Construction Contract signed by both parties,
(2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written Order for a Minor Change in the
Work approved by the Owner pursuant to paragraph 7.4.
1.1.18 “Notice to Proceed” means the form issued by the City and accepted in writing by the Contractor
that notifies Contractor to begin work on or before a date certain, establishes an end date, and returns bid
security.
1.1.19 “Order for a Minor Change in the Work” means an order for minor changes in the Work issued by
the Project Manager not involving an adjustment to the Contract Sum or extending the Contract Time as
permitted by paragraph 7.4.1.
1.1.20 “Owner” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an authorized
representative thereof. The term “City of Cherry Hills Village” or “City” may be used interchangeably
with the term “Owner”.
1.1.21 “Product Data” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.2.
1.1.22 “Project” means the total construction of which the Work performed under the Construction
Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the Owner or by
separate contractors.
1.1.23 “Project Manager” means the City representative identified as such in Part 5 of the Contract.
1.1.24 “Project Manual” means the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include the
bidding requirements, sample forms, conditions of the Contract, and Specifications.
1.1.25 “Samples” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.3.
1.1.26 “Shop Drawings” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.1.
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1.1.27 “Specifications” are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements
for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship for the Work, and performance
of related services.
1.1.28 “Subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform
any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof. "Subcontractor" does not include any
separate contractor or his subcontractor.
1.1.29 “Substantial Completion” means the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work (or
designated portion thereof that the Owner agrees to accept separately) is sufficiently complete in accordance
with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or use the Work for its intended use as more fully
explained in paragraph 9.8.
1.1.30 “Sub-subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a
subcontractor to perform any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof.
1.1.31 “Underground Utilities” means any below ground line, structure, facility or installation used by a
utility or service provider including, but not limited to, telephone company lines, cable and conduit; cable
television lines, cable and conduit; internet lines, cable and conduit; sewer lines and water lines, including
individual sewer and water service lines; stormwater lines; gas lines; electrical lines, cables and conduit;
and traffic signal lines, cable and conduit.
1.1.32 “Work” means the construction, deliverables, and services required by the Contract Documents,
whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services
provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's obligations for the completed
construction required by the Contract Documents. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the
Project.
1.2

EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT

1.2.1 The Contract Documents shall be signed in not less than triplicate by the Owner and Contractor
and shall be maintained by the Project Manager.
1.2.2 By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor represents that he has visited the site,
familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his
observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
In connection with the foregoing, and having carefully examined all Contract Documents, as
aforesaid, and having visited the site, and having familiarized himself with the site construction
circumstances of the Project, the Contractor acknowledges and declares that it has no knowledge of any
discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts in said Contract Documents and that if it becomes aware
of any such discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts, it will promptly notify Owner and Project
Manager of such fact.
1.2.3 The Contract Documents include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work by the Contractor. The Work shall consist of all items specifically included in the Contract
Documents as well as all additional items of work which are reasonably inferable from that which is
specified in order to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contract
Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one Contract Document shall be as binding as
if required by all. Any differences between the requirements of the Drawings and the Specifications or any
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differences within the Drawings themselves or within the Specifications themselves have been referred to
the Owner by Contractor prior to the submission of bids and have been clarified by an Addendum issued to
all Bidders.
If any such differences or conflicts were not called to the Owner’s attention prior to submission of
bids, the Project Manager shall decide which of the conflicting requirements will govern based upon the
most stringent of the requirements, and subject to the approval of the Owner, the Contractor shall perform
the Work at no additional cost or Contract Time to the Owner in accordance with the Project Manager’s
decision. Work not covered in the Contract Documents will not be required unless it is consistent therewith
and is reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results.
1.2.4 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and the arrangement of
Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among subcontractors or in establishing the
extent of Work to be performed by any trade.
1.2.5 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words and abbreviations which have wellknown technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized
meanings.
1.2.6 In the interest of brevity, the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all”
and “any” and articles such as “the” and “an.” The fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one
statement and appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.
1.2.7 Interpretation of Contract Documents. Masculine includes both the masculine and the feminine;
singular includes the singular and the plural; headings are for reference only and are not substantive.
1.3

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS

1.3.1 The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof are
furnished to the Contractor for the purpose of performing the Work and are, and shall remain, the property
of the Owner. The Contractor may retain one (1) record set. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor,
sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the Drawings,
Specifications and other similar or related documents, and Owner will retain all common law, statutory,
and other reserved rights, in addition to the copyright (including, without limitation, the right to create
derivative works therefrom). All copies of such documents shall be returned to the Owner upon completion
of the Work. The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof
furnished to the Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by the
Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier on other projects or
for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Owner.
The Contractor, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are granted a
limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Drawings, Specifications and other
documents appropriate to and solely for use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.
All copies made under this license shall bear the statutory copyright notice, if any, shown on the Drawings,
Specifications and other documents. Submittal or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or
for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of any
copyright or other reserved rights.
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ARTICLE 2
OWNER
2.1

INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

2.1.1 The Owner shall furnish existing surveys describing the physical characteristics, legal limitations
and utility locations, if such utilities are the property of Owner, for the site of the Project, and a legal
description of the site, if necessary. The Contractor shall undertake such further investigations and studies
as may be necessary or useful to determine site characteristics and conditions. In connection with the
foregoing, Contractor shall locate prior to performing any Work, all Underground Utilities. If utility locate
services are provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor nonetheless remains solely responsible to
determine the actual location of all Underground Utilities.
2.1.2 Except for permits and fees which are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract
Documents, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges
required for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing
facilities. Such approvals and the like shall be provided by Owner within a time and in a manner as to avoid
any unreasonable delays in the Work or schedule of Contractor and shall include only such approvals for
permanent facilities which are necessary to perform the Work as set forth in the Contract Documents.
2.1.3 Information or services required to be furnished by Owner shall be furnished by the Owner with
reasonable promptness to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly progress of the Work.
2.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, free of
charge, all copies of Drawings and Specifications reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.
2.1.5

The Owner shall forward all instructions to the Contractor through the Project Manager.

2.1.6 The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner enumerated herein
and especially those in respect to Work by Owner or by Separate Contractors, Payments and Completion,
and Insurance in Articles 6, 9, and 11 respectively.
2.2

OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

2.2.1 If the Contractor fails to correct defective Work as required by Paragraph 12.2 or fails to carry out
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or fails or refuses to provide a sufficient amount of
properly supervised and coordinated labor, materials, or equipment so as to be able to complete the Work
within the Contract Time, or fails to remove and discharge (within ten (10) days) any lien filed upon
Owner’s property by anyone claiming by, through, or under Contractor, or disregards the instructions of
the Project Manager or Owner when based on the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Owner or
the Project Manager, by a written order, may order the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof,
until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Owner and the Project Manager
to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit
of the Contractor or any other person or entity.
2.3

OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

2.3.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents and fails within a seven (7) day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, or fails within
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such seven (7) day period to eliminate (or diligently commence to eliminate) the cause of any stop work
order issued under paragraph 2.2.1 hereof, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting
from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
compensation and additional services and expenses made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. If
the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor
shall pay the difference to the Owner.
ARTICLE 3
CONTRACTOR
3.1

REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY
CONTRACTOR

3.1.1 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor’s duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and shall at once report to the Owner
any error, inconsistency or omission discovered. The Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any
damage resulting from any such errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents hereof
unless the Contractor recognized or reasonably should have recognized such error, inconsistency or
omission and failed to report it to the Owner. If the Contractor performs any construction activity involving
an error, inconsistency or omissions in the Contract Documents that Contractor recognized or reasonably
should have recognized, without such notice to the Owner, the Contractor shall assume complete
responsibility for such performance and shall bear the full amount of all costs related to correcting such
inconsistent performance. The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work at any time without
Contract Documents or, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such
portion of the Work.
3.1.1.1 If any errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in Contract Documents are recognized or reasonably
should have been recognized by the Contractor, any member of its organization, or any of its subcontractors,
the Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the Owner in writing of such error, inconsistency, or
omission before proceeding with the Work. The Owner will take such notice under advisement and within
a reasonable time commensurate with job progress, render a decision. If Contractor fails to give such notice
and proceeds with such work, it shall correct any such error, inconsistency, or omission at no additional
cost to Owner.
3.1.2 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor's duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
the Contractor shall take field measurements and verify field conditions and shall carefully compare such
field measurements and conditions and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract
Documents before commencing activities. Errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered shall be reported
to the Project Manager at once.
3.1.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and submittals
approved pursuant to paragraph 3.12.
3.2

SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

3.2.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely (subject to the terms and provisions of Article 4 hereof) responsible for and have
control over all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating
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all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless Contract Documents give other specific instructions
concerning these matters.
The Contractor shall review any specified construction or installation procedure, including those
recommended by manufacturers, and shall advise the Owner if the specified procedure deviates from good
construction practice or if following the procedure will affect any warranties, and may propose any
alternative procedure which the Contractor will warrant.
3.2.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees,
subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a
contract or other arrangements with the Contractor. It is understood and agreed that the relationship of
Contractor to Owner shall be that of an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein or inferable here
from shall be deemed or construed to (1) make Contractor the agent, servant, or employee of the Owner, or
(2) create any partnership, joint venture, or other association between Owner and Contractor. Any direction
or instruction by Owner in respect of the Work shall relate to the results the Owner desires to obtain from
the Work, and shall in no way affect Contractor's independent contractor status as described herein.
3.2.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with
the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the Project Manager in his administration of the
Contract, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed under Paragraph 13.7 by persons other
than the Contractor.
3.2.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for locating all existing underground installations,
including Underground Utilities and their service connections, in advance of excavating or trenching, by
contacting the utility owners thereof and prospecting. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be
provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor remains ultimately responsible to determine the actual
location of all Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or installations. The Contractor shall use his own
information and shall not rely upon any information shown or not shown on the plans or on field locates
provided by the utility owner concerning existing Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or
installations. Any delay, additional work, or extra cost to the Contractor caused by existing Underground
Utilities, facilities, structures or installations shall not constitute a claim for extra work, additional payment,
or damage.
3.2.5 The Contractor has the responsibility to ensure that all equipment and material suppliers and
subcontractors, their agents, and employees adhere to the Contract Documents, and that they order material
and equipment on time, taking into account the current market and delivery conditions, including conditions
related to COVID-19, and that they provide equipment and materials on time. The Contractor shall
coordinate its Work with that of all others on the Project, including deliveries, storage, installations, and
construction utilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for the space requirements, locations, and routing
of its equipment. In areas and locations where the proper and most effective space requirements, locations,
and routing cannot be made as indicated, the Contractor shall meet with all others involved, before
installation, to plan the most effective and efficient methods of overall installation.
3.2.6 The Contractor shall establish and maintain bench marks and all other grades, lines, and levels
necessary for the Work, report errors or inconsistencies to the Owner before commencing work, and review
the placement of the structure(s) and permanent facilities on the site with the Owner after all lines are staked
out and before foundation work is started. Contractor shall provide access to the Work for the Owner, the
Project Manager, other persons designated by Owner, and governmental inspectors. Any encroachments,
as revealed by an improvement survey, made by Contractor or its subcontractors (of any tier) on adjacent
properties due to construction, except for encroachments arising from errors or omissions not reasonably
discoverable by Contractor in the Contract Documents, shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor
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and Contractor shall correct such encroachments within thirty (30) days of the improvement survey (or as
soon thereafter as reasonably possible), at Contractor’s sole expense, either by the removal of the
encroachment (and subsequent reconstruction on the Project site) or agreement with the adjacent property
owner(s) (in form and substance satisfactory to Owner in its sole discretion) allowing the encroachments
to remain.
3.3

LABOR AND MATERIALS

3.3.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all
labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities,
transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the
Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.
3.3.1.1 Colorado labor shall be employed to perform the Work to the extent of not less than eighty (80%)
percent of each type or class of labor in several classifications of skilled and common labor employed on
such project or public works. "Colorado labor," as used in this Article, means any person who is a resident
of the State of Colorado, at the time of employment, without discrimination as to race, color, religion, creed,
national origin, sex, age, or handicap.
3.3.1.2 Preference is hereby given to materials, supplies, and provisions produced or manufactured in
Colorado, quality being equal to articles offered by competitors outside the State.
3.3.2 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his employees and
shall not employ on the Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him.
3.3.3 Materials shall conform to manufacturer's standards in effect at the date of execution of the
Construction Contract and shall be installed in strict accordance with manufacturer's directions. The
Contractor shall, if required by the Owner, furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of any
materials. All packaged materials shall be shipped to the site in the original containers clearly labeled, and
delivery slips shall be submitted with bulk materials identifying thereon the source and warranting quality
and compliance with Contract Documents.
3.3.4 When the Contract Documents require the Work, or any part of same, to be above the standards
required by applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and other statutory provisions pertaining to the
Work, such Work shall be performed and completed by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract
Documents.
3.4

TRAFFIC CONTROL

3.4.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for maintenance, control, and the safeguarding of traffic
affected by the Work as further outlined herein, and as may otherwise be provided in the Contract
Documents.
3.4.2 During construction, the Contractor shall provide for the safety of the workmen and for the safe
and expeditious movement of traffic and pedestrians through the Site by erecting and maintaining all
necessary signs, barricades, or other traffic safety devices. He shall also provide and maintain, in a safe
condition, temporary approaches or crossings at intersections with trails, roads, streets, businesses, parking
lots, residences, garages, and farms unless this requirement is waived by the Owner, through the Project
Manager. The Contractor shall also have a Certified Traffic Control Supervisor (“TCS”) responsible for
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traffic control. The TCS shall be on Site at all times when traffic control is in place or as agreed by the
Owner through the Project Manager.
3.4.2.1 Before commencing with construction, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner (1) the name of
the certified TCS, (2) a detailed traffic control plan for approval, including no parking requirements, and
(3) an access maintenance plan. Details in the plans will include, but not be limited to: hours of Work;
placement of signs and barricades; use of traffic control devices such as cones, barriers, and barricades; use
of traffic control devices such as signal control, temporary striping, maintenance of detours, dust abatement,
and length of lane closure tapers. In general, the traffic control/access maintenance plan(s) shall cover all
the various phases of the Work.
3.4.2.2 The access maintenance plan shall be developed by the Contractor and coordinated with, and based
on the requirement of any affected property owners and tenants. Prior to commencing any Work that affects
access to a property, the access maintenance plan must be signed by the property owner and submitted to
the Owner. The access maintenance plan shall include documentation of this coordination, including
approval of the access maintenance plan by signature of each affected owner and tenant. Should the
Contractor be unable to obtain approval and signatures, documentation of the efforts made to obtain said
approval and signatures must be submitted. The Contractor shall maintain continuous access through the
Project for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and disabled persons. All cost incidentals to the maintenance
of access shall not be paid separately but shall be included in the Contract Sum.
3.4.2.3 The Contractor shall implement and maintain the approved traffic control/access maintenance plan
throughout prosecution of the Work. The Contractor is solely responsible for claims, damages, losses, etc.,
arising or resulting from Contractor's failure to adhere to and maintain the traffic control plan as
approved. It is understood that the traffic control plan's primary purpose is to foster the safe travel of the
public while construction is in progress. It is not intended to specifically address construction traffic on
Site. The Contractor is solely responsible for safety measures on the Site.
3.4.2.4 The Owner, through the Project Manager, may provide Project signs to the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide and place appropriate supplementary information and erect project signs at
locations to be designated by the Project Manager. These advisory signs, if any, shall be installed at least
seven (7) consecutive days prior to beginning of construction. Any other traffic control signs/devices shall
be installed seventy-two (72) hours prior to starting construction. Cost for additional information and
erection of advisory signs are considered incidental to the Traffic Control bid item and costs for such shall
be included in the Traffic Control bid item, if Traffic Control is a separately stated item in the Form of
Bid. All costs associated with traffic control shall be included in the Contract Sum. Traffic control devices
that are no longer necessary shall be removed from the Site within seventy-two (72) hours.
3.4.2.5 The Contractor will not be permitted to have construction equipment or materials in the lanes open
to traffic at any time unless permitted by Owner. If the Owner, through the Project Manager, waives the
above condition, the Contractor must provide a flag person. The Contractor shall remove and reset all
construction signs prior to construction. Any damaged signs shall be replaced in kind by the Contractor.
3.4.2.6 The Contractor is cautioned that all personal vehicle and construction equipment parking will be
prohibited where it conflicts with safety, access, or the flow of traffic.
3.4.3 The Contractor will furnish signs, barricades and temporary markings that may be necessary. The
barricades shall conform to the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (“MUTCD”) requirements.
3.4.4 Streets may be closed to through traffic only after the City has approved such closure and all requisite
permits for work in a public way have been obtained. Street closures shall be made in such a manner as to
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provide for maximum public safety and public convenience. They shall be opened to through traffic at such
time as the Work has been completed, or as the City or appropriate governmental agency with jurisdiction over
such roadway may direct.
3.4.5 The City will make all necessary adjustments to traffic signals and traffic signal activators on City
rights-of-way at no cost to the Contractor. The Contractor, as required by Contractor’s construction schedule
and with approval of the Project Manager, will cover or remove existing signs or signals that interfere with, or
conflict with construction signing. Upon completion of the Project, the Contractor will reset all such signs.
3.4.6 Detours shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor unless otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents. Detours such as side street crossings, temporary bridges over freshly placed concrete, utilization
of one (1) or more lanes of the construction area for maintenance of traffic, and such related facilities for the
maintenance of traffic shall be the responsibility of the Contractor, the costs for which shall be included in the
appropriate unit price or lump sum portion of the Contract Sum, as applicable. Detour plans must be submitted
and approved in writing by the City through the Project Manager as part of the traffic control/access
maintenance plan.
3.4.7 Local traffic shall be provided access to private properties at all times, except during some urgent
stages of construction when it is impracticable to carry on the construction and maintain traffic simultaneously,
such as for the placing of asphalt concrete pavement, deep sewer excavations which prohibit safe travel of
vehicular traffic, or other similar circumstances.
3.4.8 Emergency traffic such as police, fire, and disaster units shall be provided reasonable access at all
times.
3.4.9

The Contractor shall take every precaution to protect pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

3.4.10 Where parking is a hazard to through traffic or to the construction Work, it shall be restricted either
entirely or during the time when it creates a hazard. Signs for this purpose will be initially furnished and placed
by the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for and shall maintain the signs if they are used on any
street that is directly or indirectly involved in the construction Work.
3.4.11 The Contractor shall furnish at his own expense all flagmen who may be needed.
3.5

WARRANTY

3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this
Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents,
and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract
Documents. All Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved
and authorized, may be considered defective. If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall furnish
satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.
3.5.2 Experienced manufacturer's representatives shall be used to supervise the installation of equipment
as may be required by the Owner. Any special tools or equipment which may be required for first class
work shall be provided by the Contractor.
3.5.3 The acceptance at any time of materials or equipment by or on behalf of the Owner shall not be a
bar to future rejection if they are subsequently found to be defective, inferior in quality or uniformity, to
the material or equipment specified, or are not as represented to the Owner.
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3.5.4 In the absence of detailed specifications, all materials shall conform to the latest standards of the
American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) available at the time notice inviting Contractors to bid is
published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.5 Any reference to standard specifications in any of the Contract Documents shall always imply the
latest edition of such standard specifications or specifications available at the time notice inviting
contractors to bid is published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.6 Within one (1) year after the date of final acceptance of the Work or within such longer period of
time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall make all needed repairs arising out of defective workmanship or materials,
or both, which in the judgment of the Owner shall become necessary during such period. If within ten (10)
days after the mailing of a notice in writing to the Contractor or his agent, the Contractor shall neglect to
make, or undertake with due diligence to make the aforesaid repairs, the Owner is hereby authorized to
make such repairs at the Contractor's expense. In case of an emergency, the Contractor will be notified and
shall correct and make repairs within the necessary time constraints. Failure of the Contractor to respond
to the notification shall result in the Owner making the necessary repairs at the Contractor's expense. This
obligation shall survive termination of the Contract.
3.5.7 Should the Owner claim by written communication before the warranty period expires that certain
defects exist and that these require repair or replacement, the warranty period and applicable surety shall
be automatically extended for as long as these defects remain unremedied.
3.6

TAXES

3.6.1 All sales of construction and building materials to contractors and subcontractors for use in the
building, erection, alteration or repair of structures, highways, roads, streets and other public works owned
and used by the Owner are exempt from State and other State-collected sales and use taxes and from Cherry
Hills Village sales and use taxes. However, such materials may be subject to sales and use taxes imposed
by other local taxing authorities.
3.6.2 Prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed and start of Work, if requested by the City, the
Contractor shall deliver to the Project Manager three (3) copies of the completed and executed "Contractor
Application for Exemption Certificate" with the approval of the Department of Revenue, State of Colorado,
affixed (Department of Revenue Form No. 172). These certificates will serve as an indication to the Owner
that the Contractor has acquired the necessary exemption for State and other State-collected sales taxes.
The Contractor also agrees to make the same requirement, as contained above, of the material suppliers and
subcontractors on this project.
3.6.3 All books and records pertaining to the Project that will allow the accurate determination of any
tax due must be retained and be kept available for inspection by the City for three (3) years after the
completion of the Project.
3.6.4 All applicable taxes are to be paid by Contractor and are to be included in appropriate bid items;
except that, the Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any State or other sales or use taxes incurred as a
result of failure to obtain an exemption certificate prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
3.7

PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES

3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall obtain any necessary
building permit and applicable inspections and shall secure and pay for all other permits and governmental
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fees, licenses and inspections by other jurisdictions necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work which are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and which are legally required.
3.7.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and
lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work, including, but not limited to,
all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees related to COVID-19.
3.7.3 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that the Contract Documents are in
accordance with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations. If the Contractor observes or in
the exercise of due care should observe that any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith in any
respect, he shall promptly notify the Project Manager in writing, and any suggested changes shall be made
to the Owner. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of all conflicts between the Drawings and
Specifications and any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or restrictions that come to the Contractor's
attention or should have come to his attention in the exercise of due care.
3.7.4 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that all his Work is done in accordance
with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations, and the Contractor shall bear any costs related
to his failure to do so.
3.7.5 If the Contractor performs Work, including without limitations, the installation of any materials or
equipment that it knows, or reasonably should know, would be contrary to laws, statutes, ordinances,
building codes, rules, and regulations, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such work and
shall bear all costs attributable to the correction thereof or related thereto, including all fines and penalties.
3.8

ALLOWANCES

3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents.
Items covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the Owner
may direct, but the Contractor will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes a reasonable
objection.
3.8.2

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
.1

materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected promptly by the Owner to
avoid unreasonable delay in the Work;

.2

these allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor, less any applicable trade discount,
of the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all
applicable taxes;

.3

the Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs,
overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be
included in the Contract Sum and not in the allowance;

.4

whenever the cost is more than or less than the allowance, the Contract Sum shall be
adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize changes, if any,
in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses.
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3.9

SUPERINTENDENT

3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent Superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in
attendance at the Project site during the progress of the Work. The Superintendent shall represent the
Contractor and all communications given to the Superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the
Contractor. Important communications shall be confirmed in writing. Other communications shall be so
confirmed on written request in each case.
3.9.2 Contractor shall assign a person to be and remain the Superintendent to generally and directly
supervise and coordinate the performance of the Work. The naming of such person is and was a material
inducement to Owner to enter into the Contract. If such person is not the Superintendent or does not remain
the Superintendent for any reason whatsoever, the Owner reserves the right to review and approve or
disapprove said Superintendent's replacement, in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is
disapproved, the Contract may, at Owner's option, be terminated for cause.
3.9.3 Owner shall have the right, upon notice, to demand that the Superintendent or other key personnel
retained by Contractor be replaced by Contractor. In the event of such demand, Contractor shall, within
seven (7) days after notification thereof, replace said individual(s) with an individual satisfactory to Owner,
in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is disapproved, the Contract, may, at Owner's option, be
terminated for cause.
3.10

CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

3.10.1 A preconstruction conference shall be scheduled at the time the Notice of Award is issued. The
Contractor, at the preconstruction conference, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's review and approval
a Contractor's construction schedule for the Work, in such form and detail as Owner may require and a
traffic control plan as required by paragraph 3.4. The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under
the Contract Documents, shall be revised as required herein and at appropriate intervals as required by the
conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the
Contract Documents, and shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. The
schedule shall indicate the proposed starting and completion dates for the various subdivisions of the Work
as well as the totality of the Work. The schedule shall be updated every thirty (30) days and submitted to
the Project Manager with Contractor's Applications for Payment. Each schedule shall contain a comparison
of actual progress with the estimated progress for such time stated in the original schedule. If any schedule
submitted sets forth a date for Substantial Completion for the Work or any phase of the Work beyond the
date(s) of Substantial Completion established in the Contract (as the same may be extended as provided in
the Contract Documents), then Contractor shall submit to the Owner for its review and approval, a narrative
description of the means and methods which Contractor intends to employ to expedite the progress of the
Work to ensure timely completion of the various phases of the Work as well as the totality of the Work. To
ensure such timely completion, Contractor shall take all necessary action including, without limitation,
increasing the number of personnel and labor on the Project and implementing overtime and double shifts.
In that event, Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Schedule.
3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare and keep current, for the Project Manager’s approval, a schedule of
submittals which is coordinated with the Contractor's construction schedule and allows the Project Manager
reasonable time to review submittals.
3.10.3 The Contractor shall conform to the most recent schedules.
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3.11

DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

3.11.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of all Drawings,
Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to
record all changes and selections (all changes and selections to be approved by the Owner in advance) made
during construction, and approved Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples and similar required
submittals. These shall be available to the Project Manager and shall be delivered to him for the Owner
upon completion of the Work.
3.11.2 At the Date of Substantial Completion and as a condition precedent to Final Payment, the
Contractor shall furnish the following documents (unless directed otherwise by Owner) to the Project
Manager for submittal to the Owner: record drawings showing the field changes and selections affecting
the general construction, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and all other work, and indicating the Work as
actually installed. These shall consist of carefully drawn markings on a set of reproducible prints of the
Drawings. The Contractor shall maintain at the job site one (1) set of Drawings and indicate thereon each
field change as it occurs.
3.11.3 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual delivery
to the Owner shall be delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format acceptable to the Owner.
3.12

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the Work
by the Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate
some portion of the Work.
3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures,
diagrams and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product or system for
some portion of the Work.
3.12.3 Samples are physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish
standards by which the Work will be judged.
3.12.4 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit to the Owner, with reasonable promptness and in
such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the work of the Owner or any separate contractor, all
Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents.
Submittals made by the Contractor that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned without
action.
3.12.5 The Contractor shall not perform any portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop
Drawings, product data, samples, or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been approved by
the Owner. Such Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.
3.12.6 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the
Contractor represents that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field
construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and that he has checked and coordinated the information
contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.
3.12.7 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of
the Contract Documents by the Owner’s or Project Manager’s approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Owner in writing of such
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deviation at the time of submission and the Owner has given written approval to the specific deviation. The
Contractor shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Owner’s approval thereof.
3.12.8 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing, on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, or similar submittals to revisions other than those required by the Owner on previous
submittals.
3.12.9 When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, or equipment is
required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall be entitled to rely in a reasonable
and professional fashion upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications. If any
or all such calculations or certifications are found to be inaccurate or incomplete, Contractor shall assume
full responsibility and bear all costs attributable or related thereto, including, without limitation, the expense
of Owner’s additional services associated with the verification of such calculations or certifications, and
the expense of Owner’s additional services made necessary by the failure of such calculations or
certifications to be accurate or complete.
3.12.10 Contractor shall furnish Owner with copies of all operator's instructions, service and parts manuals,
and all other literature received by Contractor from the manufacturer or supplier of equipment furnished
under the Contract. All operator's instructions, service and parts manuals, and all other such literature shall
be bound in permanent binders satisfactory to the Project Manager.
3.12.11 Copies of any manufacturer's guaranty or certificate as may be required by the Contract Documents
or normally included with the product, shall be submitted to the Owner through the Project Manager prior
to the acceptance of the Work by the Owner.
3.12.12 Throughout the progress of construction, the Contractor shall maintain a careful up-to-date record
of all changes on the plans and drawings during actual construction. Upon completion of Work, and prior
to acceptance by the Owner, the Contractor shall file with the Project Manager one (1) set of complete
drawings with all changes and Contractor's field construction notes neatly and legibly recorded thereon.
Such drawings shall indicate in part the exact routing, if changed from drawing location, of Underground
Utilities, condenser water lines, fuel oil tanks and lines, fire protection lines and any other major buried
utility lines, and routing of conduit runs which are buried or concealed in concrete slabs. Such information
may be used to prepare record drawings for the Owner.
3.12.13 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual
delivery to the Owner shall be maintained and delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format
acceptable to the Owner.
3.13

USE OF SITE

3.13.1 The Contractor shall confine his construction operations to the immediate vicinity of the location
shown on the plans and shall use due care in placing construction tools, equipment, excavated materials,
materials and equipment for installation and supplies, so as to cause the least possible damage to property
and interference with traffic. The placing of such tools, equipment, and materials shall be subject to the
approval of the Project Manager. If it is necessary or desirable that the Contractor use land outside the
Owner's right-of-way or other appropriate permit or easement(s), the Contractor shall obtain consent from,
and shall execute a written agreement with, the owner of any such land, as well as tenants and/or occupants
of such property if required. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all associated costs, including
clean-up and restoration. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land
or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any adjacent land or areas, resulting from the performance
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of the Work. Should any claim be made by any such owner, tenant or occupant because of the performance
of the Work, the Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve
the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law. The Contractor shall, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses and damages arising out of
or resulting from any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner, occupant or tenant
against Owner, the Project Manager, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or
based upon Contractor’s performance of the Work.
3.13.2 The Contractor shall protect, shore, brace, support and maintain all Underground Utilities, drains,
and underground construction uncovered or otherwise affected by the construction work performed by him.
3.14

CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK

3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting or patching that may be required to
complete the Work or to make its several parts fit together properly. It is the intent of the Contract
Documents that all areas requiring cutting and patching shall be restored to a completely finished condition
acceptable to the Owner.
3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger any portion of the Work or the work of the Owner or
any separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such work, or by excavation. The
Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter the Work of the Owner or any separate contractor except with
the prior written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor. The Contractor shall not
unreasonably withhold from the Owner or any separate contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise
altering the Work.
3.15

CLEANING UP

3.15.1 The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation
of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of the Work, he shall remove all
his waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project, as well as all his tools, construction equipment,
machinery and surplus materials. The Contractor shall leave the site clean and ready for use or occupancy
by the Owner at Substantial Completion of the Work. The Contractor shall restore to original condition all
property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so
and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor.
3.16

COMMUNICATIONS

3.16.1 The Contractor shall forward all communications to the Owner through the Owner's Project
Manager, except as the Owner may otherwise direct in writing.
3.17

ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

3.17.1 The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and each of Owner’s
officers, agents, servants and employees, including the Project Manager from liability of any nature or kind,
including cost and expense for, or on account of, any patented or unpatented invention, process, article, or
appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the Contract, including its use by the Owner, or the
Owner's officers, agents, servants, or employees, unless otherwise specifically stipulated in the Contract
Documents.
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3.17.2 If the Contractor uses any design, device or materials covered by letters patent or copyright, he
shall provide for such use by suitable agreement with the owner of such patented or copyrighted design,
device or material. It is mutually agreed and understood that, without exception, the Contract prices shall
include all royalties or costs arising from the use of such design, device or materials, in any way involved
in the Work. The Contractor or his Surety shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any and all
claims for infringement by reason of the use of such patented or copyrighted design, device or materials or
any trademark or copyright in connection with Work agreed to be performed under the Contract, and shall
indemnify the Owner for any cost, expense or damage which it may be obliged to pay by reason of such
infringement at any time during the prosecution of the Work or after completion of the Work.
3.17.3 The Contractor shall pay all royalty and license fees.
3.18

INDEMNIFICATION

3.18.1 The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and their
officers, employees, consultants, agents and insurers, from and against all liability, claims, and demands,
on account of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury,
personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever,
which arise out of or are in any manner connected with the Contract, if such injury, loss, or damage is
caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part by, the act, omission, error,
professional error, mistake, negligence, or other fault of the Contractor, any Subcontractor of the
Contractor, or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor, or
which arise out of any workers' compensation claim of any employee of the Contractor or of any employee
of any Subcontractor. The Contractor agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for
and defend against, any such liability, claims or demands at the sole expense of the Contractor. The
Contractor also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorney
fees, whether or not any such liability, claims, or demands alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent.
3.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or Project Manager, or any of their respective consultants,
agents, officers, directors or employees by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such
employee) of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any supplier to the Contractor, any person or organization
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under paragraph 3.18.1 shall not be limited
in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for
the Contractor, or any such Subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under workers'
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.
3.18.3 The indemnity set forth in this paragraph 3.18 shall also cover the City’s defense costs, in the event
that the City, in its sole discretion elects to provide its own defense. The City retains the right to disapprove
counsel, if any, selected by Contractor to fulfill the forgoing defense indemnity obligation, which right of
disapproval shall not be unreasonably exercised. Insurance coverage requirements specified herein shall in
no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The
Contractor shall obtain at its own expense any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the City’s
protection in the performance of the Construction Contract.
3.18.4 All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by or given in
accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in this paragraph
3.18, will survive final payment, completion and acceptance of the work and termination or completion of
the Agreement.
Page 20 of 53

Eff. 5.12.2020

3.18.5 RESERVED
3.19

ATTORNEYS FEES

3.19.1 In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring an action against the other to enforce any
provision of the Contract Documents, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, the prevailing
party in such action shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees as determined by the Court.
3.20

RESERVED

ARTICLE 4
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT
4.1

PROJECT MANAGER

4.1.1 Subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph 5.01 of the Construction Contract, the Project
Manager is empowered to act for Owner during the construction of the Work.
4.1.2 In case of termination of employment of the Project Manager, Owner may at any time employ or
retain any other person it may deem qualified to perform all or any part of the duties of the Project Manager
hereunder or to exercise any of its rights hereunder. Owner shall notify all parties in writing, setting forth
the scope of said replacement of Project Manager’s duties and responsibilities, prior to making this change.
4.2

PROJECT MANAGER’S ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

4.2.1 The Project Manager will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract
Documents and will be the Owner’s representative during construction and until final payment is due.
The Owner’s instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Project Manager. The
Project Manager will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the
Contract, unless otherwise modified by written instrument in accordance with other provisions of the
Contract.
4.2.2

RESERVED

4.2.3 The Project Manager will not have control or charge of safety precautions and programs or any
construction means or methods in connection with the Work.
4.2.4 The Project Manager shall at all times have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation and
progress.
4.2.5 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been
specially authorized by Owner, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate through the
Project Manager, provided, however, that Owner may instruct, correspond, or negotiate with Contractor
directly. Communications by and with subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor.
Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Project Manager.
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4.2.6 Based on the progress and quality of the Work, an evaluation of the Contractor’s Applications for
Payment, and all other information available, the Project Manager will determine the amounts owing to the
Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts as provided in paragraph 9.4.
4.2.7 The Project Manager will have the responsibility and authority to reject Work which does not
conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Project Manager considers it necessary or advisable to
insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require
special inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.7 whether or not such Work has
been fabricated, installed or completed.
4.2.8 The Project Manager will promptly review and approve or reject or take other appropriate action
upon Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken
with reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Contractor or
separate contractors, while allowing sufficient time in the Project Manager’s reasonable judgment to permit
adequate review. The Project Manager’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of any of Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents. The Project Manager’s
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.
4.2.9 The Project Manager will prepare Change Orders in accordance with Article 7, and will have
authority to order Minor Changes in the Work as provided in paragraph 7.4.1. All Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and Orders for Minor Changes in the Work shall require the approval of
Owner in writing to be binding on Owner.
4.2.10 The Project Manager shall determine the date(s) of Substantial Completion and Final Completion,
shall issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion when and as required by the Contract Documents, will
receive, review, and maintain written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor, and will issue a final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents.
4.3

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.3.1 Claims must be made by written notice to the Project Manager. The responsibility to substantiate
claims shall rest with the party making the claim.
4.3.2

RESERVED

4.3.3 Time Limits on Claims. Claims by either party must be made within twenty-one (21) days after
occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim or within twenty-one (21) days after the claimant first
recognizes, or reasonably should have recognized, the condition giving rise to the claim, whichever is later.
An additional claim made after the initial claim has been implemented by change order will not be
considered unless submitted in a timely manner.
4.3.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a claim, including litigation, unless
otherwise directed by Owner in writing, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the
Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. No
Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as may be
agreed to in writing by the Owner.
4.3.5 Waiver of Claims: Final Payment. The making and acceptance of Final Payment shall constitute a
waiver of claims by the Owner except those arising from:
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.1

Liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;

.2

Failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents;

.3

Terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or

.4

Faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion.

4.3.6 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If conditions are encountered at the site which are
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions which differ materially from those indicated in
the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially
from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the
character provided for in the Contract Documents, then notice by the observing party shall be given to the
other party promptly before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than seven (7) days after first
observance of the conditions. Site conditions which an experienced and prudent contractor could have
anticipated by visiting the site, familiarizing himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to
be performed and correlating his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents shall not
be considered as claims for concealed or unknown conditions, nor shall the locations of Underground
Utilities which differ from locations provided by the utility companies. If the Owner determines that the
conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that
no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Owner shall so notify the Contractor in writing,
stating the reasons. Claims by the Contractor in opposition to such determination must be made within
twenty-one (21) days after the Owner has given notice of the decision. If the Owner and Contractor cannot
agree on an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be subject to further
proceeding pursuant to paragraph 4.4.
4.3.7 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Sum, written notice as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Said notice
shall itemize all claims and shall contain sufficient detail and substantiating data to permit evaluation of
same by Owner. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. Prior notice is not required for claims
relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Paragraph 10.3.
If the Contractor believes additional cost is involved for reasons including but not limited to (1) a
written interpretation from the Owner, (2) an order by the Owner to stop the Work where the Contractor
was not at fault, (3) a written Order for a Minor Change in the Work issued by the Project Manager, (4)
failure of payment by the Owner, (5) termination of the Contract by the Owner, (6) Owner's suspension of
the Work, or (7) other reasonable grounds, claim shall be filed in accordance with the procedure established
herein. Any change in the Contract Sum resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
Additional costs that Contractor may incur related to COVID-19 including, without limitation,
labor, material, and equipment costs, insurance costs, costs related to compliance with construction industry
best practices and governmental or quasi-governmental orders, and costs related to the suspension of Work,
shall not be grounds for an increase in the Contract Sum.
4.3.8 Claims for additional time. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Time, written notice as provided herein shall be given. The Contractor's claim shall include an estimate of
cost and of probable effect of delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one
claim is necessary. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
Page 23 of 53

Eff. 5.12.2020

4.3.9 Injury or damage to person or property. Subject to the Parties' obligations and responsibilities
under the Contract Documents in general and Article 11 hereof in particular, if either party to the Contract
suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, of any of
the other party's employees or agents, or of others for whose acts such party is legally liable, written notice
of such injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time
not exceeding ten (10) days after first observance. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the
other party to investigate the matter. If a claim for additional cost or time related to this claim is to be
asserted, it shall be filed as provided in paragraphs 4.3.7 or 4.3.8.
4.4

RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.4.1 The Project Manager will review all claims by the Contractor and take one (1) or more of the
following preliminary actions within ten (10) days of receipt of a claim: (1) request additional supporting
data from the Contractor, (2) submit a schedule to the Contractor indicating when the Owner expects to
take action, (3) reject the claim in whole or in part, stating reasons for rejection, (4) recommend approval
of the claim by the Owner, or (5) suggest a compromise. The Owner may also, but is not obligated to,
notify the surety, if any, of the nature and amount of the claim.
4.4.2

If a claim has been resolved, the Project Manager will prepare or obtain appropriate documentation.

4.4.3 If a claim has not been resolved, the Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the Project
Manager’s preliminary response, take one (1) or more of the following actions: (1) submit additional
supporting data requested by the Project Manager, (2) modify the initial claim, or (3) notify the Project
Manager that the initial claim stands.
4.4.4 If a claim has not been resolved after consideration of the foregoing and of further evidence
presented by the parties or requested by the Project Manager, the Project Manager will notify the Contractor
in writing that the Project Manager’s decision will be made within ten (10) days, which decision shall be
considered advisory only and not binding in the event of litigation with respect to the claim. Upon
expiration of such time period, the Project Manager will render to the parties the Owner’s written decision
relative to the claim, including any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. If there is a
surety and there appears to be a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, but is not obligated
to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

ARTICLE 5
SUBCONTRACTORS
5.1

AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF
THE WORK

5.1.1 Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents or the Bidding Documents, the Contractor,
as soon as practicable after the award of the Construction Contract, shall furnish to the Project Manager in
writing the names of the persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment
fabricated to a special design) proposed for each of the principal portions of the Work. The Project Manager
will promptly reply to the Contractor in writing stating whether or not the Owner has reasonable objection
to any such proposed person or entity.
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5.1.2 The Contractor shall not contract with any such proposed person or entity to whom the Owner has
made reasonable and timely objection under the provisions of paragraph 5.2.1. The Contractor shall not be
required to contract with anyone to whom he has a reasonable objection.
5.1.3 If the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity, the Contractor shall
submit a substitute to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection, and the Contract Sum shall be increased
or decreased by the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate change order shall
be issued; however, no increase in the Contract Sum shall be allowed for any such substitution unless the
Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required by paragraph 5.2.1.
5.1.4 The Contractor shall make no substitution for any subcontractor, person or entity previously
selected if the Owner makes reasonable objection to such substitution.
5.1.5
5.2

RESERVED
SUB-CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

5.2.1 By an appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor, to the extent
of the Work to be performed by the subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract
Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the
Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner. Each subcontract agreement shall
preserve and protect the rights of the Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be
performed by the subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall
allow to the subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the Contractor-Subcontractor
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by these
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor to
enter into similar agreements with his sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each
proposed subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to
which the subcontractor will be bound by this paragraph 5.2, and, upon written request of the subcontractor,
identify to the subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at variance
with the Contract Documents. Each subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such documents available
to his sub-subcontractors.
5.3

CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS

5.3.1 Contractor hereby assigns to Owner (and Owner's assigns) all its interest in any subcontract
agreements and purchase orders now existing or hereinafter entered into by Contractor for performance of
any part of the Work, which assignment will be effective upon acceptance by Owner in writing and only as
to those subcontract agreements and purchase orders that Owner designates in writing. It is agreed and
understood that Owner may accept said assignment at any time during the course of construction prior to
Final Completion. Upon such acceptance by Owner, (1) Contractor shall promptly furnish to Owner true
and correct copies of the designated subcontract agreements and purchase orders, and (2) Owner shall be
required to compensate the designated subcontractors or suppliers only for compensation accruing to such
parties for work done or materials delivered from and after the date on which Owner determines to accept
the subcontract agreements or purchase orders. All sums due and owing by Contractor to the designated
subcontractors or suppliers for Work performed or material supplied prior to Owner's acceptance of the
subcontract agreements or purchase orders shall constitute a debt between such parties and Contractor. It
is further agreed that all subcontract agreements and purchase orders shall provide that they are freely
assignable by Contractor to Owner and Owner's assigns under the terms and conditions stated hereinabove.
It is further agreed and understood that such assignment is part of the consideration to Owner for entering
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into the Construction Contract with Contractor and may not be withdrawn prior to Final Completion.
Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Owner a written acknowledgment in form and substance
satisfactory to Owner from each of its subcontractors and suppliers of the contingent assignment described
herein no later than ten (10) days after the date of execution of each subcontract agreement and purchase
order with such parties.
ARTICLE 6
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER
OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
6.1

OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE
CONTRACTS

6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and to
award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other work on the site under
these or similar conditions of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, he shall make such claim as provided elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site,
the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each
separate Construction Contract.
6.1.3 The Owner will provide for the coordination of the work of his own forces and of each separate
contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to
do so. The Contractor shall make any revisions to its construction schedule as requested by the Owner. If
the Contractor claims additional cost because of any such revisions, the Contractor shall make such claim
as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The construction schedules shall then constitute the
schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until subsequently revised.
6.2

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors access to the site and all areas of
the Work as may be reasonably necessary for the performance of their work, reasonable opportunity for the
introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and for the execution of their work, and shall
connect and coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.
6.2.2 If any part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of the
Owner or any separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with the Work, promptly report
to the Project Manager any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it unsuitable
for proper execution and results of Contractor's Work or render it incompatible with Contractor's Work.
Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or separate contractor's
work as fit and proper to receive his Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.
6.2.3 Subject to Paragraph 8.3 hereof, any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by
the party responsible therefor.
6.2.4

Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of the Owner, or to other completed
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or partially completed construction or property on the site or to property of any adjoining owner or other
party, the Contractor shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in paragraph 10.2.4.
6.2.5 Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of any separate contractor, or in the
event of any other claim, dispute, or matter in question between the Contractor and any separate contractor,
the Contractor shall promptly attempt to settle with such other contractor by agreement, or otherwise to
resolve the dispute. In any event, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Owner, its
officers, employees, and agents, to the full extent as agreed to under paragraph 3.18.
6.3

OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

6.3.1 If a dispute arises between the Contractor, separate contractors, and the Owner as to their
responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from
waste materials and rubbish as described in paragraph 3.15, the Owner may clean up and allocate the cost
thereof among the contractors responsible therefor.
ARTICLE 7
CHANGES IN THE WORK
7.1

CHANGES

7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Construction Contract, and
without invalidating the Construction Contract, only by Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or
Order for a Minor Change in the Work, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and the Contractor; a
Construction Change Directive may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor; an Order for a Minor Change
in the Work may be issued by the Project Manager alone.
7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents,
and the Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction
Change Directive, or Order for a Minor Change in the Work.
7.1.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if the
quantities originally contemplated are so changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change
Directive that application of such unit prices to the quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial
inequity to the Owner or the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted; provided
however, that Owner may increase the number of units without change in the unit price if reasonable.
.1

The term “substantial inequity” shall be construed to apply only to the following
circumstances: (1) when the character of the Work as altered differs materially in kind or
nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or (2) when a
major item of work is increased in excess of one hundred and twenty five percent (125%)
or decreased below seventy five percent (75%) of the original contract quantity. A major
item is defined to be any item having an original contract value in excess of ten percent
(10%) of the original contract amount

.2

Any allowance for an increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125%
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of original contract item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75%, to the actual amount
of work performed.
7.2

CHANGE ORDERS

7.2.1 A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the Owner stating
their agreement upon all of the following:
.1

a change in the Work;

.2

the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and

.3

the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.

The Contract Sum and the Contract Time may be changed only by Change Order.
7.2.2 Methods used in determining adjustments to the Contract Sum may include those listed in
paragraph 7.3.3.
7.3

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES

7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order directed to the Contractor and signed by the
Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract
Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating
the Construction Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Construction Contract
consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted
accordingly.
7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a
Change Order.
7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the
adjustment shall be based on one of the following methods:
.1

by mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient
substantiating data to permit evaluation;

.2

by unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3

by cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable
fixed or percentage fee; or

.4

by the method provided in paragraph 7.3.6.

7.3.4 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the
change in the Work involved and advise Owner of the Contractor's agreement or disagreement with the
method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in
the Contract Sum or Contract Time.
7.3.5

A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the agreement of the
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Contractor therewith, including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for
determining them. Such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.
7.3.6 If the Contractor does not respond promptly to the Construction Change Directive or disagrees with
the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, the method and the adjustment shall be determined by the
Owner on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the Work attributable to
the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, a percentage fee for overhead and profit
not to exceed five percent (5%) of such Work's actual cost for Contractor and ten percent (10%) of such
Work's actual cost to be apportioned between any and all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors. For Work
performed by Contractor's own forces, Contractor's mark-up shall be limited to actual cost plus a percentage
fee for overhead and profit not to exceed ten percent (10%). In such case, and also under Clause 7.3.3.3,
the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Project Manager may prescribe, an itemized
accounting of actual costs together with appropriate supporting data. For the purposes of this paragraph
7.3.6, actual costs shall be defined as and limited to the following:
.1

costs of labor, including Social Security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe
benefits required by agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance;

.2

costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including costs of transportation, whether
incorporated or consumed;

.3

reasonable rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, obtained and
used specifically for such Work, whether rented from the Contractor or others; and

.4

costs of premiums for all bonds (if any), permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes directly
attributable to such Work. Actual cost does not include any item which could be deemed
to be a general conditions cost or overhead, such as but not limited to, the cost of Contractor
and Subcontractor supervisory personnel assigned to the Work, and field office and related
expenses.

7.3.7 Pending final determination of actual cost to the Owner, amounts not in dispute may be included
in applications for payment. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a
deletion or change which results in a net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed
by the Project Manager. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if
any, with respect to that change.
7.3.8 If the Owner and Contractor do not agree with the adjustment in Contract Time or the method for
determining it, the adjustment or the method shall be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8.3 hereof.
7.3.9 When the adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time are determined as provided herein,
such determination shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded by preparation and execution of an
appropriate Change Order.
7.4

MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

7.4.1 The Project Manager will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving an
adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent
of the Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written order, and shall be binding on the
Owner and the Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall carry out such
written orders promptly.
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ARTICLE 8
TIME
8.1

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK

8.1.1 The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be postponed by the failure to act of the
Contractor or of persons or entities for whom the Contractor is responsible.
8.2

PROGRESS AND COMPLETION

8.2.1 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Construction Contract.
By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable
period for performing the Work.
8.2.2 The Contractor shall begin the Work on the Date of Commencement of the Work. The Contractor
shall not, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely commence operations
on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be furnished by the
Contractor. The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such
insurance.
8.2.3 The Contractor shall carry the Work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve
Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.
8.3

DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME

8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed, disrupted, or otherwise interfered with at any time, or from time to
time, in the performance of the Work, the rights and obligations of the parties with respect to such delay
shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3. Contractor's exclusive remedy for any delay, disruption, or
interference shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3.
8.3.1.1 Any delay within the control of the Contractor or within the control of any subcontractor, agent, or
supplier thereof (including, without limitation, delay within the joint control of the Contractor or one (1) or
more of his subcontractors, agents, or suppliers) shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor, and the
Contractor shall not be entitled to any extension of time or to any increase in the Contract Sum as the result
of any such delay.
8.3.1.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement, progress, or Substantial Completion
of the Work by fire, flood, other unusually severe weather, acts of God, or other unforeseeable occurrences
beyond the reasonable control of the Contractor (which shall not include cost increases related to COVID19), or by a government or quasi-government-imposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or
City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public health emergency (including measures responding to COVID19), then those performance dates specified in the Contract Documents that are affected by the delay shall
be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive, for such reasonable time as Owner, in its
reasonable good faith judgment, may determine, provided that Contractor complies with subparagraph
8.3.1.4 below. The extension of the affected performance dates shall be the Contractor’s sole and exclusive
remedy for any delay under this subparagraph 8.3.1.2 and shall not result in any increase in the Contract
Sum.
8.3.1.3 Upon the occurrence of any delay that will affect the Date of Substantial Completion not concurrent
with delays described under subparagraphs 8.3.1.1 and 8.3.1.2 above, which is proximately caused by acts
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or omissions within the control of the Owner, his agents (other than Contractor), or employees, the Date of
Substantial Completion shall be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive on a day-forday basis and the Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment to the Contract Sum as reimbursement for
actual, proven costs reasonably and necessarily incurred as a direct consequence of such delay, provided
that Contractor complies with subparagraph 8.3.1.4 below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a delay under
this subparagraph 8.3.1.3 is proximately related to COVID-19, the extension of the Date of Substantial
Completion shall be Contractor’s sole and exclusive remedy, and Contractor shall not be entitled to any
adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof.
8.3.1.4 Any claim for an extension of time under subparagraphs 8.3.1.2 or 8.3.1.3 above, and any claim
for an adjustment to the Contract Sum authorized by subparagraph 8.3.1.3 above, shall be made as follows:
.1

The Contractor shall, within five (5) days after the onset of any delay, notify the Project
Manager in writing of the causes of delay, the facts relating thereto, the requested time
extension and, if the relief is available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, the requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum. In the case of a continuing delay, only one (1) claim is
necessary, provided, that proof of any recoverable delay costs to support a requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum shall be submitted within fifteen (15) days after the end of
any period of delay.

.2

The Project Manager shall determine whether the cause for the claim for an extension of
time is beyond the control of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, agents, or
suppliers. Owner shall either approve or disapprove the requested extension and, if
available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, any related request for an adjustment to the Contract
Sum.

.3

Should a time extension or adjustment to the Contract Sum be granted by the Owner, a
Change Order or Construction Change Directive, signed by the Owner, shall be issued
stating the new date(s) for, as applicable, commencement, performance, and or Substantial
Completion and any adjustment to the Contract Sum.

.4

Failure by Contractor to timely provide, in writing, a request for time extension or an
adjustment to the Contract Sum (including proof of costs related to the same), shall
constitute a waiver by Contractor of any time extension or Contract Sum adjustment which
Contractor may have otherwise been granted pursuant to this paragraph 8.3.

.5

Nothing herein shall prevent Contractor from requesting, and Owner granting, an extension
of time contingent upon payment by Contractor of an agreed amount of liquidated damages
in consideration of the time extension.

8.3.2 Contractor expressly acknowledges and confirms its obligation to minimize any delays as well as
the costs associated with any delay. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor shall, to the best of its
ability, re-assign personnel and equipment, commence or accelerate unaffected portions of the Work, and
otherwise employ all prudent measures available to minimize delay and associated delay costs. In no event
shall the Owner be liable for payment of delay costs which could have been avoided or mitigated by any
means reasonably available to the Contractor.
8.3.4 If the Owner or any of its employees, consultants, or agents, including the Project Manager, is
delayed at any time in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract by fire, flood, other
unusually severe weather, acts of God, other unforeseeable occurrences beyond the reasonable control of
the Owner or any of its employees, consultants, or agents, or by a government- or quasi-governmentPage 31 of 53

Eff. 5.12.2020

imposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public
health emergency (including measures responding to COVID-19), then the dates for performance of the
obligations affected by the delay shall be extended on a day-for-day basis; provided, however, that such
extension shall not entitle Contractor to any adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof. The Owner
or the Project Manager will provide Contractor with verbal or written notice of the event causing delay of
performance within five (5) days after the onset of any delay.
8.4

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Time is of the essence of the Contract. In the event that the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion
of the Work within the Contract Time or fails to meet any other time requirement set forth in the Contract, after
due allowance for any time extensions granted by Owner, the Contractor shall be liable to Owner for Liquidated
Damages, and not as a penalty, in the amount set forth in the table below. For each and every calendar day that
Work shall remain incomplete after the Contract Time as adjusted by duly executed Change Order or
Construction Change Directive, the sum per calendar day shown in the following table, unless otherwise
specified in the Bid, may be deducted from monies due to or to become due to the Contractor or Owner may
take action to collect such Liquidated Damages from the Contractor or its Surety. This sum is fixed and agreed
upon between the parties because the actual loss to Owner and to the public caused by delay in completion will
be extremely difficult to determine.
All punch list items (required by paragraph 9.8.2) must be completed within thirty (30) days of Substantial
Completion or Liquidated Damages as provided herein will be assessed.
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the Contract Time, or after the
date to which the Contract Time may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of
Owner of any of its rights under the Contract.
Original Contract Amount
From More than $
0
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
To and Including $
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000
--------------

Liquidated Damages per
Calendar Day ($)*
500.00
600.00
800.00
1,400.00
2,000.00
3,300.00
3,900.00
**

*The per day liquidated damages shall be the amount set forth in this table, or in the Standard Specifications
for Road and Bridge Construction as published by the Colorado Department of Transportation controlling as
of the date on which the Contract is mutually executed by the Contractor and Owner, whichever is higher.
**3,900.00 plus 300.00 per each additional 1,000,000 contract amount or part thereof over 10,000,000.
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ARTICLE 9
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9.1

CONTRACT SUM

9.1.1 The Contractor will not be allowed any claims for anticipated profits, for loss of profits, or for any
damages or additional costs incurred because of a difference between the estimate of any item and the
amount of the item actually required, or for the elimination of any part of the Work. Funds for construction
of the Work herein contemplated are limited. The Owner reserves the right to eliminate or reduce the items
of the proposal or any of the Work as may be required to bring the cost of the Work within the limits of
available funds.
9.2

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager a
schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the Work, which in the aggregate equals the total
Contract Sum, divided so as to facilitate payments to subcontractors, supported by such evidence of
correctness as the Project Manager may direct. This Schedule, when approved by the Project Manager,
shall be used to monitor the progress of the Work and as a basis for Certificates for Payment.
9.3

APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

9.3.1 In accordance with the permitted frequency of applications for payment established in the
Construction Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager an itemized Application for
Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be
supported by such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Project Manager may require,
and reflecting retainage, if any, as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
9.3.1.1 Such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in the Work which have
been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives but not yet included in Change Orders.
9.3.1.2 Such applications may not include requests for payment of amounts the Contractor does not intend
to pay to a subcontractor or supplier because of a dispute or other reason.
9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments will be made on account of
materials or equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site and, if
approved in advance by the Owner, payments may similarly be made for materials or equipment suitably
stored at some other location agreed upon in writing for subsequent incorporation in the Work. Payments
for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon submission by the Contractor
of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such
materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, including applicable insurance and
transportation to the site for those materials and equipment stored off the site.
9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all work, materials and equipment covered by an Application
for Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of
payment by the Contractor, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or
encumbrances, hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no work, materials or equipment
covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the Contractor, or by any other person
performing work at the site or furnishing materials and equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement
under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed
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by the Contractor or such other person.
9.3.4 When Application for Payment includes materials stored off the Project site or stored on the Project
site but not incorporated in the Work, for which no previous payment has been requested, a complete
description of such material shall be attached to the application. Suitable storage which is off the Project
site shall be a bonded warehouse or appropriate storage approved by Owner with the stored materials
properly tagged and identifiable for this Project and properly segregated from other materials. The Owner's
written approval shall be obtained before the use of offsite storage is made. Such approval may be withheld
in Owner's sole discretion.
9.4

CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

9.4.1 The Project Manager will, within ten (10) days after the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for
Payment, either issue a Certificate for Payment to the Contractor, for such amount as the Project Manager
determines is properly due, or notify the Contractor in writing his reasons for withholding a certificate in
whole or in part as provided in paragraph 9.5.1.
9.4.2 No Certificate for Payment shall be issued unless it appears to the Project Manager that the Work
has progressed to the point indicated; that, to the best of the Project Manager’s knowledge, information and
belief, but without in any way waiving any of Owner’s rights or claims under the Contract Documents, the
quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents and that all certificates required under
the Contract Documents have been furnished in proper form. However, the issuance of a Certificate for
Payment will not be a representation that the Project Manager has made examination to ascertain how or
for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.
9.5

DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION

9.5.1 The Project Manager may decline to certify payment and may withhold his certificate in whole or
in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner, if in his opinion he is unable to make the
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2. If the Project Manager is unable to make such
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2 and to certify payment in the amount of the application, he
will notify the Contractor as provided in paragraph 9.4.1. If the Contractor and the Project Manager cannot
agree on a revised amount, the Project Manager will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount
for which he is able to make such determinations. The Project Manager may also decline to certify payment
or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or
any part of any Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in his opinion
to protect the Owner from loss because of:
.1

defective Work not remedied,

.2

third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;

.3

failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to subcontractors or for labor,
materials or equipment;

.4

reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the
Contract Sum;

.5

damage to the Owner or another contractor;
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.6

reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, or that
the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the
anticipated delay;

.7

failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; or

.8

failure to maintain accurate and up-to-date as-built drawings.

9.5.2 When the above grounds are removed, Certificates for Payment shall be made by the Project
Manager for amounts withheld because of them.
9.6

PROGRESS PAYMENTS

9.6.1 After the Project Manager has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in
a timely manner not to exceed forty-five (45) days from the time the Project Manager issued the Certificate
for Payment. The Owner may refuse to make payment on any Certificate for Payment for any default of
the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through
9.5.1.8. The Owner shall not be deemed in default by reason of withholding payment while any of such
defaults remain uncured.
9.6.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each subcontractor, upon receipt of payment from the Owner,
out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work, the amount to which
said subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, if any, from payments to the
Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work. The Contractor shall, by an appropriate agreement
with each subcontractor, require each subcontractor to make payments to his sub-subcontractors in similar
manner.
9.6.3 The Project Manager may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any subcontractor, if
practicable, information regarding the percentages of completion or the amounts applied for by the
Contractor and the action taken thereon by the Project Manager on account of Work done by such
subcontractor.
9.6.4 The Owner shall not have any obligation to pay or to see the payment of any monies to any
subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
9.6.5 Payment to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in paragraphs 9.6.2, 9.6.3,
and 9.6.4.
9.6.6 No certificate for a progress payment, nor any progress payment, nor any partial or entire use or
occupancy of the Project by the Owner, shall constitute an acceptance of any Work not in accordance with
the Contract Documents.
9.6.7

RETAINAGE

9.6.7.1 In addition to any amounts withheld from payment pursuant to any other provision in this
Construction Contract, Owner shall retain from progress payments, until payment is due under the terms
and conditions governing final payments, amounts as follows:
.1

Owner shall retain five percent (5%) of each progress payment to a maximum of five
percent (5%) of the Contract Sum.
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.2
9.7

In no event shall the amount retained be reduced to less than five percent (5%) of the
Contract Sum until after final acceptance of the Project by the Owner.
FAILURE OF PAYMENT

9.7.1 If the Project Manager does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor,
within ten (10) days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not, for
reasons other than a default of the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set
forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through 9.5.1.8, pay the Contractor within forty-five (45) days after the date
established in the Contract Documents any amount certified by the Project Manager, then the Contractor
may, upon seven (7) additional days' written notice to the Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount
owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall
be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, which
shall be effected by appropriate Change Order.
9.8

SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

9.8.1 The Work will not be considered suitable for Substantial Completion review until all project
systems included in the Work are operational as designed and scheduled, all designated or required
governmental inspections and certifications have been made and posted, designated instruction of Owner's
personnel in the operation of systems has been completed, and all final finishes within the Construction
Contract are in place. In general, the only remaining Work shall be minor in nature, so that the Owner
could occupy the building or utilize the improvements on that date and the completion of the Work by the
Contractor would not materially interfere or hamper the Owner's normal operations. As a further condition
of Substantial Completion acceptance, the Contractor shall certify that all remaining Work will be
completed within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days or as agreed upon by the Owner and Contractor in
writing following the Date of Substantial Completion.
9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a designated portion thereof which the Owner
agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Project
Manager a list of items to be completed or corrected. The Contractor shall proceed promptly to complete
and correct items on the list. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility
of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of the
Contractor’s list, the Project Manager will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated
portion thereof is Substantially Complete. If the Project Manager’s inspection discloses any item, whether
or not included on the Contractor’s list, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or
correct such items upon notification by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall then submit a request
for another inspection by the Project Manager to determine Substantial Completion. When the Work or
designated portion thereof is Substantially Complete, the Project Manager will prepare a Certificate of
Substantial Completion which shall establish the Date of Substantial Completion, shall state the
responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the
Work, and insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed
therein, which time shall be no longer than thirty (30) days after the scheduled completion date. The
Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and the Contractor for their written
acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.
9.8.3 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof and upon application by
the Contractor and certification by the Project Manager, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting
adjustment in retainage, if any, for such Work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract Documents.
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9.9

PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE

9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any
stage of construction regardless of whether the Contract Time has expired (hereinafter sometimes referred
to as “partial occupancy”). Such partial occupancy may commence whether or not the applicable portion
of the Work is Substantially Complete.
9.9.2 In the event of partial occupancy, the Contractor shall promptly secure endorsement from its
insurance carriers and consent from its sureties, if any.
9.9.3 In the event of partial occupancy before Substantial Completion as provided above, the Contractor
shall cooperate with the Owner in making available for the Owner’s use and benefit such building services
as heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting, telephone, elevators, and security for the portion or portions
to be occupied, and if the Work required to furnish such services is not entirely completed at the time the
Owner desires to occupy the aforesaid portion or portions, the Contractor shall make every reasonable effort
to complete such Work or make temporary provisions for such Work as soon as possible so that the
aforementioned building services may be put into operation and use. Similar provisions shall be made
where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner may use or occupy such portions
of the structure or improvement.
9.9.4 In the event of partial occupancy prior to Substantial Completion, mutually acceptable
arrangements shall be made between the Owner and Contractor in respect of the operation and cost of
necessary security, maintenance and utilities, including heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting,
telephone services, and elevators. The Owner shall assume proportionate and reasonable responsibility for
the cost of the above services, reduced by any savings to Contractor for such services realized by reason of
partial occupancy. Further, mutually acceptable arrangements shall be made between the Owner and
Contractor in respect of insurance and damage to the Work. Contractor's acceptance of arrangements
proposed by Owner in respect of such matters shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned.
Similar provisions shall be made where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner
may use or occupy such portions of the structure or improvement.
9.9.5 In each instance, when the Owner elects to exercise its right of partial occupancy as described
herein, Owner will give Contractor advance written notice of its election to take the portion or portions
involved, and immediately prior to partial occupancy, Contractor, and the Project Manager shall jointly
inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used to determine and record the conditions of
the same.
9.9.6 It shall be understood, however, that partial occupancy shall not: (1) constitute Final Acceptance
of any Work, (2) relieve the Contractor for responsibility for loss or damage because of or arising out of
defects in, or malfunctioning of, any Work, material, or equipment, nor from any other unfulfilled
obligations or responsibilities under the Contract Documents, or (3) commence any warranty period under
the Contract Documents; provided that Contractor shall not be liable for ordinary wear and tear resulting
from such partial occupancy.
9.9.7 Subject to the terms and conditions provided herein, if the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of partial occupancy by the Owner, Contractor shall make such claim as provided
elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
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9.10

FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

9.10.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and,
when he finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Construction Contract fully
performed, he will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of his knowledge,
information and belief, and on the basis of his observations and inspections, the Work has been completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found
to be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate, is due and payable. The Project Manager’s
final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that the conditions precedent to the
Contractor's being entitled to final payment as set forth in paragraph 9.10.2 have been fulfilled. Final
Payment is also subject to all City Charter and City Code requirements. Warranties required by the Contract
Documents shall commence on the date that the Project Manager issues a final Certificate of Payment to
the Owner.
9.10.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the
Contractor submits to the Project Manager:
9.10.2.1 Evidence of compliance with all requirements of the Contract Documents: notices, certificates,
affidavits, other requirements to complete obligations under the Contract Documents, including but not
limited to (a) instruction of Owner’s representatives in the operation of mechanical, electrical, plumbing
and other systems, (b) delivery of keys to Owner with keying schedules, sub-master and special keys, (c)
delivery to Owner of Contractor’s general warranty as described in Paragraph 3.5, and each written
warranty and assignment thereof prepared in duplicate, certificates of inspections, and bonds for Project
Manager’s review and delivery to Owner, (d) delivery to Project Manager of printed or typewritten
operating, servicing, maintenance and cleaning instructions for the Work; parts lists and special tools for
mechanical and electrical work;
9.10.2.2 If required by the Owner, (a) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and
other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or his property might in any way be
responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (b) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, and (c)
other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers
of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Construction Contract, to the extent
and in such form as may be designated by the Owner, and (d) a final waiver of liens in a form satisfactory
to Owner, covering all Work including that of all subcontractors, vendors, labor, materials and services,
executed by an authorized officer and duly notarized;
9.10.2.3 In addition to the foregoing, all other submissions required by other articles and paragraphs of the
specifications including final construction schedule shall be submitted to the Project Manager before
approval of Final Payment;
9.10.2.4 If any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor
may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against any such lien. If any such
lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all monies
that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys'
fees.
9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through
no fault of the Contractor or by the issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Project
Manager so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Project
Manager, and without terminating the Construction Contract, make payment of the balance due for that
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portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed
or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if bonds have been
furnished, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Project Manager prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final
payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.
9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Owner except those
arising from:
.1

unsettled liens,

.2

faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion,

.3

failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents,

.4

terms of any special warranties required by the Contract Documents, or

.5

replacement of material or equipment which is rejected if found, after the date of final
payment, to be defective, or inferior in quality or uniformity, to the material or equipment
specified, or is not as represented to the Project Manager and Owner.

9.10.5 The acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a subcontractor, or supplier shall constitute a
waiver of all claims by that payee.
9.10.6 Pursuant to § 24-91-103, C.R.S., if the Contract Sum exceeds One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00), Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall only be made upon compliance with the
following publication requirement. The Owner shall publish a “notice of final payment” at least twice in an
Arapahoe County newspaper of general circulation prior to making final payment to the Contractor. This
notice of final payment advertises the date, time, and place when final payment will be made and is intended
to alert subcontractors so they can present any claims for unpaid amounts to the Owner. Notwithstanding
anything in the Contract Documents to the contrary, final payment shall not be made to Contractor until the
Owner has complied with § 38-26-107, C.R.S. and all claims, if any, have been resolved to the satisfaction
of the Owner.
ARTICLE 10
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10.1

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS

10.1.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, including, but not limited to, implementing,
managing, and enforcing construction industry best practices and protocols for maintaining worker and
jobsite safety at the Project related to COVID-19.
10.1.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, in the event the Contractor encounters on
the site material reasonably believed to be asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) which has not been
rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop work in the area affected and report the condition
to the Owner in writing. The Work in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed except by written
agreement of the Owner and Contractor, if in fact the material is asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)
and has not been rendered harmless. The Work in the affected area shall be resumed in the absence of
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asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or when it has been rendered harmless, upon written direction
of Owner.
10.1.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not be required pursuant
to Article 7 to perform without consent any Work relating to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB).
10.2

SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

10.2.1 The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all necessary
protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
.1

all persons involved in or affected by the Work;

.2

all the Work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage
on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of his
subcontractors or sub-subcontractors; and

.3

other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including but not limited to trees, shrubs,
lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, ditches, fences, gates, private property, and
utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

.4

The Contractor shall take all measures necessary to mitigate the impact of weather so that
the Project may continue on schedule. In no event shall the Owner be liable for extra costs
incurred on materials and any part of the Work due to the Contractor’s failing to take all
measures necessary to protect the Work from weather and the Contractor shall not be
entitled to such claims. Also, no extension of the Contract Time shall be allowed if the
Contractor is able to proceed with other Work related to the Project.

10.2.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property, or their
protection from damage, injury or loss, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA), as applicable, and all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees
in response to COVID-19.
10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the
Work, all necessary safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other
warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent
utilities of the safeguards and protections, and complying with the orders, resolutions, and decrees of all
federal, state and local governmental agencies, instrumentalities and authorities having jurisdiction over
the Project or Contractor, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to COVID-19.
10.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss at its sole cost and expense (other than
damage or loss insured under Paragraph 11.3) to any property referred to in Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3
caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, any sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for
which the Contractor is responsible under Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable
to the acts or omissions of the Owner or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone
for whose acts the Owner may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor.
Utility locate services provided in the field by the Owner shall not be deemed an act or omission that relieves
Contractor of its responsibility hereunder. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to
his obligations under Paragraph 3.5.
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10.2.5 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.
This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in
writing to the Owner.
10.2.6 The Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger its
safety, nor shall the Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures
that will endanger it.
10.3

EMERGENCIES

10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at his
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any additional compensation or extension of time
claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency Work shall be determined as provided in Paragraph
4.3, Paragraph 8.3 and Article 7.
10.4

USE OF EXPLOSIVES, DRIVING OR REMOVAL OF PILES, WRECKING,
EXCAVATION WORK OR OTHER SIMILAR AND POTENTIALLY
DANGEROUS WORK

10.4.1 When the use of explosives, driving or removal of piles, wrecking, excavation work or other
similarly potentially dangerous work is necessary for the prosecution of the Work, the Contractor shall
exercise the utmost care so as not to endanger life or property and shall carry on such activities under the
supervision of properly qualified personnel, such potentially dangerous work shall not be undertaken unless
and until the Project Manager has authorized same.
10.4.2 Detonation of explosives by the Contract shall be by permit authorized by Owner. The following
information must be submitted to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof at least thirty (30)
days prior to the detonation of explosives:
.1

A graphic plan showing locations of proposed explosive use and improvements (including
structures, roadways, utilities, etc.) on the property, surrounding land uses, and
improvements on adjacent properties within a distance equal to 1000 feet plus the
maximum distance of vibration as specified in the report described below.

.2

A geotechnical report prepared by Colorado-registered professional engineer describing
the geology of the area and the impacts of explosive use in the area, including wave
attenuation and travel distance and potential impacts on improvements in the area.

.3

An analysis of alternatives to explosives, including safety, time, and monetary comparisons
of the alternatives.
The Contractor shall ensure that audible signals warning persons of danger will be given
before detonation of explosives.

.4

As a condition of permitting the detonation of explosives as part of the Work, the Developer or Contractor
shall submit to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof a certificate of insurance for coverage
of detonation of explosives in the minimum following amounts: $2,000,000 for property damage, each
accident; and $2,000,000 for public liability, bodily injury, single limit or equivalent, each accident. Owner
shall be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy.
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10.4.3 The Contractor shall be fully responsible for, and shall save and hold Owner harmless from, any
and all damages, claims, and for the defense of any actions against the Owner resulting from the prosecution
of such Work in connection with or arising out of the Contract Documents.
10.4.4 The Contractor shall notify each public utility company or other owner of property having
structures or improvements in proximity to the site of the Work, of his intent to perform potentially
dangerous work. Such notice shall be given sufficiently in advance to enable the companies or other owners
of property to take such steps as they may deem necessary to protect their property from injury. Such notice
shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for any damages, claims, or the defense of any actions
against the Owner resulting from the performance of such Work in connection with or arising out of the
Construction Contract.
10.4.5 All explosives shall be stored in a secure manner and all storage places shall be marked clearly
"EXPLOSIVES - KEEP OFF" and shall be in the care of competent watchmen at all times. The Contractor
shall also be required to obtain any permits which may be required by the South Metro Fire Rescue
Authority or other fire district having jurisdiction.
10.5

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

10.5.1 Known Underground Utilities and other underground structures are shown on the Drawings only
to the extent such information has been made available to or discovered by the Owner. It is expected that
there may be discrepancies and omissions in the location and quantities of actual Underground Utilities and
other underground structures and those shown. This information is shown for the convenience of the
Contractor, but is not guaranteed to be either correct or complete, and all responsibility for the accuracy
and completeness thereof is expressly disclaimed by Owner. The Contractor shall, ahead of excavation,
confirm the location of all Underground Utilities and other underground structures so that they will not be
accidentally damaged by the construction operation. Contractor shall be responsible for contacting all utility
owners concerning location of all above ground utilities and Underground Utilities before proceeding with
the Work. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be provided in the field by utility owners,
Contractor shall verify actual location, and Contractor remains solely responsible for any claims or damage
to Underground Utilities or other facilities or structures caused by excavating. Contractor is responsible for,
at no additional cost to the owner, potholing all existing Underground Utilities to be crossed or that may
otherwise affect their means and methods for constructing the Project prior to beginning any construction
on the Project.
ARTICLE 11
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
11.1

CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

The Contractor agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of insurance sufficient
to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Contractor pursuant
to the Contract Documents, including but not limited to Paragraphs 3.13, 3.17 and 3.18 hereof, in addition
to any other insurance requirements imposed by the Contract Documents or by law. The Contractor shall
not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed by reason of its failure to
procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient
amounts, durations or types.
11.1.1 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and
maintain, at its own expense, valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance
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throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of the policy or signed certificate of
insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times. Evidence of qualified self-insurance status may be
substituted for the Workers’ Compensation Insurance requirements of this paragraph.
11.1.1.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice of
cancellation or intention of non-renewal to the Owner.
11.1.1.2 Limits of liability for Worker’s Compensation Insurance shall be in conformance with the statutory
requirements of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of the State of Colorado. Limits of Employers Liability
Insurance shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injuries, $1,000,000 per employee for bodily injury
by occupational disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injuries by disease.
11.1.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own
expense, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance throughout the entire term of its obligations to the
Owner. A copy of the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.2.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give all named parties a minimum of a thirty (30)
day notice of cancellation or intention to non-renew coverage or any material change or restriction of
coverage.
11.1.2.2 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence;
Bodily Injury and Property Damage combined, Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.
11.1.2.3 The following coverages shall be included in the policy:
.1

Premises, operations and elevators, including work let or sublet, to cover all claims for
bodily injury (including but not limited to death, disease or sickness) and damage or
destruction or loss of use of any tangible property.

.2

Products and completed operations.

.3

Broad form blanket contractual liability with all exclusions deleted.

.4

Personal injury liability.

.5

Explosions, collapse, and underground hazards.

.6

Broad form property damage endorsement.

.7

Incidental malpractice.

.8

Independent contractors.

11.1.2.4 The products and completed operations coverage shall be maintained in effect for a period of six
(6) years after the date of final acceptance of the Work.
11.1.3 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its
own expense, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. A copy of a certificate of insurance shall
be on file with the Owner at all times. The policy shall contain a severability of interests’ provision.
11.1.3.1 The policy shall cover all owned or leased vehicles operated by the insured as well as coverage for
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all non-owned or hired vehicles used by the insured in the course of his operations.
11.1.3.2 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days notice of
cancellation or intent to non-renew to Owner.
11.1.3.3 The limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (combined single
limit).
11.1.4 Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense,
an Umbrella (excess) Liability policy throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of
the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.4.1 Policy shall be in excess of all underlying insurance including employer’s liability, written on a
follow form basis.
11.1.4.2 Policy shall not contain any exclusions for hazards, or contractual hazards.
11.1.4.3 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).
11.1.5 Owner’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense, an
Owner's Liability policy in the name of the Owner.
11.1.5.1 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.
11.2

ADDITIONAL NAMED INSURED

11.2.1 The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability coverages, and the Commercial General Liability additional
insured coverage shall include products and completed operations coverage. The Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability additional insured coverage shall be primary with respect to
claims made by the City.
11.3

BUILDER’S RISK/PROPERTY INSURANCE

11.3.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the entire Work at the site to
the full insurable value thereof. Such insurance shall be in a company or companies against which the
Owner has no reasonable objection.
This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, subcontractors and subsubcontractors in the Work as additional insureds, providing that such insurance is primary with respect to
claims made by the additional insureds, and be in the form of "all risk" insurance for physical loss or damage
with all exclusions deleted. If not covered under all risk insurance or otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall effect and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the Work
stored off the site or in transit when such portions of the Work are to be included in a Request for Payment
under paragraph 9.3.2.
11.3.1.1 The form of policy for this coverage shall be "Completed Value". The coverage under this policy
shall include contemplated work and work in progress.
11.3.1.2 If by the terms of this insurance any mandatory deductibles are required, or if the Contractor
should elect, with the concurrence of the Owner, to increase the mandatory deductible amounts or purchase
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this insurance with voluntary deductible amounts, the Contractor shall be responsible for payment of the
amount of all deductibles in the event of a paid claim. If separate contractors are added as insureds to be
covered by this policy, the separate contractor shall be responsible for payment of appropriate parts of any
deductibles in the event claims are paid on their part of the Project.
11.4

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

11.4.1 The Contractor shall file two (2) certified copies of all policies with the Project Manager before the
date of commencement of the Work. If the Owner is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to maintain
such insurance and to so notify the Owner, then the Contractor shall bear all reasonable costs properly
attributable thereto. The Owner reserves the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy at
any time, and any and all endorsements to said policy.
11.4.2 All insurance policies and/or certificates of insurance required under the Contract Documents shall
be issued subject to the following stipulations by the Insurer:
.1

Underwriter shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against the Owner, it being the
intent of the parties that the insurance policy so effected shall protect both parties and be
primary coverage for any and all losses covered by the described insurance.

.2

The clause entitled "Other Insurance Provisions" contained in any policy including the
Owner as an additional insured shall not apply to the Owner.

.3

The insurance companies issuing the policy or policies shall have no recourse against the
Owner for payment of any premiums due or for any assessments under any form of any
policy.

.4

Any and all deductibles contained in any insurance policy shall be assumed by and shall
be the sole liability of the Contractor.

11.4.3 Additional coverages or higher limits of liability may be required by the Owner should the scope
or nature of the work change during the course of the Construction Contract. All liability insurance and
builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall specifically provide that all coverage
limits shall be exclusive of costs of defense, including attorneys’ fees.
11.4.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all subcontractors or suppliers obtain
and maintain in force for the term of this Construction Contract insurance policies sufficient to meet the
minimum coverages required under the Contract Documents.
11.4.5 Nothing contained in this Article 11 shall be construed as limiting the extent of the Contractor's
responsibility for payment of damages resulting from his operations under the Construction Contract.
Contractor agrees that he alone shall be completely responsible for procuring and maintaining full insurance
coverage to adequately insure against the risk attendant to the performance of this Construction Contract.
Any approvals of Contractor's insurance coverages by the Owner or the Project Manager shall not operate
to the contrary.
11.4.6 The risk of loss to any property to be provided by Contractor to Owner pursuant to the Contract
Documents shall be upon the Contractor until said property has been finally accepted by Owner.
11.4.7 Nothing in this Article 11 shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any of the protections to
which Owner may be entitled under the Constitution of the State of Colorado or pursuant to the Colorado
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Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.
11.4.8 The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and all endorsements required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. It shall be an affirmative obligation of Contractor
to provide written notice to the Owner within two (2) days of the cancellation of or substantive change
to any of the policies required herein and failure to do so shall constitute a breach of the Contract.
11.4.9 All insurance required under the Contract Documents shall be obtained from financially responsible
insurance companies with a current Best’s Insurance Guide Rating of A- and Class VII or better, licensed
in the State of Colorado, and approved by the Owner, and shall be maintained until the Contractor's Work
is accepted by the Owner. The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. The Owner may, in writing, specifically indicate its
approval or disapproval of each separate policy provided pursuant to the Contract Documents.
11.4.10 All policies under the Contract Documents that are scheduled to expire prior to the time the
Contractor's Work is finally accepted by the Owner shall be renewed prior to the scheduled expiration date
and evidence of such renewal shall be submitted to the Owner for approval.
11.4.11 If any of the policies required under the Contract Documents shall be or at any time become
unsatisfactory to the Owner as to form or substance, or if a company issuing any such policy shall be or at
any time become unsatisfactory to the Owner, Owner shall so advise Contractor who shall promptly obtain
a new policy, submit the same to the City for approval, and thereafter submit a certificate of insurance as
hereinabove provided.
11.4.12 All liability insurance and builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall
be occurrence-based policies.
ARTICLE 12
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12.1

UNCOVERING OF WORK

12.1.1 If any portion of the Work should be covered contrary to the request of the Project Manager or
Owner or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing
by the Project Manager, be uncovered for his observation and shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense
without change in the Contract Time or Contract Sum.
12.1.2 If any other portion of the Work has been covered which the Owner or Project Manager has not
specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, the Project Manager or Owner may request to see
such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to the
Owner. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such
costs unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor, in which event the Owner
shall be responsible for the payment of such costs.
12.2

CORRECTION OF WORK

12.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct all Work rejected by the Project Manager as incomplete,
defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after Substantial
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Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of
correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections and compensation for any
additional services made necessary thereby.
12.2.2 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Paragraph 3.5, if, within one (1) year after the
Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or within one (1) year after
acceptance by the Owner of designated equipment or within such longer period of time as may be prescribed
by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the
Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously
given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. This period of one (1) year shall be extended
with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between
Substantial Completion and the actual performance of the Work. This obligation shall survive acceptance
of the Work and termination of the Construction Contract. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after
discovery of the condition by the Owner.
12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site all portions of the Work which are defective or nonconforming and which have not been corrected or accepted by the Owner.
12.2.4 If the Contractor fails to correct defective or nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the
Owner may correct it in accordance with Paragraph 2.4.
12.2.5 If the Contractor does not proceed with the correction of such defective or non-conforming Work
within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Project Manager, the Owner may remove it and
may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor. If the Contractor does not pay the
cost of such removal and storage within ten (10) days thereafter, the Owner may upon ten (10) additional
days' written notice sell such Work at auction or at private sale and shall account for the net proceeds
thereof, after deducting all the costs that should have been borne by the Contractor, including compensation
for any additional services made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which
the Contractor should have borne, the difference shall be charged to the Contractor and an appropriate
Change Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to
cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.
12.2.6 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction, whether
completed or partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused, in whole or in part, by the
Contractor's correction or removal of Work which is defective or not in accordance with the requirements
of the Contract Documents.
12.2.7 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with
respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including
Paragraph 3.5 hereof, or under law or in equity. The establishment of the time period of one (1) year after
the Date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the
terms of any warranty required by the Contract Documents relates only to the specific obligation of the
Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which his obligation to comply
with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may
be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to his obligations other than specifically
to correct the Work.
12.3

ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING WORK

12.3.1. If the Owner prefers to accept defective or nonconforming Work, he may do so instead of requiring
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its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a reduction in the Contract
Sum where appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has
been made.
ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13.1

GOVERNING LAW

13.1.1 The Construction Contract shall be governed by the law of the State of Colorado. Those provisions
of law applicable but discretionary because of the Owner’s status as a home-rule municipality shall be
binding at the Owner’s election.
13.2

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

13.2.1 The Owner and the Contractor each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of
such other party with respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract
Documents. Neither party to the Construction Contract shall assign, sublet, or transfer (by operation of law
or otherwise) any interest in the Construction Contract without the prior written consent of the other. The
Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the Construction Contract or any monies due or to
become due thereunder without the prior written consent of the Owner and of the surety on the Contractor's
bond. Any assignment without such written consent shall be void. A copy of such consent of surety,
together with a copy of the assignment, shall be filed with the Project Manager. In case the Contractor
assigns all or part of any monies due or to become due under the Construction Contract, the instrument of
assignment shall contain a clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in
and to any monies due or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior claims and liens of all
persons, firms and corporations for services rendered; for the payment of all laborers and mechanics for
labor performed; for the payment of all materials and equipment used or furnished and for payment of all
materials and equipment used or rented in the performance of the Work called for in the Construction
Contract; and for the payment of any liens, claims, or amounts due the Federal, State or local governments
or any of their funds. This restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the
Contractor's right to payment to its surety or lender.
13.3

WRITTEN NOTICE

13.3.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and may
be given, served, or made by depositing the same in the United States mail addressed to the party to be
notified, postpaid and registered or certified with return receipt requested, or by delivering the same in
person. Notice deposited in the mail in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be effective unless
otherwise stated in the Construction Contract from and after the fourth day next following the date deposited
in the mail, or when actually received, whichever is earlier. Notice given in any other manner shall be
effective only if and when received by the party to be notified. All notices to be given shall be sent to or
made at the last business address known to the party giving notice.
13.4

CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

13.4.1 Should either party to the Construction Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property
because of any act or omission of the other party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose
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acts he is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after
the first observance of such injury or damage. All claims by Contractor against Owner that are within the
scope of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., shall be subject to, and
brought in accordance with, the provisions of said Act.
13.5

PERFORMANCE, PAYMENT, MAINTENANCE AND WARRANTY BOND

13.5.1 The Contractor will be required, simultaneously with the execution of the Construction Contract,
to furnish a Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond, in an amount equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the Contract Sum. Said bond shall be issued by a responsible surety approved by the
Owner and shall guarantee the faithful performance of the Construction Contract and the terms and
conditions herein contained and the maintenance of the proposed improvements in good repair according
to the terms contained in the Construction Contract. Accompanying the bond form shall be a "Power of
Attorney" authorizing the attorney in fact to bind the surety company and certified to include the date of
the bond. Such bond shall be on a form provided by the Owner.
13.5.2 The Contractor shall deliver said bond to the Project Manager no later than the date of execution
of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor fails or neglects to deliver the bond, as specified, he shall
be considered to have abandoned the Construction Contract and his bid security will be forfeited.
13.6

RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

13.6.1 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. Such rights and remedies shall survive the acceptance of
the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents.
13.6.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Project Manager or Contractor shall constitute a waiver
of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Construction Contract, nor shall any such action or
failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be
specifically agreed in writing.
13.6.3 In all actions by the Owner to enforce its rights and remedies hereunder, whether at law or equity,
the Owner, in addition to all other remedies, shall be entitled to recovery of its reasonable attorneys fees
and costs.
13.6.4 The Contractor agrees that the economic loss rule as set forth in the Town of Alma v. Azco
Construction, Inc., 10 P.3d 1256 (Colo. 2000), shall not serve as a limitation on the Owner's right to pursue
tort remedies in addition to other remedies it may have against the Contractor. Such rights and remedies
shall survive the acceptance of the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents. Contractor further
specifically waives all the provisions of Chapter 8 of Article 20 of Title 13, Colorado Revised Statues,
regarding defects in the Work under the Construction Contract.
13.7

TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

13.7.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or
by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of public authorities having jurisdiction shall be made at
an appropriate time. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests,
inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with
the appropriate public authority. The Contractor shall give the Project Manager and the Owner timely
notice of its readiness so the Project Manager and the Owner may observe such inspection, testing or
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approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests or approvals.
13.7.2 If the Project Manager or public authority having jurisdiction determines that any Work requires
additional or special inspection, testing, or approval which paragraph 13.7.1 does not include, the Project
Manager may instruct the Contractor to order such additional or special inspection, testing or approval, and
the Contractor shall give notice as provided in paragraph 13.7.1. If such additional or special inspection or
testing reveals a failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, or if the
necessity of any such testing, inspection, or approval procedures arises out of the fault, neglect, or omission
of Contractor, the Contractor shall bear all costs of such testing, inspection, and approval procedures,
including compensation for any additional services made necessary by such failure; otherwise the Owner
shall bear such costs, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued.
13.7.3 Required certificates of inspection, testing or approval, unless otherwise required by Contract
Documents, shall be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered by him to the Project Manager.
13.7.4 If the Project Manager is to observe the inspections, tests or approvals required by the Contract
Documents, he will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.
13.7.5 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to
avoid delay in the Work.
13.8

LITIGATION AND WORK PROGRESS

13.8.1 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Contractor shall carry on the Work and maintain its progress
during any litigation proceedings, and the Owner shall continue to make payments to the Contractor in
accordance with the Contract Documents.
13.9

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

13.9.1 In connection with the execution of this Construction Contract, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex,
handicap, or national origin, if otherwise qualified. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, lay-off or
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including
apprenticeship.
13.10

COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE SUBSTANCE SCREENING

13.10.1 The Contractor shall provide written assurance to the City that each driver that provides services
requiring a commercial driver’s license pursuant to this Construction Contract participates in an alcohol
and controlled substances testing program that meets the requirements of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Regulations found at 49 C.F.R. Part 382.
ARTICLE 14
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
14.1

TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR

14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract if all of the Work is stopped for a
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continuous period of sixty (60) days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, subsubcontractor, or their agents or employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under
contract with the Contractor, for any of the following reasons:
.1

issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction, except as
provided below in this Section 14.1.1;

.2

an act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, making material
unavailable;

.3

because the Project Manager has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified
the Contractor of the reason for withholding certification as provided in paragraph 9.4.1,
or because the Owner has not made payment on a Certificate for Payment (without cause)
within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

.4

if repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions by the Owner as described in paragraph
14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than one hundred percent (100%) of the total number
of days scheduled for completion, or one hundred twenty (120) days in any three hundred
sixty-five (365) day period, whichever is less.

In addition, if all of the Work is stopped for a continuous period of ninety (90) days due to any governmental
or quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19, and the cause of such Work
stoppage is not any act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract with the Contractor, then
Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract.
14.1.2 If one of the above reasons exists, the Contractor may, upon fourteen (14) days' advance written
notice to the Owner, terminate the Construction Contract, unless this reason is cured prior to the expiration
of the notice period. Contractor may recover from the Owner payment for Work properly executed in
accordance with Contract Documents (the basis for such payment shall be as provided in the Construction
Contract) and payment for costs directly related to work thereafter performed by Contractor in terminating
such work, including reasonable demobilization and cancellation charges. The Owner shall not be
responsible for damages for loss of anticipated profits on work not performed on account of any termination
described in paragraphs 14.1.1 and 14.1.2.
14.2

TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE

14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Construction Contract if the Contractor:
.1
.2
.3
.4
.5

refuses or fails to supply, in a timely manner, enough properly skilled workers or proper
materials or equipment;
fails to make payment to subcontractors or suppliers for materials, equipment, or labor in
accordance with the respective agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors
or suppliers;
disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of the City or other governmental
entity having jurisdiction;
disregards the instructions of Owner when such instructions are based on the requirements
of the Contract Documents;
is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of
Contractor's creditors, or a trustee or receiver is appointed for Contractor or for any of its
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.6

property, or files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under
bankruptcy or similar law; or
otherwise does not fully comply with the Contract Documents.

14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or
remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and Contractor's surety, if any, seven (7) days' written
notice, (except in cases of emergency as reasonably determined by Owner), terminate the services of the
Contractor and may:
.1

take possession of the site and project and of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned, rented, or leased by the Contractor;
and

.2

finish the Work by whatever method the Owner may deem expedient.

14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Construction Contract for one (1) of the reasons stated in paragraph
14.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.
14.2.4 To the extent the costs of completing the Work, including compensation for additional professional
services and expenses, exceed those costs which would have been payable to Contractor to complete the
Work except for Contractor's default, Contractor will pay the difference to Owner, and this obligation for
payment shall survive termination of the Construction Contract.
14.2.5 In addition to Owner's right to remove Contractor from any part of the Work pursuant to the
Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause:
.1
terminate the Construction Contract for convenience prior to commencement of the Work,
provided that Owner shall not exercise this right unreasonably;
.2
terminate the Construction Contract if, after the Work has commenced, the Work is delayed
for a continuous period of seventy-five (75) days due to any governmental or quasi-governmental
orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19; or
.3
terminate any part of the Work or any subcontract or all remaining Work for any reason
whatsoever by giving written notice to Contractor specifying the part of the Work or subcontract
to be terminated and the effective date of termination. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the
part of the Work not terminated, if any. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents
shall remain in full force and effect.
14.2.6 In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5.1, Owner shall pay Contractor an amount
equivalent to Contractor’s reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation charges as the sole amount
due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract. In the event of termination pursuant to
paragraph 14.2.5.2, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the
Construction Contract the sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to
date, including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination). In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph
14.2.5.3, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract
the following: (i) sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to date,
including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination); (ii) reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation
charges; and (iii) as additional and special consideration for this provision, a profit for underperformed
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work equal to one-half percent (0.5%) of the cost of the Work actually performed to date.
14.2.7 Upon a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that the termination of Contractor
pursuant to paragraph 14.2.1 was wrongful, such termination will be deemed converted to a termination for
convenience pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5 and Contractor's remedy for wrongful termination shall be
limited to the recovery of the payments permitted for termination for convenience as set forth in paragraph
14.2.6.
14.3

SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE

14.3.1 In addition to Owner's right to suspend, delay, or interrupt Contractor from any part of the Work
pursuant to the Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause, suspend, delay, or
interrupt all or any part of the Work or any subcontract for all or any part of the work for any reason
whatsoever for such period of time as the Owner may determine by giving written notice to Contractor
specifying the part of the Work or subcontract to be suspended, delayed, or interrupted and the effective
date of such suspension, delay, or interruption. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the part of the Work
not suspended, delayed, or interrupted and shall properly protect and secure the part of the Work so
suspended, delayed, or interrupted. If any part of the Work or subcontract is so suspended, delayed, or
interrupted, Contractor shall be entitled to payment of reasonable standby fees (or at Owner's option,
payment for demobilization and subsequent remobilization) and of costs directly associated with protecting
and securing the affected Work; provided, however, that payment by Owner of any such fees and costs
shall not be required for any suspension, delay, or interruption in Contractor’s performance of the Work
resulting from an order, resolution, or other decree by the City Council or City Manager of Cherry Hills
Village that is issued in response to COVID-19. Further, no payment shall be made by Owner, however,
to the extent that such Work or subcontract is, was, or could have been suspended, delayed, or interrupted
under the Contract Documents or an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the
Construction Contract. In case of such suspension, delay, or interruption, Owner will issue a Construction
Change Directive or authorize a Change Order making any required adjustment to the Date of Substantial
Completion or the Contract Sum. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents shall remain in
full force and effect.
14.3.2 The rights and remedies of Owner under this Paragraph 14.3 shall be non-exclusive, and shall be
in addition to all the other remedies available to Owner at law or in equity.
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EXHIBIT C

III.

FORM OF BID

Bidder: Vance Brothers, Inc.
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-001
This Bid is dated

March 13th

2020

The City of Cherry Hills Village, State of Colorado.

To:

BASE BID
Estimated
Quantity

Item #

Description

I

Three (3) 3/8 inch cul-de-sac bottoms

2

3/8 inch chip & fog seal four (4) streets
1/4 inch chip & fog seal thirteen (13) city
streets & three (3) cul-de-sac tops

3

Unit

Unit Cost

Cost Extended

2,100 sq yds

SY

$3.32

$6,972.00

89,809 sq yds

SY

$3.32

$298,165.88

70,134 sq yds

SY

$3.21

$225,130.14

Total

Total Base Bid Items 1,2, & 3.

$_530,268.02

Bidder must also fill out Contract Section: Summary of Work below.
1.

2.

3/8
a.
b.
c.

3/8
a.
b.
c.
d.

inch Chip Seal Cul-De-Sac Bottoms
Downing Circle
Hudson Way
Albion Way

inch Chip and Fog Seal
E. Quincy Avenue
S. Colorado Blvd.
S. Holly Street
S. Franklin Street

700 sqyds
700 sq yds
700 sqyds

$ 2,324.00
$ 2.32400
$ 2.32400

Sub Total

6,972.00

39,961
16,667
18,598
14,583

sqyds
sqyds
sqyds
sq yds

Sub Total
3.

1/4
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
1.
g.

inch Chip Seal and Fog Seal (including cul-de-sac tops)
10,558 sq yds
Hudson Way & Cul-De-Sac
Albion Way & Cul-De-Sac
7,852 sq yds
Albion St. (off Belleview)
6,365 sq yds
Albion St. (btwn Hampden & Mansfield)
7,852 sq yds
4,815 sqyds
S. Downing St.
S. Downing Cir.
866 sq yds
8,066 sq yds
S. Lafayette St.
15

$
$
$
$

132,670.52
55334.44
RI 745 3R
4R,4I5R

$298,165.88
33,891.18
$ 25.20492
$ 20431 65
$ 25.20492
$1545615
$ 2.779.86
$ 25.891.86

E. Layton Ave.
S.OgdenSt.
j. E. Radcliffe Ave.
k. E. Stanford Ave. (btwn Clarkson & Downing)
I. B. Stanford Ave. (Lafayette to end of road)
m. E. Tufts Ave.
h.
i.

Project Cost: Items 1, 2, & 3

1,787
3,033
3,347
3,347
4,033
8,213

sq yds
sq yds
sq yds
sq yds
sq yds
sqyds

$5,736.27
$ p735 9
$ 1074387

$ 10 74?1R7
$ 124!Q
$ 2636373

Sub Total

$225,130.14

Total

$ 530,268.02

The above quantities are estimates only. It is the Contractors responsibility to view the proposed construction
project sites at their discretion prior to bidding. A City representative can be available Tuesday thru Friday for
a pre-bid project tour per appointment. Appointments must be scheduled 48 hours in advance. Contact Project
Manager, Ralph Mason, 303-783-2741 for appointments.
The City of Cherry Hills Village reserves the right to delete portions or quantities of this Bid / Project at any
time.
Due to seasonal sensitivities to the Chip Seal process, the Contract Time Period for completion of this project
must fall between May 25, 2020 through September 4, 2020. No Exceptions.
All Traffic Control and Traffic Control Costs are the responsibility of the Contractor.
The City does not recognize Mobilization, Re-Mobilization, or De-Mobilization of equipment or materials
needed to perform the contract as a line item.
A port-a-pot / toilet must be onsite prior to any start of work.
There will be a NO WORK TIMEFRAME between August 15-2020 and August 24-2020, No Exceptions.
The City will provide Post Office Mail Notices, Email Notification on City Website, and Notification Signage
in project areas. The Contractor is responsible for No Parking Signage and Door Hanger Notification on
adjacent properties 24 Hours prior to work starting on any City street.

16

IV.

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER
(Complete and submit attached to your bid)

STATE OF Colorado
COUNTY OF Adams

)
) ss.

)

Michael W. Vance

,

being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

of Vance Brothers, Inc.
(1) Heisthe Vice President
the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid (the “Bid”);
(2) He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent
circumstances respecting such Bid;
(3) Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid;
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partner, owners agents, representatives, employees or
parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly
or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with
the Construction Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in
connection with such Construction Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by
agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead,
profit or cost element of the bid price or the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through the collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cherry Hills Village or
persons interested in the proposed Construction Contract; and
(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives,
owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

Printed Name: Michael W. Vance, Vice President
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 13th day of_March
as Vice President
(title)
a Corporation
(corporation or partnership)

Michael W. Vance
(Affiant)
of Vance Brothers, Inc.

,

(Bidder)

,

,

202°, by

organized

Pur(anttoasfS50U ri

Nota u lic
12/7/2020
My uommiss ion Expires______________________
•

•

•
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1
I
1 NOTMY PUBlIC STATE OF COLORADO I
Identification 0164046e26
My Commssjon EApIrfl 121712020j

I

V.

BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION (Complete and submit attached to your bid)

To:

City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado (hereinafter called “CITY”).

From:

Vance Brothers, Inc.

or anized and existing under the laws of the State of
as a corporationi (a partnership), (an individual).

Missouri

(hereinafter “Bidder”).
doing business

The Bidder, in compliance with the City’s Invitation for Bids and Instructions to Bidders, hereby proposes
to perform all work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents within the time set forth therein, and
at the prices stated on the included Bid Form as totaled herein (the “Bid”).
By submission of this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies, and in the case of ajoint venture each party
thereto certifies as to his own organization, that the Bid has been arrived at independently, without
consultation, communication, or agreement as to any matters relating to this Bid with any other Bidder or
with any competitor.
The undersigned, having thoroughly inspected the existing conditions in the Project area affecting the cost
of the Work and having thoroughly examined all of the Contract Documents, together with all other forms,
attachments, and information required or otherwise submitted with this Bid, hereby offers to furnish all
supervision, technical personnel, labor, materials, machinery, tools, equipment and services including
utility and transportation services and to perform and complete all work required for:
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2020-001
Proj ect Description:
1. Construct approximately 2,100 sq. yds. of 3/8” inch seal (bottoms) on Three (3) City cul-de
sacs.
2. Construct approximately 89,806 sq. yds. of 3/8” inch chip seal and fog seal on Four (4) City
streets.
3. Construct approximately 73,333 sq. yds. of 1/4” inch chip seals and fog seals on Thirteen (13) City
streets and Three (3) cul-de-sacs (tops). Only the Three (3) cul-de-sacs will receive a double chip.
It is understood by the Bidder that should the cost of the Bid exceed budgeted funds, the City reserves the
right to reject any or all bids, or portions of work bid, or to use any of the methods stated in the Instructions
to Bidders to obtain the most advantageous bid price. Bidders must bid all items, additive schedules,
alternatives, and supplementary unit price schedule as contained in the Form of Bid.
The Bid is based on subcontracting certain major portions of the work to subcontractors as listed below:
Item No.

Subcontractor

traffic control

American Sign

License Number

(Add additional names on separate sheet, if necessary.)
In addition, by submission of this Bid and this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies as follows:
I. Bidder understands that the City reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities
in the bidding.
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2. The Bidder agrees that this Bid shall be good and will not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90)
calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. If written notice of the acceptance of this
Bid is mailed or otherwise delivered to the undersigned within this period, or at any time thereafter before
this Bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver a Construction Contract in the
prescribed form and furnish the required surety bond within ten (10) days after the Construction Contract
is presented to him for signature.
3. As required by the Instructions to Bidders, attached hereto is the Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime
Bidder, submitted as proof that the undersigned has not colluded with any person in respect to this Bid or
any other bid or the submitting of bids for the Construction Contract for which this Bid is submitted.
4. The Bidder is submitting, or will submit upon request, such additional proof as the City may require that
he can qualify in accordance with these Contract Documents with this Bid.
5. To the extent required by C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(1), by submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that at the
time of Bid submission it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien and that Bidder will
patticpate in either the E-verify program administered by the United States Department of Homeland
Security and the Social Security Administration, or the employment verification program administered by
the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment in order to verify the employment eligibility of all
employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the Construction Contract.

6. Bidder agrees to execute the Construction Contract, including its General Conditions, in the form
presented in the Bid Packet.
The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to be ready and to appear at the office of the City’s Contract
Administrator to execute the Construction Contract in conformity with his Bid and also to have ready and
to furnish at that time the attached Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond each in an
amount not less than the full amount of the attached Bid Form.
Ohio Casualty Insurance Company
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
Wets American Insurance Company

New Hampshire
Massachusetts
Indiana

.

is hereby offered
,a corporation of the State of
The
as surety on said bond. If such surety is not approved by the City, another and satisfactory surety company
shall be furnished.
,

Enclosed herewith is Bid Security, as defined in the attached Instructions to Bidders, in the amount of
10%
which Bid Security the undersigned Bidder agrees is to be paid to and become the property
of the City, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, to compensate the City for actual costs, delay and
the difference between this Bid and the next lowest acceptable bid, should this Bid be accepted and the
Construction Contract awarded this Bidder and should he fail to enter into the Construction Contract in the
form prescribed or fail to furnish the required Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
within ten (10) days as stipulated.
,

The undersigned Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:
Addendum No. N/A

Date________ Initial by Bidder______

Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by Bidder
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by Bidder
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by Bidder
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The undersigned Bidder certifies that he and each of his subcontractors possess an adequate supply of
workers qualified and equipment satisfactory to perform the Work specified in the Contract Documents;
that there is no existing or impending dispute between it and any labor organization; and that it is prepared
to comply fully with the provisions contained in the Contract Documents.
This Bid is submitted upon the declaration that neither I (we) nor, to the best of my (our) knowledge, none
of the members of my (our) firm or company have either otherwise taken any action in restraint of free
competitive bidding in connection with this Bid.
this 13th

Dated at 10am

day of_March

Signature of Bidder:

If an Individual:

doing business as

—

If a Partnership:
General Partner.

by
If a Corporation: Vance Brothers, Inc.
a Missouri

Corporation
p1-:J,.L

by

rólichael 1Vance, Vice President

Joshua C. Williams
Seal]
Business Address of Bidder 380 West 62nd Avenue
City, State, Zip Code Denver, CO 80216
Telephone Number of Bidder (303) 341-2604
Email of Bidder hrusso@vancebrothers.com
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
NEARS

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 3037619386

ITEM: 8d

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JESSICA SAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: PERMANENT SCULPTURE FOR NEW CITY HALL
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

ISSUE
Shall City Council approve the Art Purchase Agreement for the purchase of Gusto from
Gilberto Rornero as the permanent sculpture for the new City Hall (Exhibit A)?

artist

DISCUSSION
In May 2019, City Council approved a budget of $45,000 for a permanent sculpture for the new
City Hall to be paid from the COP funds. Since then the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission
(CHVAC) has been working on the selection of a piece.
Public Input & Notification
CHVAC former Chair Polumbus personally invited various members of the public to attend
CHVAC meetings. In addition, staff created a separate NotifyMe list that the public can sign up
for on the City website and sent CHVAC meeting notifications to this list along with the Agenda
Center list. An article with a photo of the sculpture was included in the April 2020 issue of the
Village Crier.
Selection Process
Commissioners attended the Loveland Sculpture Show in August and at their October 28, 2019
meeting they approved the following mission statement to guide the selection process:
Select a talented regional artist.
The piece should engage and inspire through the transformative power of art.

The piece should be:
• Welcoming and reflect the civic nature of the City Hall
• Evoke thoughtfulness, curiosity, and Wow

I

At this meeting they also unanimously approved utilizing no more than $15,000 from the Art
Donation Account in addition to the $45,000 approved by City Council for the permanent
sculpture purchase. The CHVAC reviewed the work of over forty artists, interviewed three, and
requested formal proposals from one. During the selection process the Commissioners discussed
abstract versus representational art several times. Ultimately, they decided that an abstract piece
would work better with the contemporary style of City Hall, but they would like to explore the
possibility of a representational sculpture for John Meade Park once construction is complete.
They plan to discuss this possibility with the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission as well as
the Cherry Hills Land Preserve, who have expressed interest in being involved.
At their January 27, 2020 meeting they unanimously moved to recommend that City Council
approve the purchase of the piece Gusto from Gilberto Romero for the permanent installation at
City Hall with a total purchase price of $60,000 including $15,000 from the Art Donation
Account. The CHVAC will also pay the cost of installing the sculpture from the Art Donation
Account (see Budget Impact Statement).

Gusto by Gilberto Romero

Title:
Materials:
Size:
Cost:

Gusto
Fabricated Bronze
129” x 54” x 40”
$60,000

Artist Comments:
Gusto is built and in Santa Fe. Gusto could be delivered and installed once site prep is
completed.
Gusto is mounted on a 2-inch stainless steel bearing that allows the sculpture to turn. This
is great for large scale sculpture in public installations. The bearing allows you to offer a
different perspective and view of the sculpture. Gusto represents my views on new
growth overcoming old growth however still working together to create something
beautiful and strong.

‘

:.

Installation
Staff and CHVAC consultant Kendall Peterson of ThereSquared Inc have been in contact with
Mr. Romero about the details of installation, which is tentatively scheduled for Friday, July 17th
pending Council’s approval.
BUDGET IMPACT STATEMENT
The purchase price of the piece is $60,000. $45,000 will be paid from the COP Fund and
$15,000, plus the cost of installation, will be paid from the Art Donation Account.
Other
•
•
•
•

costs:
Engineering —$500 paid from the Art Donation Account
Delivery and Installation —$500 paid from the Art Donation Account
Plaque $180 paid from the Art Donation Account
Lighting $500 paid from the Art Donation Account
-

-

-

—

—

-
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•
•

Annual insurance approximately $100 per year, will be prorated for 2020 will be
added to the City’s insurance and paid from the General Fund
Annual maintenance estimated $200 per year will be added to the CHVAC annual
budget
—

—

-

—

RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the Art Purchase Agreement for the purchase of the piece Gusto from
Gilberto Romero for the permanent installation at City Hall with a total purchase price of
$60,000 including $15,000 from the Art Donation Account and other costs up to $1,680 for
engineering, delivery, installation, plaque and lighting to be paid from the Art Donation
Account.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Art Purchase Agreement
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSION
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113

303-789-2541

ART PURCHASE AGREEMENT
THIS ART PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of
Cherry Hills Village, a home rule municipality of the State of Colorado, with offices at 2450 E. Quincy
Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 801 13 (the “City”), and Gilberto Romero (“Artist”) (each individually
a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”). This Agreement shall be effective on the date of its mutual execution
by the Parties (“Effective Date”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, upon recommendation of the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission (“CHVAC”), the City
desires to purchase from the Artist and Artist desires to sell to the City the Artist’s work of art pursuant to
the terms and conditions set forth herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
1.
Description of Art. Artist agrees to sell to the City Gusto (the “Art”). The Art is more
particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.
2.
Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Art is Sixty Thousand Dollars and No Cents
($60,000.00) (“Purchase Price”). The City shall pay the Purchase Price and Delivery Price, as defined in
paragraph 3 below, to the Artist within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of the Art.
3.
Delivery and Installation. Artist agrees to deliver Art to the City at 2450 East Quincy
Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113 for a cost of Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($500.00)
(“Delivery Price”). Delivery and installation of Art is anticipated to occur on July 17, 2020 (“Delivery Date”).
The Delivery Date may be subject to change, and Artist and City may agree upon a different date for delivery
and installation in writing, including via electronic mail. Artist’s insurance shall cover and Artist shall be
responsible for repairing, at Artist’s sole expense, any damage to the Art until Art is delivered to and
accepted by the City. On the delivery date, the City shall inspect the Art and provide the Artist with written
notice of damages to be repaired prior to City’s acceptance of the Art, if any. Following any repairs or, if no
repairs are necessary, following inspection, City will provide Artist with a written notice of acceptance of the
Art. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City is under no obligation to accept or purchase the Art if, in the
City’s sole discretion, it is not in good condition or is not operable; provided, however, that the City will not
exercise this discretion unreasonably. Site preparation shall be done by the City staff in coordination with
Artist. Installation shall be accomplished by Artist and City staff unless otherwise agreed to mutually agreed
to in writing by City and Artist. Site preparation shall be completed as described in Exhibit B. The City shall
be responsible for the cost of and work associated with preparing the site.
4.
Ownership and Rights. Upon the Effective Date, ownership of the Art shall pass to the City.
By entering into this Agreement, the Artist hereby irrevocably assigns, conveys and otherwise transfers to
City and its respective successors and assigns title to the Art. To the extent the uses, modification,
destruction or removal of the Art under this Agreement affect any rights Artist may have under the provisions
of federal or state law, including the 1990 Visual Artists’ Rights Act under 17 U.S.C. §106A(a) and §113,
the Artist hereby knowingly waives any rights provided by those laws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Artist shall retain any and all copyrights and reproduction rights to the Art. In addition, Artist grants to the

City and its assigns an irrevocable license to make two-dimensional reproductions of the Art for non
commercial purposes, including, but not limited to, reproductions used in advertising, brochures, media
publicity, and catalogues or other similar publications. The City is not responsible for any third-party
infringement of Artist’s copyright or for protecting the intellectual property rights of Artist.
Warranties. Artist represents and warrants that (i) the Art is solely the result of the Artist
5.
and creative efforts of the Artist; (ii) except as otherwise disclosed in writing to the City, the Art is unique
and original and does not infringe upon any copyright; (iii) the Art has not been accepted for sale elsewhere;
and (iv) the Art is free and clear of any liens from any source whatsoever.
Maintenance, Relocation and Removal. The City shall give the Art the same care and
6.
maintenance as it does comparable City property. Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude any right of the
City in its sole discretion to (i) remove the Art from public display; (ii) move or relocate the Art to another
location selected by the City for public display; or (iii) destroy the Art.
7.
Insurance. The City shall obtain and maintain the types, forms, and coverage(s) of
insurance for the Art deemed by the City to be sufficient to meet or exceed the City’s minimum statutory
and legal obligations arising from ownership of the Art and under this Agreement.
8.
Independent Contractor. Artist is not a partner, joint venture, or employee of the City and
the only relationship between Artist and the City is that of an independent contractor. Artist is not entitled
to workers’ compensation benefits under the City’s workers’ compensation insurance, and Artist is obligated
to pay federal and state income tax on all monies earned under this Contract.
9.
Governinci Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Colorado, and any legal action concerning the provisions hereof shall be brought in Arapahoe County,
Colorado.
10.
No Waiver. Delays in enforcement or the waiver of any one or more defaults or breaches
of this Agreement by the City shall not constitute a waiver of any of the other terms or obligations of this
Agreement.
11.
Interation. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties,
superseding all prior oral or written communications.
Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction
12.
to be unlawful or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force
and effect.
13.

Modification. This Agreement may only be modified upon written agreement signed by the

Parties.
14.
Governmental Immunity. The City, its officers, and its employees, are relying on, and do
not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations or any other
rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10101, et seq., as amended (‘CGIA”), or otherwise available to the City and its officers or employees.
Presently, the monetary limitations of the CGIA are set at three hundred eighty-seven thousand dollars
($387,000) per person and one million ninety-three thousand dollars ($1 093,000) per occurrence for an
injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence where no one person may recover more than the
per person limit described above.
15.
Annual Appropriation. Consistent with Article X, § 20 of the Colorado Constitution, any
financial obligation of the City not performed during the current fiscal year is subject to annual appropriation,
and thus any obligations of the City hereunder shall extend only to monies currently appropriated and shall
not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, debt or liability beyond the current fiscal year.

Cherry Hills Village Art Purchase Agreement
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16.
Binding Effect. The Parties agree that this Agreement, by its terms, shall be binding upon
the successors, heirs, legal representatives, and assigns; provided that this paragraph shall not authorize
assignment.
17.
Attorneys’ Fees. If the Artist breaches this Agreement, then it shall pay the City’s
reasonable costs and attorney’s fees incurred in the enforcement of the terms, conditions, and obligations
of this Agreement.
18.
Survival. The Parties understand and agree that all terms and conditions of the Agreement
that require continued performance, compliance, or effect beyond the termination date of the Agreement
shall survive such termination date and shall be enforceable in the event of a failure to perform or comply.
19.
Force Maieure. Neither the Artist nor the City shall be liable for any delay in, or failure of
performance of, any covenant or promise contained in this Agreement, nor shall any delay or failure
constitute default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to extent that, such delay or failure is
caused by ‘force majeure.” As used in this Agreement, “force majeure” means acts of God, acts of the
public enemy, acts of terrorism, unusually severe weather, fires, floods, epidemics, pandemics,
quarantines, strikes, labor disputes and freight embargoes, to the extent such events were not the result
of, or were not aggravated by, the acts or omissions of the non-performing or delayed party.
Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement represent that they are expressly
20.
authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the City of Cherry Hills Village and the Artist.
21.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. In addition,
the Parties specifically acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures shall be effective for all purposes,
in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, Title 24, Article 71 .3 of the
Colorado Revised Statutes.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS
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______________________________
__________________________
___________________
_____________________
________________________________
________________________

THIS AGREEMENT is executed and made effective as provided herein.
CITY

OF

CHERRY

HILLS

VILLAGE,

COLORADO:

By:

Printed

Name:

Title:
Date of execution:
ATTEST:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

(excluding exhibits):

Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

ARTIST:
By:
Printed Name:

Date

tk6t’
COUNTY OF %VL. ct—
STATEOF\Q..kP.

of execution:

/7

)
)ss.

The foregçing Art Purchase Agreement wa subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me this
day of____________ 2Oj) by
My commission expires:

2

S

(S E A L)

L
Notary Public

NATASHAKJJNTON
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

My CommIssion Expims2.. —L2
4ae_ I -
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EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF ART

Title:
Gusto
Materials:
Fabricated Bronze
Size:
129 x 54 x 40
Cost:
$60,000
Artist Comments:
Gusto is built and in Santa Fe. Gusto could be delivered and installed once site prep is completed.
Gusto is mounted on
large scale sculpture
view of the sculpture
however still working

a 2 inch stainless steel bearing that allows the sculpture to turn. This is great for
in public installations. The bearing allows you to offer a different perspective and
anytime you’d like. Gusto represents my views on new growth overcoming old grow
together to create something beautiful and strong.

Cherry Hills Village Art Purchase Agreement
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EXHIBIT B
SITE PREPARATION AND INSTALLATION OF ART
The City shall prepare the site for installation of the Art in accordance with the following letter and sketch:

/e t I we u r k s
ART

+

45 /:5.’

/

y:-tr

5) Grf7 ?Yuy,

ENGINEERING

Kendall Peterson
ThereSquared LLC
Creative Project Management
ThereSquaredDenver coni
kenclall.petersonãiheresquareddenvercom
303.902.1600

RE: Gilberto Romero

—

?Jrrrs..”

I
NC 2H1 15 7 06

April 29. 2020

Gusto Foundation Structural Letter

Dear Keiidall.
I am writing this letter to confinu that I have reviewed the above referenced bronze sculpture and foiuiclation to
be installed in front of the Civic (‘enter Builduw in Cheny Hills Village. The proposed foundation is adequate
to support the sculpture for wind. snow. seismic and human forces and satisfies local building codes. Please see
the following pages for an image of the sculpture and a sketch of the proposed foundation created by the artist.
The foundation shall be a 60’ diameter x 10” thick 4000psi concrete pad. reinforced with #4 circular ties in the
arrangement shown in the attached sketch in three layers (top. mid and bot.) Provide miii. 2’ clear cover for all
rebar
Please feel free to contact nie with any further questions.
Sincerely,

7
Nicholas A. Geurts, MS., P.E.

Owner
yetiweurks. ltd.
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ITEM:

9a

t’IICHOW COX & NcASKIN
ATTORNEYS

AT

LAW

TO:

Honorable Mayor Stewart and City Council
Jim Thorsen, City Manager

CC:

Kathryn Ducharme, Human Resources Analyst

FROM:

Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

DATE:

June 5, 2020

SUBJECT:

Appointing a New City Manager and Approving a City Manager
Employment Agreement

ISSUE:
The current City Manager, Jim Thorsen, is retiring effective July 31, 2020. City Council desires
to appoint Christopher Cramer as the new City Manager and to enter into an agreement that sets
forth the terms of his employment in that position (“Agreement”). See Attachment A. The
appointment of Mr. Cramer and the proposed Agreement are presented on the June 16, 2020
City Council agenda for City Council’s consideration. If appointed, Mr. Cramer’s first day of
employment as the City Manager will be August 1, 2020, and the Agreement will also go into
effect on that date.
BACKGROUND:
After advertising a vacancy in the position, reviewing applications, and interviewing applicants,
City Council proposes to appoint Christopher Cramer to serve in the role of City Manager for
Cherry Hills Village. In accordance with Section 5.7 of the Home Rule Charter, the “Council may
by majority vote with the express concurrence of the Mayor... appoint a City Manager to serve at
the pleasure of a majority of the Council at a salary to be fixed by the Council...”
At the March 12, 2020 Council meeting, City Council announced three finalists under
consideration for the position and appointed Mayor Stewart and Mayor Pro Tern Brown to
negotiate an employment agreement. Contract negotiations led to consideration of Mr. Cramer
as the leading finalist under consideration.
The terms of the proposed Agreement are consistent with Council’s direction and have been
accepted by Mr. Cramer. Accordingly, Mr. Cramer has executed the attached Agreement for
Council’s final approval in conjunction with appointing Mr. Cramer as the City Manager of Cherry
Hills Village in compliance with Section 5.7 of the Home Rule Charter.

6530 S Yosemite Street

•

• Greenwood Village CO 80111
wwwmcm-Iegal.com

Suite 200

Tel 303.459.2725

•

Cherry Hills Village
City Manager Agreement
June 5, 2020
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RECOMMENDED MOTION:
“I move to appoint Christopher Cramer as the City Manager and to approve a City Manager
Employment Agreement with Christopher Cramer effective on August 1, 2020.”

Attachment A: City Manager Employment Agreement

EXHIBIT A

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of
Cherry Hills Village, a home rule municipality of the State of Colorado (the “City”) and
Christopher Cramer (“Manager”). The City and the Manager are together referred to as the
“Parties.”
RECITALS
WHEREAS, by authority conferred by Section 5.7 of the Home Rule Charter for the City
of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado, the City Council desires to appoint Christopher Cramer as City
Manager and employ Manager as an at-will employee upon the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement; and
WHEREAS, Manager desires to accept employment as Manager based upon the terms set
forth in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments and mutual promises, covenants,
conditions and other good and valuable consideration described below, the City and Manager agree
as follows:
Section 1.

Term

A. Effective date. Manager shall assume the duties and responsibilities of City Manager on
August 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”). The term of this Agreement and Manager’s
employment shall be for an indefinite period. This Agreement is made subject to an annual
review and appropriation by City Council.
B.

Pleasure of Council. Section 5.7 of the City Charter provides that City Council may by a
majority vote with the concurrence of the Mayor, or by two-thirds majority vote without
the Mayor’s concurrence, appoint a City Manager to serve at the pleasure of Council. The
City Manager shall be an employee at will. and the City Council and Manager may
terminate the employee relationship at any time with or without cause.

Section 2.

Duties

A. Duties generally. Manager shall perform the functions and duties outlined in Section 2-340(b) of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code and such other duties and functions as
the City Council may from time to time assign. Manager shall report to and serve at the
pleasure of the Mayor and City Council.
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B. Full-time. Manager acknowledges and agrees that the Manager’s position shall be a fulltime executive exempt position that requires a minimum average of forty’ hours of work
per week. Because the Manager must devote a substantial time outside the normal office
hours on business for the City, Manager may set an individual schedule reflecting work
responsibilities subject to the approval of City Council. Manager may engage in noncompensated professional activities and groups, so long as the engagements do not conflict
with the interests of the City or performance of Manager’s duties and assignments.
C. No other employment. Manager shall not accept employment with or actively engage in
any other business or employment while employed as Manager unless approved by the
Council in writing, which approval may be reasonably withheld.
D. Staffing. The policy of the City is to maintain staffing levels at budgeted amounts, which
may vary from year to year or within a year.
E. Budget. Manager acknowledges that the City Council adopts a budget and makes
appropriations for the operations of the City, including staffing, for each calendar year, and
further acknowledges and agrees that the duties described in this Agreement shall be
performed within the adopted budget and appropriated amounts.

Section 3.

Termination

A. Employment at-will. The employment described in this Agreement is at-will. Nothing in
this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or interfere with the right of the City’ to terminate this
Agreement at any time, with or without cause to do so. Nothing in this Agreement shall
prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with Manager’s right to terminate this Agreement at
any time, with or without cause to do so.
B. Limit on compensation. Upon termination of this Agreement by either Party, the City shall
pay Manager the compensation provided for in Section 4 of this Agreement through the
date of termination. Manager shall not be entitled to additional compensation in any form
except that severance pay as outlined in Section 5 of this Agreement.
C. Notice of intent to terminate Agreement. Manager agrees that he will provide the City not
less than sixty (60) day’s advance notice of his intention to terminate this Agreement, unless
the parties agree otherwise in writing. Should Manager terminate this Agreement, he will
reasonably and timely cooperate in the transition of his duties to other City’ personnel.
D. City option to terminate duties immediately. Should the City’ exercise its right to terminate
this Agreement, it may’, in its discretion. require that Manager cease his duties immediately.
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Section 4.

Salary. Performance and Compensation Reviews; Benefits

A. Salary. Manager shall be paid a gross annual salary of One Hundred Sixty-Five
Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($165,000.00) commencing on the Effective Date. All
payments will be made in accordance with the City’s regular payroll policy and procedures
and reduced by mandatory tax and other payroll withholding amounts, as well as by
properly directed voluntary payroll withholding.
B. Performance and compensation reviews. The City Council may schedule and conduct
performance reviews of Manager at any time and at such intervals as City Council deems
appropriate after the Effective Date. Performance-based salary increases, if any, shall be
scheduled, determined, and approved by the City Council in its sole discretion. The
Manager shall receive cost-of-living increases, if any, consistent with increases provided
to other City staff.
C. Holidays. Manager shall be immediately entitled to paid City holidays.
D. Paid Time Off (PTO). Manager shall be entitled to accrue and use PlO commencing upon
the Effective Date at the fifth-year level, which accrues at 8.67 hours per pay period (208
hours per year) and with periodic increases consistent with the PTO policy in the City’s
Employee Handbook. Except as set forth herein, Managers accrual and use of PTO shall
be governed by the City’s Employee Handbook or other applicable policies of the City,
which may be amended from time to time.
E. Retirement benefits. Manager shall be eligible to participate in all retirement benefit plans
made available to director-level employees of the City.
F. Automobile allowance. Manager shall be provided a car allowance of $250.00 per month
to cover use of Managers personal vehicle, provided that Manager shall be responsible for
purchase, maintenance, repairs, financing, insurance, taxes, fees, and operating expenses
for such automobile. This automobile allowance shall be subject to lawfully imposed tax
withholdings.
G. ICMA and CCCMA membership. The City will pay the costs of International City/County
Management Association (ICMA) and Colorado City & County Management Association
(CCCMA) memberships for Manager commencing on the Effective Date.
H. ICMA. APA/AICP. and CCCMA conference attendance. The City will budget and pay for
travel and subsistence expenses of Manager for professional and official travel, meetings,
and occasions necessary and appropriate for Manager’s professional development as City
Manager and to attend to necessary official functions of the City, including but not limited
to, the International City/County Management Association Conference, the Colorado City
and County Association Conference, the American Planning Association/American
Institute of Certified Planners Conference. the Colorado Municipal League Conference,
and other national, regional, state and local government associated groups and committees
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that have been authorized in advance in the discretion of City Council. Nothing in this
provision shall prevent the Council from decreasing the amount budgeted for such purposes
provided that such decrease is deemed necessary and in the best interests of the City as a
result of the financial position of the City at the time.

Reimbursable expenses. The City’ shall reimburse, or may pay in advance, the reasonable
job-related expenses Manager incurs while performing his role as Manager and as budgeted
by the City, including but not limited to mileage reimbursement, in accordance with the
City’s travel and expense reimbursement policy. Nothing in this provision shall prevent
the City Council from decreasing the amount budgeted for such purposes.
J.

Other benefits. Manager shall be eligible to receive and/or participate in all benefit plans
made available to full-time employees of the City including without limitation health,
dental, vision and life insurance as are provided from time to time to other City’ employees.
Manager shall be entitled to enroll and participate in benefit plans immediately upon the
Effective Date of this Agreement to the extent a plan does not require a waiting period and
allow immediate enrollment. Except as otherwise provided in governing documents for a
particular benefit program, all benefits programs are subject to modification or termination
by the City from time to time, without notice, at the sole discretion of the City Council.

Section 5.

Severance Pay

A. Severance pay only in limited circumstances. In the event Manager’s employment is
terminated by City Council during the term of this Agreement for other than “Cause” as
defined in Section 5.B. during such time that Manager is willing and able to perform the
duties of City Manager, the City agrees to pay Manager severance pay as provided herein.
R. Definition of “Cause”. For purposes of this Section 5, Cause,” for termination includes:
(1) violating any material term of this Agreement;
(2) failing to perform the job duties stated in this Agreement;
(3) conviction of(or pleading guilty or nob contendere to):
a. any misdemeanor involving moral turpitude or fraudulent conduct, or
b. any felony;
(4) theft from the City’;
(5) material misuse of any assets or property of the City; or
(6) violation of any federal, state, or City’ discrimination or harassment laws or policies;
01

(7) violation of any state or City conflict of interest or code of ethics laws or policies;
or
(8) accepting employment with or actively engaging in any other business in violation
of this Agreement.
C. Notice required in limited circumstances. If the City asserts that the actions of Manager
meet the requirements of subparagraph (1) or (2) of the definition of “Cause” set forth in
Section 5.B. above, “Cause” shall not be present unless: (i) the City’ shall have given
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Manager written notice specifying in reasonable detail the event or circumstances
constituting Cause; and (ii) Manager shall have failed to commence with a cure for such
event or circumstances within five (5) calendar days from the date the City provided the
written notice to Manager.
D. No severance pay if termination for Cause or resignation, death, disability. If Manager’s
employment is terminated by the City for Cause or if Manager resigns. becomes disabled
or dies during the term of this Agreement, Manager shall only be entitled to receive his
salary and associated benefits as outlined in Section 4 through the date of termination, and
shall not, in any circumstances, be entitled to receive any severance pay pursuant to this
Section 5.

E. Severance.
If the City Council terminates this Agreement without Cause, as such Cause is defined in
Section 5.B., the City will offer Manager as a severance payment and in exchange for a
full and complete release of all claims that Manager has against the City arising from or
in connection with his employment or termination:
(1) Manager shall be entitled to three (3) months’ salary if terminated without Cause
before two years following the Effective Date of this Agreement; and shall be
entitled to six (6) months’ salary if terminated without Cause after serving more
than two years as Manager.
(2) The severance provided for under this Section 5.E. shall be an offer under the
conditions referenced herein and shall be paid without regard to whether Manager
has secured other employment.
F. If the Council, at any time during the term of this Agreement, reduces the salary or other
financial benefits of Manager in greater percentage than an applicable across-the-board
reduction for all City employees, Manager may, at Managers option, be deemed to be
terminated in accordance with Section 5.A. and SE. as of the effective date of such
reduction and severance pay shall be due and owing.

Section 6.

Return of City Materials.

Upon terminating employment with the City, the Manager will deliver to the City any and all
belonging to the City then in his possession. Manager further agrees that Manager has
no expectation of privacy in any property situated on the City’s premises and owned by the City,
including disks and other storage media, filing cabinets or other work areas, and such property is
subject to inspection by appropriate City personnel at any time with or without notice.

property
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Section 7.

General Provisions.

A. No Multiple Year Obligation. Nothing in this Agreement shall create a multiple-fiscal year
financial obligation as contemplated and as prohibited by Article X, § 20 of the Colorado
Constitution.
B. This Agreement consists of the entire agreement between the City and Manager with
respect to his employment as City Manager.
C. If any provision or any portion of this Agreement is adjudged unconstitutional, invalid, or
unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement or portion thereof shall be deemed
severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect.
D. This Agreement may only be amended by a written instrument, duly executed by each
party.
E. This Agreement will be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of
Colorado as such laws are applied to agreements entered into and to be performed entirely
within Colorado between Colorado residents.
F. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.
G. The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all rights of action
relating to such enforcement shall be strictly reserved to the Parties, and nothing contained
in this Agreement is intended to or shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by
any other or third person under this Agreement. Any third-party receiving a benefit from
this Agreement is an incidental and unintended beneficiary only.

Remainder ofpage left blank intentionally
Signature page follows
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_____________________________

_____________________

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado, has caused this City
Manager Employment Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor and duly
attested by the City Clerk, and Manager has signed and executed the Agreement. on the dates
indicated below.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, a
Colorado home rule municipal corporation

By:

Russell 0. Stewart, Mayor
Date:

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

CITY MANAGER:

Christopher Cramer
Date:

6-4-20
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Cii OF CHEIY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoIoo

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillagecom

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 1 Oc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCTh

FROM:

CHRIS CRAMER, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MONTH END REPORT FOR
MAY 2020

DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

BUILDING PERMITS SUMMARY:
Total Permits
Total Revenue
New Home Permits
New Home Revenue
Remodel/Addition Permits
Remodel/Addition Revenue

May 2020
57
$190,929
3
$113,143
6
$45,322

YTD 2020
207
$358,887
6
$212,232
33
$71,432

YTD 2019
319
$477,391
3
$133,045
69
$191 ,53 1

YTD%Change
-34%
-25%
100%
60%
-52%
-63%

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
•

P&Z held a Zoom meeting on May 12th to begin discussion about format and questions for a
city-wide mailed survey to residents as a part of the Master Plan process.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS:
•

There was no Board of Adjustment and Appeals meeting in May due to a lack of cases.

ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit A: Planning Project Activity List
Exhibit B: Year-to-Date Permit Activity Graphs
Exhibit C: Permit Summary Table
Exhibit D: Annual Update for the FEMA Community Rating System Program in regards to the
Arapahoe County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

G:\Cirv cinci\M’I’c;-MEMo

EXHIBIT A
Planning Project Activity List
Community Development Department
Report Date: June 16, 2020

City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are advised to avoid discussing quasi-judicial land use
matters with any person outside of the public hearing process. The restriction on discussion of quasi-judicial
matters is generally considered to take effect when a formal application has been filed with the City. The following
list includes only those matters for which the City has received a formal application. City Council and Planning and
Zoning Commission Members ore nevertheless advised to use caution in discussing any land use matter that may
become quasi-judicia even before the filing of a formal application.

Quasi-Judicial Cases
Applicant

Address

Joe Jundt

3727 5. Ogden
St.

Cherry Hills Country
Club

4125 S.
University Blvd

Cherry Hill Country
Club

4125 S.
University
Boulevard

Crown Castle

2301 East
Quincy Avenue

Description
Floodplain Variance for an existing R-3
lot owned by Cherry Hills Country Club to
modify floodplain boundaries to allow
for the construction of a single-family
residence.
Floodplain Variance to allow for
proposed channel improvements within
the Cherry Hills Country Club property
which is intended to improve the
stability of portions of Little Dry Creek
and replacing some of the prior installed
hard surface (rock) bank improvements
with a more responsive and resilient
vegetated approach, while replacing
several foot path bridges and cart
bridges.
Site Plan for a $55m renovation of the
southern portion of the clubhouse.
A request to relocate the cell tower from
John Meade Park to the city owned
parcel at the northwest quadrant of the
intersection of University Blvd and

PTRC
Review

P&Z Review

Council
Review

TBD

TB D

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

fliiirrj

Text Amendment to update the map
dates used for floodplain regulations in
e in Section 16-5-120

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

EXHIBIT B

TOTAL PERMITS
Year to Date through May
10 Year COMPARISON
Total Number of Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
450

410
351

343

I II I
350

33g

328

319

319

JJJJJJi

299

300

346

266

305

Year

Estimated Revenue of All Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
$700,000

$609,310
$600,000
$500,000

$355,681

$400,000
$300,000

$201,287
$216,480

:::: i

$469,792
$370,698
$395 719
$338,497
,

$288,652

:I

.

Year

1

$477,391
$371,127
$358,887

I

NEW RESIDENCES
Year to Date through May
10 YEAR COMPARISON
Number of New Residential Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
12

10
10
8

7
—

E
I-

6

6

5
o
E

z

—

4

-D

2
0

6

II
I 111.1
1

4.7

1

Year

Estimated Revenue of All New Residential Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
$350,000

$291,213

$300,000
G)

$250,000

$220,720

$189,507

$197,170
$200,000

$150,000 $106,927
$100,000
$50,000

$-

I

_

$100,907

$62,265

$30,285

I

II
Year

2

$212,232
$141,807

ADDITIONS & REMODELS
Yearto Date through May
10 YEAR COMPARISON
Number of Addition & Remodel Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
76

80

69

70

58

iiiiili

60

50

h-I•
E

a)

30

I

—

E

20

2

10

—

I

55

48

50

40

58

56

ii

33

I

Year

Estimated Revenue of Addition & Remodel Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date May
$250,000

$191,531

$200,000

a)

$124,003
$134,322

$150,000

$102,915

a)

$100,000

$69,937

5i22I

$92,609
$96,480
$92,473
$85,271

I
i

$94,678
$71,432

11111111

I
Year

3

I

$
$
$
$
$
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-

-

-

$
5
$
$
$
5

5
$
$
640 $
S

43
638,606
11,611

-

$
$
$
5
$
2.722 $

99
2,511,470
24,058
100
4,000

-

$
$
$
2,560 $
4,321 5
1,478 5

17
1,497,898
11,824

-

$
$
S
S
13,907 S
$

198
28,938,851
291,532
200
43,S23
83,171
418,425

J_
J$
J$
J$

$

$
$
$
5
$

$
5
S
S
$
$

$
$
$
S
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

32
5,770,877
57,639
100.00
12,020

-

$
$
$
24,303 $
64,943 5
$

7
18,520000
386,400

2020 STO

--‘-

Arapahoe County Use Tax
3. Accessory & Recreational Structures
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Bulciing Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
4. Other Buildings, Structures, Misc
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
S. Electncal
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Buldin Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Totals
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Bulding Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Totol Fees Collected by City

-.

Arapahoe County Use Tax
‘. Addltion& Remodels
Numberlssued
Project Valuation
Bulding Permit Fee
‘teinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee

L. Re1d
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Bulding Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
5

S

$

5
$

4,120,470
41,108
100
7,690
10,789
59,687

-

540

-

5
91,550
2,291

-

$
$
5
$
$
$

5
$

$
$
$
640 5
S
549 5

18
490,798
4,436

-

$
5
S
640 $
344 $
133 $

3
106,245
1,062

$
$
$
$
320 5
537 $

8
431,877
4,319
100.0
1,920

3,750.00

3,850
10,125

-

1
3,000,000
30,000

JANUARY

$
$
S
640 5
1,228 $
384 5

5
19,400
455

-

-

-

$
S
S
5,418 $
24,076 5
73,402 $

5
S
$
$
$

$
$
$
S
$
308 $

19
283,438
2,834

-

2
307,360
3,074

-

4,346,698
43,908

...-

-

$
$
S
1,680 $
132 5
1,046 S

10
836,500
8,245

-

$
$
$
3,098 $
22,716 5
3,625 $

2
2,900,000
29,300

FEBRUARY

-

$
$
S

$
$

1

$
5
$
$
5
$

$
S

-

-

$
S
5
2,480 $
5
11,637 5

3;
1,253,806
9,157

-

-

-

12
53,092
883

-

$
5
$
1,600 5
$
438 $

19
570,214
5,119

-

-

-

-

-

315,000

-

-

$
5
S
880 $
$
394 S

-

-

-

-

-

0

5
319,900
3,155

MARCH

5,854,571
62,898
100
8,118
11.655
82,770

8
359,110
7,593

-

$
5
$
$

$

$
$
$

$
$
S
5
$
932 $

15
745,461
7,455
100
640

531

1,086

3

-

9
344,293.00
3,438.43

3,890.00

8,902.10

5,300.00

-

6
3,112,000.00
31,120.00

11,712.50

12,757.50
26,085.90

-

94,300.00

$9,370,000

MAY

19,817.50
36,690.40
190,928.83

-

57
513.363,306
134,460.93

-

-

12
115,454.00
1,387.91

49S.60

-

1,120.00

-

27
421,559.42
4,214.59

640.00
$1,662.40
429.81
5

5
$
$
640 5

2
425,000
4,250

-

$
$
$
2,240 S
4,553 5
1,344 $

1,075,000
10,800

3

$
$
4,598 $
6,016 $
4,063 $

1
3,250,000
32,800

APRIL
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE BUILDING DEPARTMENT
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-

-_____________________
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EXHIBIT D

Community Rating System
Activity 510 (Floodplain Management Planning)
Progress Report on Implementation of Credited Plan

Date this Report was Prepared: June 2, 2020
Name of Community: City of Cherry Hills Village
Name of Plan: 201 5-2020 Arapahoe County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
Date of Adoption of Plan: Adopted by the City of Cherry Hills Village via Resolution
No. 43, Series 2015 on October 6, 2015

5 Year CRS Expiration Date: October 6, 2020

1. How can a copy of the original plan or area analysis report be obtained:
a.

Plan can be obtained online at \vw\v.cherrvlnlR 1ILWcccL 1 !/
I PLil1
i)\ R iH:i1i; or paper copies are available from the City of Cherry Hills Village
upon request

2. Describe how this progress report was prepared and how it was submitted to the
governing body, released to the media, and made available to the public:
The evaluation report was prepared by staff reviewing the plan’s action items and
the City’s progress with implementation of City specific action items
b. The report was submitted and presented to City Council at the June 16, 2020
Council meeting
c. A press release was submitted to media contacts on June 3, 2020
d. The progress report is available on the City’s website and can be printed for the
public upon request
a.

3. Provide a description of the implementation of each recommendation or action item
in the action plan or area analysis report, including a statement on how the project
was implemented or not implemented during the previous year:
Action Item 20 15-32: Enforcement of Floodplain Regulations to limit
development in floodplain areas: Cherry Hills Village; Codes already adopted, will
continue to enforce.
b. Action Item 2015-33: Adopt and Enforce 2012 International Building Codes:
Cherry Hills Village recently adopted the 2018 International Building Codes in on
February 18, 2020, and continues to enforce these codes.
a.

4. Discuss why any objectives were not reached or why implementation is behind
schedule:
a.

5.

Not Applicable

—

all objectives! action items are actively being met

What are the recommendations for newprojects or revised recommendations?
a. Continue to adopt and enforce the most recent International Building Codes
b. Continue to lower the CRS Status as applicable
c. Identify areas of improvement to better assist vulnerable individuals such as the
elderly (people over 65 years of age); Children (under 5 years old); and the infirm.

Cherry Hills Village has a higher percentage of elderly residents compared to other
adjacent communities.
d. The Community Development Directors office plans to review the updated hazard
mitigation plan and risk assessment results to identify areas within the current
building codes and zoning requirements that need to be updated to curtail unsafe
development in hazard prone areas. Additionally, city staff will participate in the
process to update the Arapahoe County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, which has
been delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

CITY OF CHERiY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoIDo

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: lOc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

MICHELLE TOVREA, POLICE CHIEF

SUBJECT: MAY REPORT
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

The speed trailers have been deployed on a regular basis around the city. If you have a special
request please contact myself or Commander Weathers.
The new electronic ticket equipment is functional and running. All officers, including the
Motorcycle Unit, have been using tile new devices. We have just a few “bugs” to work out but
the results thus far have been positive for the PD and Municipal Court.
Due to Covid-19 we received a few invitations to participate in various “drive-by celebrations”.
We were able to participate and received very positive feedback.
There were no bicycle or pedestrian accidents in May.

Investigations Case Summary:
There were 3 Fraud reports for the month of May:
In the first, the victim reported that he transferred funds through an online payment
application to an unknown individual he believed was assisting him with unauthorized
charges on his Apple account. The victim’s financial institution informed him the entire
transaction was fraudulent. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the second, the victim reported that he wired a deposit for work completed by a
contractor and received a notification from the business owner that their email had been
compromised. Someone fraudulently manipulated the account information and obtained
unauthorized funds. This case remains under investigation.
In the third, the victim reported that someone mailed him a check for the purchase of his
two bicycles. The victim deposited the check and his financial institution informed him
the check was fraudulent. This case remains under investigation.
-

—

-

-

Page 1 of 3

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

There were 5 Car Trespass reports for the month of May:
In the first, the victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into his unlocked
vehicle while it was parked in the driveway of his residence. Clothing items, a folding
knife and $15.00 was taken from the vehicle. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the second, the victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into her
unlocked automobile while it was parked in the driveway of her residence. A purse
containing a wallet with credit cards was stolen from the car. The suspect(s) then
fraudulently used her credit cards for purchases at several businesses in the Metro area.
This case remains under investigation.
In the third, the victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into her unlocked
vehicle while it was parked in the driveway of her residence. Two golf bags were taken
from the trunk of the car. This case remains under investigation.
In the fourth, the victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into his unlocked
vehicle while it was parked in the driveway of his residence. A vehicle registration and
car manual were taken from the vehicle. This case remains under investigation.
In the fifth, the victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into his vehicle
while it was parked in the driveway of his residence. The vehicle’s registration, CD’s,
and key were taken from the vehicle. This case remains under investigation.
-

—

-

-

-

-

There were 3 Theft reports for the month of May:
In the first, the victim reported that her RING security system showed an unknown male
taking a package containing office supplies from the front porch of her residence. This
case is inactive no new leads.
In the second, the victim reported that someone stole two watches from her residence in
either January or February 2020. This case is closed the victim declined to pursue
further investigation.
In the third, the victim reported that her sister stole her prescription medication. This case
is closed the victim declined to pursue further investigation.
-

—

-

—

-

—

There was 1 Burglary report for the month of May:
The victim reported that someone unlawfully gained entry into an unoccupied home that
he owns by breaking the lock off an entry door. The unknown suspect(s) tried remove a
refrigerator from the kitchen but were unsuccessful. This case is inactive no new
leads.
-

—

There was 1 Mail Theft report for the month of May:
The victim reported that she observed an unknown male take mail from her mailbox
shortly after it was delivered. This case is closed referred to other agency (United
Stated Postal Inspections Service).
-

—

There was 1 Menacing report for the month of May:
The victim reported that while he and some friends were traveling southbound on
University Blvd, an unknown male driver brandished a weapon and yelled at them while
passing their vehicle. This case remains under investigation.
-
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There was 1 Sexual Assault report for the month of May:
The victim reported that she accepted a ride on a motorcycle from an unidentified male
somewhere in Arapahoe County. As they were traveling, the subject stopped on the side of the
roadway on Holly Street and assaulted the victim. This case remains under investigation.

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Police Department Monthly Activity and Graphs
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Personnel Summary

Commendations:
Technician:
Received From:
Details:

CHVPD
Received From:
Details:

Nathalie Klasen
Citizen
An Englewood resident called to express his sincere thanks for the CHVPD
traffic enforcement on E. Belleview Ave. He wanted to make sure that our
Officers were aware that residents appreciate their hard work. Great job!

Resident
A resident sent a letter to CHVPD to thank the officers who participated in the
drive-by birthday party on Nassau Cr. East. They were very appreciative and
stated that it made their birthday celebration special. Great job!

Cherry Hills Village Police Dept.
Received From: Littleton PD
Details:
A Sergeant from Littleton PD sent an email to CHVPD to thank all those who
participated and showed support for Littleton Adventist Hospital. Your
participation was much appreciated. Great job!
CHVPD
Received From:
Details:

Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Citizen
A citizen called CHVPD to thank the Police Department for all we do,
especially during this difficult time. They stated “we love and support you”.
Great job!
Greg Gillett & CHVPD Officers
Earl Hoellen
Officer Gillett was commended for his actions while handling a call for
service. Mr. Hoellen stated “I just wanted to thank you again (and your fellow
officers) for taking care of my family and friends as we were on our way home
from a graduation party. Once again, we get a chance to realize how
fortunate we are in Cherry Hills to have the CHPD looking out for us in the
most professional way.” Great job!

CHVPD

06/03/20
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Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Dave Lynes
Resident
A resident sent an email to CHVPD commending Officer Lynes for his
actions. The resident saw a police car parked on their street and they contacted
Officer Lynes, who was polite and professional. They stated that having
officers visible in the neighborhoods makes them feel safe. Greatjob!

Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Firko, Hokanson and Troncoso
Resident
Officers Hokanson, Firko and Troncoso were commended for their actions on
a call for service. Officers responded to an address on South Colorado
Boulevard in reference to an elderly subject suffering from dementia that had
wondered away from the home. They quickly located the gentleman and got
him home safe. The gentleman’s wife called CHVPD and she was very
grateful for the way the officers handled the situation. She stated they were
“wonderful in locating her husband, they were great and I love your
Department, I would never leave this area because of how great the
Department is to the community.”. Thank you for ajob well done.

CHVPD
Received From:
Details:

Officers:
Received From:
Details:

Resident
A resident called CHVPD to thank officers for driving by her house while her
family was away. She was very thankful for the “house watch” program.
Great job!
Brent Hokanson and John Bayman
Resident
Officers John Bayman and Brent Hokanson were commended for their actions
while handling a snake call. A resident sent an email to CHVPD thanking
John and Brent for the way they handled the call. The snake was removed
froni the property and relocated. Great job!

CHERRY HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS

May 2020
TRAFFICACCIDENT

YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE
2020
2019

PERCENT
CHANGE

-46%

13

7

2

FIELD INTERVIEW CARDS

314%

14

58

9

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES

10803

11091

1829

-75%

75

19

2

ASSISTTOOTHERAGENCY

-65%

62

22

2

CITIZEN ASSISTS

-46%

52

28

3

# ARRESTS (INCLUDES DUI’S & DUS’s)

-22%

200

157

36

#ALARMS

14%

74

84

15

# CRIME REPORTS

-96%

26

1

1

DUS ARRESTS

-14%

7

6

1

DUI ARRESTS

-14%

540

466

70

TRAFFIC WARNINGS

94%

17

33

5

PARKING TICKETS

5%

1044

1093

334

-32%

113

77

14

ALL CITATIONS

PROPERTY CHECKS (HW&BLDG)

3%
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Cherry Hills Village
Code Enforcement Statistics
May 2020
Code Enforcement Issues

Month

YTD

On View Violations

0

0

Requests for Service

0

0

Sight Trie Violations

0

0

Construction Site Violations

0

0

Permit Violations

0

0

2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
22
0
2
0

3
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
92
0
2
2
0

.-

.-

Stop Work Orders Served
Fence Violations
Weed Violations
Trash, Debris and Junk
Trees/Bushes Violations
Zoning Violations
Right of Way Violations
Roll-offs/Port-a-let Violations
ci
ions
Letters/Posted Notices
àjmmonsJssued
Notice of Violations
Misc. Code Violations

—

I

I
10

Year to Date

Various Code
Violations
• Right of Way &
Site Triangle
Violations
W Construction

Violations

Year to Date

• Warning &
Personal
Contacts
Notice of
Violations
• Summons
Issued

2%

Cherry Hills Village
Animal Control Statistics
May 2020
Animal Control Issues
Educational Contacts
Control of Dogs
Barking Dogs
Aggressive D
Wildhfe CompL,
Verbal Warnings
Written Warnings
Summons Issued

Month
18
10
4
0
5
25
0
1

YTD
101
73
9
0
40
85
0
4

Year to Date
a Verbal
Warnings
a Written
Warnings
Summons
Issued

Year to Date
a Educational
Contacts

a Wildlife
Complaints

Year to Date
11%

a Control of
Dogs

Dogs

CITY OF CHERiY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoIDo

2450 E. Qu ncy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
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MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

TERRI LITTLEFORD, MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK

SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL COURT MONTH END REPORT FOR MAY, 2020
DATE:

JUNE 16,2020

ISSUE
Municipal Court Statistics
Monthly Totals
Citations filed
Court appearances/guilty to original
Plea by mail letters sent
Revenue

2020
322
46
147
$19,125.00

2019
199
104
179
$24,690.00

Difference
62%
-56%
22%
-$5,565.00

BUDGET IMPACT STATEMENT
Through May 2020 the Municipal Court has collected 39% of the total budgeted revenue
amount.

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Municipal Court Monthly Activity and Graphs
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE MUNICIPAL COURT
MONTHLY ACTIVITY
March-20
MONTH

YTD

PRIOR YTD

161
5
3
0
169

609
16
5
0
630

477
7
1
12
497

CLOSED BY CLERK
CLOSED BY CLERK
TOTAL

7
7

21
21

15
15

PLEA BY MAIL
GLTY PLEA BY MAIL
TOTAL

126
126

397
397

356
356

24
78
10
0
0
11
1
0

70
198
48
0
0
24
2
0

62
176
29
2
0
53
12
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
124

0
0
0
0
342

0
0
0
0
334

COMPLAINTS FILED
TRAFFIC
PARKING
DOG
OTHER
TOTAL

COURT ACTIVITY
GLTY TO ORIG
GUILTY TO AMENDED
DEFERRED JUDGMENTS
NOT GUILTY (set to trial)
NOT GUILTY (set to jury)
DISMISSED (proof of ins provided)
DISMISSED
SHOW CAUSE HEARINGS
TRIAL TO COURT
CONVICTIONS
AQ U ITTALS
DISMISSED
TRIAL TO JURY
CONVICTIONS
ACQUITTALS
DISMISSED
MISTRIALS
NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN COURT
TOTAL MONEY COLLECTED

$29,630.00

$80,847.00
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CITY OF CHEIY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoIDo

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
iTEM: lOc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE. DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

SUBJECT: PUBLIC WORKS MAY 2020-MONTH END REPORT
DATE:

JUNE 16, 2020

The Streets crew stayed busy in May repairing roads from the winter season. The crew applied 30 tons of
asphalt on several streets around the City. Crack seal operations began on Quincy Avenue and Holly
Street. Road shouldering work was completed on Quincy Avenue, Holly Street, Colorado Boulevard and
Franklin Street using 50 tons of road base. The crew continued with sweeping operations throughout the
City and swept up 30 tons of material. Miscellaneous projects included street sign repair and
replacement, tree trimming throughout the City and equipment maintenance. The crew continues to
participate in safety training courses.
Parks staff remained busy with the warmer weather. Multiple hours were spent on mowing operations,
irrigation repair and installation, tree planting, trail sweeping, citywide trash pickup, stump grinding,
fence repair, pesticide application, tree pruning, branch removal and ti-ce watering. Staff takes pride in
designing and planting the flower beds at various entry ways around the City. The crew has increased the
emptying of trash receptacles to accommodate the additional usage on the trails.
Construction has remained steady during the COVID-19 outbreak and the City issued 12 right-of-way
permits in May bringing the total number of permits issued this year to 58.

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:

May 2020 Public Works Logs and Right-of-Way Monthly Report
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_____

MAY 2020 STREETS RECORD LOG SHEET

-

Week 19 Week 20 Week 21 Week 22 Week
25
13
19
11
54
132
2

ad Administrative Office Work
as Asphalt patching operations
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete repairs
cp Overseeing contractor operations
cr Sealing Operation
dr Drainage Work
em Equipment Maintenance
gm General Maintenance
gr Grounds Maintenance
gv Gravel road maintenance
hl-d Loads to dump
hi-po Materials hauled to shop
hl-r Loads to recycle plant
hi-s Loads to shop
ir Irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
ms Material Stockpiling
Misc
oc-OnCall
om Preventative Maintenance
P0 Purchasing materials
Pt Painting Street
sg Sign Work
sh Shouldering Work
shp Shop Maintenance
Sn Snow removal operations
sp Specal Event
sw Sweeper operations & cleanup
[p Thermo Plastic
Ii Training
tr-pl Plow Training
Lr-sw Sweeper Training
tr-sa Safety Training
li-he Heavy Equipment Training
wo Work Order
[t-TreeTrimming
pto Paid time off
Hol Holiday
TOTALS
-

-

-

-

-

5
12
11

-

-

-

48
25

20
6

50
16
22

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6

-

1

-

-

-

10

12

16.5

8

15
9

20
12

5.5
19
2.5

12
37.5

7.5

5.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

23

-

-

15

-

9

-

-

-

-

-

30

22
8

229

240

4
48
224

10

90
10

15

-

-

as- Asphalt
rb-Road base
cm Cold Mix
cn Concrete
cr-CrackSeal
Is Topsoil
tb Tree Branches
cf Crusher Fines
is Ice Slicer
ms Misc.
Sw Sweepings
[p Thermo Plastic
Ditch Dirt
Rock
Nater
Mag Chloride
Construction Debris
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

136
MATER IALS
tons
tons
bags
tons
Bags
yards
tons
tons
tons
loads
Tons
Boxes
loads
tons
gal
gal
tons

5

15
7

20

900

4

6

EXHIBIT A

TOTALS
57
199
0
0
0
55
96
64
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
6
1
0
0
0
46.5
0
52.5
77.5
2.5
0
0
36
0
24
0
0
0
0
0
52
12
48
0
829
100
30
0
0
15
0
7
0
0
0
30
0
0
0
900
0
0

MAY 2020 PARKS RECORD LOG SHEET
Week 19
ad Administrative Office Work
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete
cp Overseeing contractor project
cr Crackseal
fn Fence repairs
ft Fertilizing Trees
gm Gen. Maint to trails, parks, ROW
gps GPS and Mapping
hI-d Loads to dump
hI-po Materials to shop
hl-r Loads to recycle shop
hi-s Loads to shop
ir- irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
Misc Miscellaneous
mw-p Mowing Parks
mw-e Mowing entry features
mw-r Mowing rights of ways
mw-t Mowing Trails
p1 Planting
pm Preventative maintlrepair on equip
p0 Purchase materials all operations
se Special Events
sg Sign repair
shp Shop Work
sn-Snow
spw Spray Weeds
sw-t Sweeping trails
tr Training & Conf/including safety
ts Trash both cans and loose trash
tt Trimming trees & maint & wrapping
wa-Watering
wd-m Weed cutting mains
wd-p Weed cutting parks
wd-r Weed cutting rights of ways
wd-t Weed cutting trails
pto Paid Time Off
hol Holiday Pay
to-c Time off comp
to-w Time off for workers comp
-

Week 20
8

Week 21
6

Week 22
6

Week
6

-

-

-

-

30

-

-

-

7

8

31

20

28

45

50

8

16

37
25
24
30

19

2

20

30
16
16

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38
10

-

25

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

10

11

5

24

-

-

-

-

4

4

-

10
26

-

-

-

-

15

-

40

-

-

-

TOTAL HOURS
mu Mulch
ts Top soil
sr-r Split rail Rails
sr-p Split rail Posts
tb Tree branches
Sod
ms Misc materials
rb Road Base
Bollards
Rock
Construction Materials
Clippings
Trash
Planters Mix
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

120
200
MATERIALS

200

192

TOTALS
26
0
0
0
0
30
0
66
0
0
0
0
0
131
0
74
25
1 12
56
16
25
0
0
0
0
36
0
0
0
0
24
0
10
26
0
0
0
15
40
0
0
712
0

0
0
0
0

o
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2020 RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITS
MONTHLY REPORT
JANUARY 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

9

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

1

10
FEBRUARY 2020

UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

5

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

2

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

TOTAL
PERMITS

MAJOR
LANDSCAPE

JOBS

3

1

11

MARCH 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

6

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

2

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY
3

MAJOR
LANDSCAPE

JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
14

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

3
APRIL 2020

UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

7

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY
3

1

11

MAY 2020
UTILITY
WORK
6

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

2

OCCUPANCY
2

PARKS!
TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
12

PARKS!
TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

2
JUNE 2019

UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

0
JULY 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

PARKS!
TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

AUGUST 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
LANDSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS

JOBS

0
SEPTEMBER 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LANDSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS

MAJOR
JOBS

0
OCTOBER 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
OCCUPANCY

TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

NOVEMBER 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

DECEMBER 2020
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

2020 YEAR END
TOTALS
UTILITY
DRIVEWAY
WORK INSTALL/REPAIR
33
6

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD
12

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY
6

MAJOR
JOBS

LANDSCAPE
0

0

TOTAL
PERMITS
1

58

